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ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday,
October 1, 1968:

“With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator Martin, P.C., moved, seconded by the
Honourable Senator Beaubien (Provencher):

That the Standing Committee on Finance be authorized to examine
and report upon the expenditures proposed by the Estimates and the
Revised Estimates laid before Parliament for the fiscal year ending 31st
March, 1969, in advance of Bills based on the said Estimates and Revised
Estimates reaching the Senate;

That the Committee be empowered to send for persons, papers and
records, to print its proceedings upon the said Estimates and Revised
Estimates and to sit during adjournments of the Senate; and

That the papers and evidence received and taken on the Estimates
for the fiscal year ending 31st March, 1969, in the preceding session be
referred to the Committee.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

Robert Fortier,
Clerk of the Senate.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, October 10th, 1968.
(1)

Pursuant to Rule and notice the Standing Committee on Finance met
this day at 10.00 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Aseltine, Beaubien (Bedford), Croll,
Desruisseaux, Flynn, Grosart, Hays, Isnor, Kinley, Leonard, Methot, Molson,
O’Leary, (Antigonish-Guysborough), Paterson, Rattenbury, Smith (Queens-
Shelburne) and Willis—(17).

Upon motion, the Honourable Senator Leonard was elected Chairman.

Upon motion, the Honourable Senator Molson was elected Deputy Chair-
man.

After discussion and upon motion, a Steering Committee was appointed
composed of the Honourable Senators Leonard (Chairman), Beaubien (Bed-
ford), Haig, Molson and Smith (Queens-Shelburne)—(5).

After discussion it was agreed that the Committee would meet whenever
possible at 10.00 a.m. on Thursday of each week.

It was agreed that a letter be sent to all Senators inviting them to submit
their suggestions and/or questions to the Chairman who would direct same
to the Steering Committee.

After discussion it was agreed that the Steering Committee would de-
termine the feasibility of examining the Estimates of any one particular De-
partment of Government.

Resolved that these Minutes be included in the first printed Proceedings
of the Committee.

At 10.25 a.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chairman.
ATTEST:

Frank A. Jackson,
Clerk of the Committee.

THURSDAY, October 17th, 1968.
(2)
Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Finance
met this day at 10.00 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Leonard (Chairman), Beaubien (Bed-
ford), Connolly (Ottawa West), Croll, Flynn, Giguere, Grosart, Haig, Isnor,
Kinley, MacKenzie, Methot, Molson, O’Leary (Antigonish-Guysborough),
Pearson, Rattenbury, Smith (Queens-Shelburne), Thorvaldson and Yuzyk. (19)

1—5



The Estimates and the Revised Estimates laid before Parliament for the
fiscal year ending 31st March, 1969, were considered.

The following witnesses were heard:

Treasury Board:
S. S. Reisman, Secretary.
S. Cloutier, Assistant Secretary, Program Branch.
After discussion, it was agreed that the question of the audit of Federal-

Provincial programs be deferred until the appearance of the Auditor General
before the Committee.

Mr. Reisman undertook to supply, at a later date, answers to some of the
questions put this day.

At 11.25 a.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chairman.

ATTEST:

Frank A. Jackson,
Clerk of the Committee.
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THE SENATE
STANDING COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Thursday, October 17, 1968

The Standing Committee on Finance, to
Which was referred the Estimates laid before
Parliament for the fiscal year ending 31st
March, 1969, met this day at 10 a.m.

Senator T. D'Arcy Leonard (Chairman) in
the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, it is
10 o’clock. We have a quorum. The business
for the meeting today is our first considera-
tion of the revised Estimates for the year
ending March 31, 1969. Honourable senators
Will recall that the original Estimates were
Teferred to the committee earlier this year.
Some meetings were held in dealing with the
original Estimates then Parliament dissolved
and a new Parliament was elected. At this
session revised Estimates have been filed and
have been referred to this committee.

Also, probably since the last meeting of the
committee, since the changing of the Parlia-
ment, a change has taken place in the person-
nel of the Treasury Board. Dr. George Dav-
idson had been Secretary for a number of
Years. He was very well known to this com-
mittee. He had been of great help to the
committee. He was one of our chief witnesses
in dealing with the Estimates and with the
financial affairs represented by the Estimates.
Dr. Davidson, as you know, was made the
President of the Canadian Broadcasting
Corporation.

In Dr. Davidson’s place Mr. S. S. Reisman
was appointed Secretary of the Treasury
Board. We have Mr. Reisman with us today.
It is his first appearance before this commit-
tee as Secretary of the Treasury Board,
although it is quite likely that over a career
that has extended in the Public Service of
Canada for some years he will have been
before a Senate committee, this or some other
committee, at one time or another. In any

1

event, on your behalf I wish to welcome Mr.
Reisman to the committee and to assure him
that he will have our co-operation. In turn, I
am sure we are going to get a good deal of
helpful information from him.

Mr. Reisman has with him Mr. Cloutier,
who is the Assistant Secretary of the Trea-
sury Board and who has been before the com-
mittee on previous occasions. We also have
back with us Mr. Glashan. I may be just a
little rusty as to Mr. Glashan’s exact title, but
he is one of the senior officers of the Treasury
Board.

I do not know that there are any other
preliminary matters, beyond welcoming these
gentlemen, and if it is your pleasure I will
ask Mr. Reisman to speak to us in connection
with the revised Estimates. He will probably
want to deal with them in general, but he is
available to us for any questioning on them.

Is there anything else before Mr. Reisman
proceeds? Mr. Reisman, would you mind
speaking to us about this matter, then?

Mr. S. S. Reisman, Secretary of the Trea-
sury Board: Thank you very much, Mr.
Chairman. I am rather new at this game. You
not only have the Revised Estimates but, as
you have indicated, you really have a revised
secretariat of the board as well. But I am
sure that as we move along through this bus-
iness I will get a better feel of what it is you
want to know, Mr. Chairman, and I will try,
with the help of my staff—and I will certain-
ly need that help—to try to answer whatever
questions need answering and to clarify what-
ever issues need clarification. We will do that
at least to the best of our ability.

The procedure in respect of Estimates this
year is rather unique. It has happened only
once before as far as I am aware—that two
separate sets of Estimates have been tabled.
You will recall that during February and
early March the country was experiencing
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certain financial difficulties mainly on the
international side. At that time a major policy
statement was made by the then Minister of
Finance, Mr. Sharp, indicating a number of

important steps that would be taken to deal"

with the financial situation, including a fur-
ther paring down of expenditures, at least in
the area where the executive was in a posi-
tion to deal with expenditures.

He undertook that a revised set of esti-
mates would be tabled as soon as possible,
but because of the events with which you are
completely familiar, that “as soon as possible”
did not occur until several weeks ago. The
Revised Estimates which were tabled by the
Honourable C. M. Drury were able to take
into account the cut-back in the controllable
expenditures in the amount of some $80 mil-
lion, and also brought up to date certain
other developments that had taken place be-
tween March and September in the form of
changes in those expenditures that are not
subject to voting by parliament, but which are
provided for in the statutes. He also intro-
duced certain other changes to bring up to
date expenditure decisions other than the
statutory changes and those which arose from
the cut-backs.

In a real sense, I suppose, the Revised Esti-
mates for this year include some of those
expenditure changes which would, in a nor-
mal year, be contained in supplementary esti-
mates. This, of course, does not mean that
there will not be supplementary estimates,
but hopefully it does mean that the supple-
mentary estimates will be more moderate
than they might be in a normal year.

Now, I do not know in how much detail
you would like me to go into this. Perhaps I
should mention that the Revised Estimates of
expenditures are significantly higher than the
original estimates. In the main, the increases
occurred on the statutory side and they are
largely in the area of those joint programs, or
open-ended programs, as we sometimes refer
to them, of the federal and provincial govern-
ments in the areas of hospital and diagnostic
services, post-secondary education and the
Canada Assistance Act. Those are the areas
where the various substantial increases took
place. There are also some significant
increases in debt charges; the cost of servic-
ing the public debt. This is related to the
upper movement of interest rates. There were
two important items which were not provided
for in the original estimates, but which

figured significantly in the Revised Estimates;

and they relate, again, to statutory items.
They are, first, the election which, as you
know, cost a significant amount of money
and, second, the first charges under the medi-
care program for British Columbia and Sas-
katchewan. Significant payments were
required to be made this fiscal year.

Senator Pearson: Can you tell us how much
the Revised Estimates were?

Mr. Reisman: Senator Pearson, the details
of these charges are contained in the Esti-
mates book. The charge for medicare for the
fiscal year 1968-1969 is in the order of $35
million. As far as the election is concerned, I
believe the figure is, if my memory is correct,
just slightly over $14 million.

The Chairman: Perhaps Senator Pearson
would like that broken down into the two
provinces.

Senator Pearson: Yes.
The Chairman: Could you break it down?

Mr. Reisman: The printed estimates do not
show the break-down between provinces, but
I will get this information for you and submit
it to the committee.

The Chairman: That is satisfactory.

Senator MacKenzie: May I ask a question?
Do you know whether an agreement has been
reached between the provinces and the feder-
al authorities on the 1-S Formula on which
the 50 per cent cost of higher education or
post-education? I had in mind, sir, that there
are a number of items that could be in or out
under that general heading of post-secondary
education and I have found in the provinces
and here also that it has not only been very
difficult, but, to the best of my knowledge, no
firm agreement has been reached on that.

Mr. Reisman: Senator MacKenzie, you are
quite right in indicating that the question of
what is or is not included under this pro-
gram, which entitles provinces to payments
from the federal side for programs operated
by the provinces, is complicated and there
was a long period of negotiation and discus-
sion in connection with this matter. But I
think it is correct to say that these consulta-
tions have been completed and the results of
these consultations are incorporated in regu-
lations, spelling out very clearly and very
specifically what may be included and what
may not be included in calculating benefits
under this program.
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I do not have a copy of the regulations with
me, but if it is your wish, sir, I can make one
available, or if you would like further discus-
sion or information about how that issue was
resolved—

Senator MacKenzie: If that information
could be made available I would appreciate
it. I have one further question. It has been
suggested that the federal courts are consid-
ering changing that arrangement or revising
it. I take it you would not be in a position yet
to elaborate on that idea.

Mr. Reisman: No, I think the normal prac-
tice before committees of this kind, is that for
policy issues, you would wish a minister of
the Crown to give evidence. Perhaps I can
say, and of course this is public information,
that the Prime Minister and other ministers
of the Crown have made reference to the fact
that these open-ended programs are costing
the provinces and the federal Government
more than was anticipated when they were
first entered into, and that it would be desira-
ble to have some discussion about those pro-
grams. No doubt discussion will be taking
place, but that is about as far as I can go.

Senator MacKenzie: Could you give us, for
the record, the estimated cost for this fiscal
year of this program?

Mr. Reisman: Yes, I can give you that.
Senator MacKenzie: I do not need it now.

Mr. Reisman: I can give it to you. As far as
cash payments from the Department of the
Secretary of State to the provinces in respect
of the fiscal year 1968-1969, the figure is $227
million.

Senator MacKenzie: Then there is the tax
transfer as well.

Mr. Reisman: There are the tax points as
well.

Senator Pearson: The tax what?

Mr, Reisman: The federal share of the cost
of post-secondary education under this pro-
gram is made in a number of ways. First,
there are tax points that are made available
to the provinces and that provides a substan-
tial income.

Now, if the tax points do not produce a
figure as prescribed under the act, which is
roughly equivalent to half the operating cost
of post secondary education, there is then a
cash payment made by the Department of the

Secretary of State to bring the total assistance
to a particular province up to roughly that 50
per cent level. Therefore, you have a combi-
nation of aids of which the cash payment is
only one. As far as the Estimates are con-
cerned, all you see are the cash payments.

Senator MacKenzie: You do not see the loss
to the federal Government of tax points,
which is quite substantial.

Mr. Reisman: Which is very substantial,
depending upon the province.

Senator MacKenzie: I have one further
question. Am I right in assuming that as far
as the federal Government is concerned this
money paid out on this 50 per cent basis with-
out strings attached can be used for any pur-
pose that the province cares to use it for?

Mr. Reisman: I had better reflect on that
question a moment, sir, and perhaps you will
permit me also to consult with my staff.

Senator MacKenzie: It is supposed to be
used for post-secondary education, and I
understand this is rather a delicate question
qithin the provinces and in the universities.

Mr. Reisman: If I may, Senator MacKenzie,
I think I can put it fairly in this way: that
the payments made to the provinces are
based on audited statements of the cost in the
particular province of post-secondary educa-
tion as defined in the regulations. It takes in
the universities, medical schools and some of
the post-secondary technical schools, and so
on, and payment is made in respect of
charges actually incurred by the provinces for
those purposes, which means they receive
these funds from us whether in terms of cash
payments or tax points, and they go into the
revenues of the province.

Senator MacKenzie: They have incurred it
for the previous year, but they don’t have to
put their 50 per cent into that. You see, part
of the expenditure made by universities
comes out of fees and endowments, so that
while technically or normally all of this 50
per cent contribution by federal authorities
should go there, and I hope in the majority of
cases it does, I think it is a fact that it is free
money after you have handed it over and is
at the discretion of the provinces.

Senator Croll: If I understood you correct-
ly, it is audited payments whereby a certain
number of dollars has been paid out.



4 Standing Commitiee

- Senator MacKenzie: Yes, they are audited
expenses or expenses incurred by the institu-
tion, but the revenue of the institution comes
from more sources than the provincial Gov-
ernment and the provincial Government does
not have to match the federal contribution. It
can rely on the fact that fees and so forth are
additional.

The Chairman: I think the specific case that
Senator MacKenzie might have in mind is
with respect to denominational universities.

Senator MacKenzie: I do know there is a
real question in the minds of a number of
people in a number of provinces as to wheth-
er this arrangement is not perhaps relieving
the provinces to a greater or lesser degree of
their responsibilities in this field.

Senator Croll: What you are saying in
effect is that they don’t give the federal Gov-
ernment any credit for the revenues they
receive. That is what you are saying in effect,
but the federal Government has always been
a sucker.

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): I would
like to ask a question of Mr. Reisman. Do the
regulations provide for taking into account
the sources of revenue that the universities
have on their own before the 50 per cent is
calculated?

Mr. Reisman: That is a very precise ques-
tion, Senator Connolly, and I wish I could
answer it as precisely as you asked it. I know
the regulations say quite a lot about how fees
that are collected by the provinces are treated
for the purpose of calculating the federal pay-
ment. There is a fairly complicated formula
and my recollection is that fees are in fact
deducted before calculating the federal share
of the program, but I think you will get a
better answer and a more precise answer
when we submit to the committee a copy of
the regulations.

Perhaps I might also add that when you get
into the intricate details of any programs that
are the responsibility of a department of gov-
ernment, you will be better served by a
witness from the department in question. Mr.
Steele is the Under-Secretary of State and I
believe that as of this date he is still with us.

Senator Croll: In open-ended contracts, you
spoke of the Canada Assistance Act, medicare
and education.

Mr. Reisman: And hospital and diagnostic
services.

Senator Croll: Is there anything else?

Mr. Reisman: No, I think that is pretty well
it.

Senator Rattenbury: It is not a requirement
of federal grants for educational purposes

that technical training be incorporated in all
new buildings?

Mr. Reisman: There is a distinction to be
drawn between the type of technical training
we speak of. If the technical training is pro-
vided in a post-secondary institution, then it
forms part of this program. But as you know
there are other very large and important pro-
grams for vocational training and technical
training and other types of training for adults
operated by the Department of Manpower
and Immigration under the occupational
training for adults program.

Senator Rattenbury: But those are separate
institutions for training fishermen and people
like that.

Mr. Reisman: Or for people who want to
upgrade their skills. These are largely institu-
tions operated by the provinces.

Senator Rattenbury: What about high

schools being built?

Mr. Reisman: They do not qualify under
this program. They are regarded as secondary
rather than post-secondary institutions.
However, if we talk about places like the
Ryerson Institute in Toronto or the Eastern
Ontario Institute of Technology here in
Ottawa, these do qualify.

The Chairman: I see Senator Molson wishes
to ask a question, but before that, Mr. Reis-
man, you gave a figure of $227 million for the
provinces for post-secondary education. But
the figure on page 447 is $275 million. Is there
a reconciliation?

Mr. Reisman: Yes, there is a conciliation.
The difference, which I think is $48 million,
is in respect of the previous fiscal year where
the program outran the estimated cost and so
an adjustment payment will have to be made
in respect of that fiscal year.

Senator Molson: Before we leave the sub-
ject of the provincial contributions to post-

- secondary education, in addition to the matter

of fees which has been referred to, could we
also have drawn to our attention the method
of dealing with endowment income and
research grants, both of which figure in some
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university budgets to quite a substantial
extent. These are important as another sub-
stantial source of income.

Mr. Reisman: Yes, senator. I believe that
the matter of endowment and related income
is also dealt with in the regulations. If it is, it
will be covered in the material we submit; if
it is not, we will submit separate information
for you.

Senator Connolly (Oitawa West): With
regard to research grants, are they not paid
directly to the university rather than to the
provinces?

Mr. Reisman: Yes, you are quite right if
you are thinking of research grants under the
very large program operated by National
Research Council. There you will find pay-
ments are made directly to the university and
then the university distributes them between
individual recipients and individual graduate
students who engage in particular lines of
research. I think you will find that certain
programs operated by other agencies and de-
partments of government involving research
grants are also handled in that way.

Senator Grosart: Mr. Reisman, it has been
my understanding that in these open-ended
matching federal-provincial grants the basis
of the federal matching was, or has been, or
is, the actual expenditure out of the provin-
cial treasury. Is that so, or is it not?

Mr. Reisman: I think that puts it rather
more simply than is actually the situation.
The federal share is based on a formula
spelled out in the regulations. By and large, I
think one can say that your description of it
is basically right; but it is a little more com-
plicated than that, for the reason that fees are
treated in a particular way, endowments and
research grants are treated in a particular
way, and I doubt if you will get a precise 50
per cent equivalence of actual cash disburse-
ments from a province, but it comes to
something reasonably close to that.

Senator Grosari: Are these qualifications in
the post-secondary school grants an exception
to the general practice followed in other
grants?

Mr. Reisman: No.

Senator Thorvaldson: Mr. Chairman, this
relates, I think, to what the senator was
talking about. The federal Government hav-
ing embarked on ‘the various programs,

shared cost programs such as the Assistance
Act and in regard to universities, has the
federal Government no control over the esca-
lation of the money that is required for
payments under these projects?

I ask this question in relation to the state-
ments you see appearing in every weekday
journal and that you hear over the radio now,
and so on, to the effect that the great
increases in expenditures contained in the
revised Estimates are largely occasioned by
these shared cost programs. Are these abso-
lutely open-ended programs, and is it the fact
that the federal funds flow out without any
legislative authority, subject to this, that they
are open-ended and consequently there are

great increases, apparently, without control of
Parliament?

Mr. Reisman: The answer to you, I think,
can be quite straightforward. These are,
indeed, open-ended programs, and the legisla-
tion providing for the federal participation in
these programs indicates the basis upon
which the federal Government will share in
their cost. If you examine them in detail you
will find they are open-ended, that the only
control over them is exercised by the prov-
inces themselves who operate the programs.
Once costs have been incurred you apply the
formula as spelled out in the reguations, and
you pay your shot. So, the answer to you is
that they are open-ended.

Senator Thorvaldson: Is it correct, then, to
say that funds raised by taxes by the Govern-
ment of Canada incurred in these programs
are now dependent upon the legislation we
have in Queen’s Park, British Columbia,
Manitoba, and so on; and that we have aban-
doned the principle that Parliament has con-
trol of these funds?

Mr. Reisman: No, I do not think that is
correct, sir. The disbursements by the feder-
al Government in respect of these programs
are controlled by legislation adopted by the
Parliament of Canada. While it is true that
the legislation does not use precise figures, or
set precise limits, it does in fact lay out the
basis upon which the federal Government
will participate. Parliament examined this
and Parliament adopted this legislation, and
that is the basis upon which the federal Gov-
ernment participates.

Senator Thorvaldson: That is quite right,
but may I say this, that I think you have just
remarked that, nevertheless, our escalation in
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these payments was dependent upon whether
there was escalation or de-escalation by the
provinces in these programs.

Mr. Reisman: That is entirely correct. If
you take as an example the costs for post-
secondary edfucation, the controlling figures
are the costs of operating the universities and
the post-secondary institutions. A formula is
applied to them, whatever that figure may be,
and the federal share is based on those actual
costs permitted by the formula. These things
can rise very rapidly and, in fact, they have
risen very rapidly, as the figures will in-
dicate.

Senator Thorvaldson: I want it understood
that I do not blame anyone but ourselves. I
recognize what we as a Parliament have
done, and I am just wondering why we did it.

I think it is most valuable to have you here
to explain these things to us in detail, because
they looked fine when we passed the bills,
and we were all involved in passing these
acts and entering into these projects, but I
just want to suggest that we are involved in a
vicious circle here, the end of which we do
not see, and that perhaps we should give a
great deal of thought to where we go on these
open-ended programs in the future.

Senator Rattenbury: Once we arrive at a
certain standard of education right across
Canada, for educational requirements, then
there will be, more or less, a slow down and
levelling off process in comparison with the
rise in population.

The Chairman: That may depend on wheth-
er a larger percentage of our population is
going to be at university.

Senator Croll: In view of what Senator
Thorvaldson has said, one of the great
debates in this country over a period of
years, particularly, has been on Medicare and
what it is likely to cost, and Parliament had
that before it; education and what is is likely
to cost, hospitalization—all these things—and
they were faced with it as we were, and we
said, “This we need and this we will pay for,
as long as the province pays its share.” It was
debated and debated most thoroughly in the
country, and the country understands it.

Senator Thorvaldson: I would quite agree
with you, but the question is: Did we do the
right thing?

Senator Croll: Well, your party was
involved as much as our party; we both had a
share in it.

Senator Grosart: Some years ago there was
some concern expressed over the fact there
was no federal audit in the area of the winter
works program. To what extent is there a
federal audit of the figures presented by the
provinces as claims for federal matching
grants?

Mr. Reisman: This is a question which I
would like to be able to answer, and that I
should be able to answer. Max Henderson
would certainly be able to give you the pre-
cise detail on it.

My understanding on it is this; that the
audit arrangements vary with the programs.
In some cases the Auditor General accepts
the provincial data; in other cases he will
conduct an independent audit. I think it is
largely a matter of his own judgment in some
cases, and I understand that if he wishes to
make an audit, because he has some basis for
wishing to make an audit, he can do so. After
I leave this committee I will check that, and
if I am wrong in the answer I gave you I will
correct it.

The Chairman: Also it has been our custom
in the past to have Mr. Henderson appear
before this committee at some time before we
conclude our sittings. We can make a note of
that point, for when Mr. Henderson comes
before us.

Senator Grosari:
answers my question.

Yes, thank you, that

The Chairman: Are there any other ques-
tions? We have pretty well been discussing
only one aspect of the Estimates, namely, this
aspect of post-secondary education. Of course,
there are a good many other things involved.
If we have dealt with that point perhaps Mr.
Reisman has some other comments he wants
to make about the revised Estimates in
general.

Mr. Reisman: I had not completed my
opening remarks, sir. All I need add is that
apart from the decreases which were made in
the controllable items, and the increases
which we have spoken about in the statutory
items, there are included in the revised Esti-
mates a number of changes in respect of
essential requirements totaling $33 million for
which Parliament will be asked to appropri-
ate funds. These include—perhaps I should
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enumerate them, because there are not that
many.

There is an anticipated operating loss of the
Farm Credit Corporation during the current
fiscal year of $1.4 million.

There is a payment to the United States
Mint, for coin production to meet the high
demand for coinage in Canada, of $210,000.

There is an additional provision for the
Treasury Board Contingencies Fund, for
anticipated Public Service salary adjustments
arising out of collective bargaining, of $25
million.

And there is an addition to the original
provision for the Government’s share of the
premiums for the Group Surgical-Medical
Insurance Plan, required as a result of the
participation in Medicare by fewer provinces
than expected, of $6,218,000.

When we take all of these changes into
account the total budgetary expenditures for
1968-69 reach a figure of $10.671 billion.

If you look through the revised Estimates
you will see there is a section on loans. The
Estimates do not include all the loans and
advances, but they include those that require
the approval of Parliament, and there are
several very large items there dealing mainly
with our international financial commitments
in respect of international aid, and there is
another—and a very large one—in respect of
an international program to support the
pound sterling. Canada is one of the countries
rendering support for the pound sterling.

That is about all I want to say by way of
general introduction. Perhaps we could go on
now with questions.

Senator Thorvaldson: Mr. Chairman, may I
ask a question with respect to our interna-
tional financial commitments including our
support of the pound sterling and also in
regard to our program in respect of interna-
tional aid? Are the amounts required for
those items raised by loans? I thought that
international aid was a budgetary matter.

Mr. Reisman: They are both, Senator Thor-
valdson. There are a number of programs in
which the federal Government participates in
respect of international aid, and some of
these programs take the form of grants and
these, of course, are handled through the nor-
mal items providing for budgetary outlays for
grants. And there are other programs that
involve loans. Some loans are at a rate of
interest that reflects the market rate, and oth-
ers are at what we call. ..

The Chairman: They are soft loans.

Mr. Reisman: Thank you very much, Mr,
Chairman. Yes, they are soft loans.

Senator Thorvaldson: I was under the
misapprehension that all of these sums were
raised by way of loans, but I can see now
that the direct grants are budgetary items.

Mr. Reisman: That is right.

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): The con-
tribution to UNICEF is a grant, is it not?

Mr. Reisman: Yes, the contribution to UNI-
CEF would be a grant. The contribution to
the United Nations Development Fund would
be a grant. But, the contribution, say, to the
International Development Association, which
is associated with the International Bank for
Reconstruction and Development, is a loan.
The figure that I referred to here of $81 mil-
lion is in fact a contribution to the Interna-
tional Development Association, and is a loan.

Senator Thorvaldson: Can you give us the
total amount of the items involved in these
loans to such organizations as the Internation-
al Development Association? I am referring
to these aid items.

Mr. Reisman: The total loan figure that is
included in the Estimates, and that requires a
vote by Parliament, is $684 million. If you
will look at page 577 of the Revised Estimates
under the general heading of “Loans, Invest-
ments and Advances” you will find a figure
for the 1968-69 fiscal year of $106 million
under the External Aid Office, and this is
special loan assistance to developing coun-
tries. Then there is this additional figure to
which we referred, and which appears also
on that page wunder the Department of
Finance of $81 million-odd.

So, the total figure for this current fiscal
year for development assistance by way of
loans is $187 million.

Senator Thorvaldson: Thank you. Have you
a figure for the moneys expended by way of
loans in respect of matters such as that of
protecting the pound sterling.

Mr. Reisman: Yes. If I understand your
question correctly, you are asking for the
figure of loans by the Government of Canada
under the program to help support the pound
sterling. The figure which is contained also at
page 577 under “Loans, Investments and
Advances” is $107.3 million. This takes the
form, I might say, of a commitment by Cana-
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da to an account in the Bank for International
Settlements, which may, in certain circum-
stances, be drawn upon. It is a sort of support
fund. ..

Senator (Ottawa West): A

stand-by.

Mr. Reisman: It is a stand-by. Thank you
very much, Senator Connolly. That is exactly
what it is. It is a stand-by. If my memory is
correct, none of that has yet been drawn
down, and would only be drawn down in the
event of certain circumstances.

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): Well, it is
drawn down at attractive interest rates, is it
not? Is the interest rate an attractive one?

Connolly

Mr. Reisman: Yes, the project itself was
worked out in detail by participating coun-
tries. They have some very detailed rules
about when it can be drawn down, and if it is
drawn down how it is to be repaid and at
what rates of interest. It is a fairly complicat-
ed formula. I might say too that this does not
involve a cash drain on Canadian resources.
If it were drawn upon it would come out of
our international exchange reserves, and
when it is repaid it would replenish those
international exchange reserves.

Senator Thorvaldson: Is not that a loan?

Mr. Reisman: It is very definitely a loan,
carrying definite rates of interest. It is really
a supplement to the other techniques that are
used for maintaining international financial
stability. You have the International Mone-
tary Fund; you have your own exchange
reserves; and on occasion you have these
other arrangements. You may recall that
when Canada got into international financial
difficulties, first in 1962 and then again a few
years ago, we drew down on our I.M.F. cred-
its. We borrowed from the United States Fed-
eral Reserve, and in various other ways other
countries helped us get through this difficulty.
We, in turn, help other countries when they
get into difficulty, as part of international
financial co-operative arrangements.

Senator Pearson: Do they draw on a pro
rata basis from the different countries that
support the I.M.F.?

Mr. Reisman: That is right, sir.

Senator Thorvaldson: I just want to point
out in that respect that when we got into
those difficulties in 1962, and then more
recently, none of those matters were chargea-

ble to revenue, except of course, interest
charges on loans. Would that be right?

Mr. Reisman: That is correct, sir.

Senator Grosart: I should like to ask three
short general questions. First of all, when you
refer to an $80 million cut-back this year,
what was the cut-back from?

Mr. Reisman: The figure I used was a $80
million cut-back in respect of controllable
expenditures; that is, expenditures which are
to be voted by Parliament for this fiscal year.
This was a cut-back from the figures which
appeared in the main Estimates in respect of
departments and agencies. If you have the
revised Estimates in front of you, on pages
6A and 6C there is a full detail of precisely
where this $80 million was obtained by
department and agency.

Senator Grosart: What was the cut-back
from the departmental estimates?

Mr. Reisman: Just under $80 million; $79
odd million.

Senator Grosart: I mean the proposed
spending by departments. Could you discuss
this figure quite generally?

Mr. Reisman: Let us take as an example
the Department of Agriculture. You will
observe that the original 1968-69 estimates for
that department provided for $278 million,
and the reduction announced on March 6 was
a figure of $2.29 million. For the Department
of Energy Mines and Resources there was a
$1.9 million cut-back from the $113 million in
the original estimates.

Senator Grosari: I do not quite follow. On
page 6A for agriculture you have the figure of
$278 million and the revised estimate of $255
million. That was the figure you gave.

Mr. Reisman: Yes. There are two adjust-
ments which need to be made to the original
figure of $278 million. One adjustment is the
$2.2 million arising from the cut-back in
March, and the other adjustment of $20.7
million arises from the reorganization the
Prime Minister announced several months
ago. I believe that what was involved here
was the move of the P.F.R.A., the Prairie

‘Farm Rehabilitation Administration, from

the Department of Agriculture to the new
Department of Regional Affairs, which in the
move took that piece of the budget with
them.
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Senator Grosart: So the departmental
figures in the Estimates and the Revised Esti-
mates are not necessarily comparable because
they are not necessarily the same components
In the department. Is that correct?

Mr. Reisman: That is correct, sir. What we
try to do on pages 6A, 6B, 6C and 6D is to
spell out precisely how to reconcile the origi-
nal Estimates with the Revised Estimates
arising from a number of factors. It arises
from, first the cut-back of the $80 million;
secondly, the upward movement in the statu-
tory items; thirdly, the changes arising from

€ reorganization; fourthly, certain adjust-
ments for necessary expenditures which the
Government decided to incur, which I
outlined to you in detail, running to a figure
of $33 million. All that is contained on these
bages so that you can make a full
Teconciliation.

Senator Grosart: What is the percentage of
the total Estimates that is statutory and con-
trollable, to use your word? Just the percent-
age. I do not need the exact figures.

Mr. Reisman: I would say between 60 per
cent and 65 per cent are controllable. Let me
give you the actual figure. Of a total of $10.6
blllion, $4.8 billion are authorized by statute
and the rest, $5.7 billion, requires to be
Vvoted.

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): You used
to put these on the sheets that could be
Passed round to senators at the time the
appropriation bills were before the house. I
think that is a good practice because it allows
senators to see, first of all the statutory items
and the amounts, and secondly the controlla-
ble expenditures and the amounts, and then
the amounts by departments. I think that was
a helpful device for senators listening to a
speech that had box car figures in it of
necessity.

Senator Grosart: I would hope that in the
department you will be able to find a better
word than “controllable”, because the natural
assumption is that the others are uncontrolla-
ble. My last question is: would you care to
relate the figures in the Estimates to the Gov-
ernment cash requirements this year?

Mr. Reisman: I am afraid I cannot do that
for you. It would not arise from our estimates
of expenditures. The way responsibilities are
allocated between agencies and departments,
it is the Department of Finance which con-
cerns itself with management of the cash

position, the consolidated revenue fund, and I
would not have that information. If you were
interested in that I am sure the Department
of Finance would be happy to provide a
witness to give you all that detail.

Senator Grosari: It is really the most
important figure a nation has to consider.

Mr. Reisman: It is an important figure, sir,
but I myself have always felt, although it is a
personal view, that what you spend and do
not get back is really more significant than
what you advance in the way of loan or
advance and earn interest on and get back.
The cash position reflects both those, and no
doubt the cash position is a very significant
element in the management of government
finances, because you must raise money. I do
not know whether I would care to attribute
relative importance to these.

Senator Thorvaldson: I should like to ask
one question on this item while we are deal-
ing with pages 6A, 6B, 6C and 6D. On each
page you have reductions and increases, and
one heading is “Arising from Reorganization”.
Could you tell us briefly what you mean by
“Reorganization”?

Mr. Reisman: We mean something very
specific here. You will recall the Prime
Minister announced several months ago some
basic reorganization in the apparatus of gov-
ernment. He announced that the Department
of Industry and the Department of Trade and
Commerce would be merged into one depart-
ment; that there would be a new Department
of Communications which would take on cer-
tain elements and activities of work formerly
done by other departments; that there would
be certain transfers of functions from one
department to another, so that the Depart-
ment of Forestry and Rural Development was
split, with forestry joining Fisheries and rural
development becoming a component of the
new Department of Regional Affairs. When
we use the term here “arising from reorgani-
zation” we are referring explicitly and
specifically to that reorganization announced
by the Prime Minister and for which there
will be a composite reorganization bill pre-
sented to Parliament in the near future.

Senator MacKenzie: What is the share that
the federal Government pays to the provinces
in respect of Medicare?

Mr. Reisman: If is 50 per cent. That is the
magic figure in the program.
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. Senator MacKenzie: I take it that the esti-

mates of expenditure for this year for Sas-
katchewan and British Columbia are, in a
sense, intelligent guesses—in that you have
not yet exact figures. Until the end of the
financial year of those provinces, you will not
be able to get an exact figure.

Mr. Reisman: I think that is a fair observa-
tion. They are estimates. In some cases, esti-
mates can be reasonably precise: in other
cases, they are not much more than an
informed, intelligent, educated guess.

Senator MacKenzie: In both provinces,
medical services in one form or another affect
it. There has been an extension in British
Columbia. Saskatchewan carries on much of
what has been done in the past, other than
the fact that they will get a contribution from
the federal fund.

Mr. Reisman: You are quite right, sir. Be-
cause the estimates for Medicare relate‘ to twp
provinces that have had experience with this

program, and because we base ourselves very

largely on their submissions to us, or to the
department concerned and then to us, I
would hope that these figures are reasonably
accurate.

Senator MacKenzie: Later on you will get
the exact figures?

Mr. Reisman: Yes, we will.

Senator O'Leary (Antigonish-Guysborough):
Mr. Reisman, would you mind covering, per-
haps in a little more detail, that $6 million
item? We are in the Medicare field again.

Mr. Reisman: As you know, in respect of
the public service, the federal Government
makes a contribution to the premiums for
group surgical medical insurance. It is rough-
ly half and half; the civil servant pays half
and the Government pays half.

The arrangements that have been emerging
from collective bargaining are that, as Medi-
care comes into effect, the governmental
group surgical medical insurance plan will be
withdrawn and, to the extent that that is
withdrawn, the federal share will not have to
be paid directly to this plan, because the civil
servant, like any other citizen, will be enti-
tled to benefits under the more universal
Medicare plan.

When these original estimates were put
together, a judgment was needed as to how
widespread would be -the adoption of the
Medicare program by the respective prov-

inces. As it turned out, only two provinces
had put the plan into effect by the time we
came to make up the Revised Estimates.
When the original Estimates were made up,
the judgment was made that more than two
provinces would be in it. This meant that the
federal contribution to the public service
group surgical medical plan required more
inputs than originally anticipated and that
explains the $6 million figure.

Senator O’Leary (Antigonish-Guysborough):
I think I understand that part of it. Perhaps
my supplementary question is more impor-
tant. This $6 million was spent, in other
words, because of anticipation that was not
realized in respect of Medicare?

Mr. Reisman: Yes.

Senator O’Leary (Antigonish-Guysborough):
Then, for a period of, I have forgotten how
many months, there was a reducton in premi-
ums to the public service and I presume it
was this reduction in premiums that brought
about this figure that we have here?

Mr. Reisman: No, I do not think so, sir. I
think that is a different figure. Would you
explain that, Mr. Cloutier?

Mr. Cloutier: As I remember the detail on
this, the premiums for the surgical medical
plan are examined periodically to make sure
they are in actuarial balance, and the premi-
ums were raised a few years ago in order to
re-establish that actuarial balance. It occurred,
as I remember it, that in the spring of 1967,
the fund from which this plan is administered
showed a healthy surplus and at that point—
again we are going back to the winter of
1966-67—the expectation towards Medicare
was that it would start within a relatively
few months. The staff associations, which
participated in the management of this plan,
raised the observation that really this surplus
arose out of too high contributions by their
memberships and in view of the eventual, I
would not say “demise”, but “contraction”, of
the surgical medical plan upon the coming
into effect of Medicare, that surplus really
belonged in part to the employees who had
contributed to that fund, and to the
Government.

After consultations, which were rather pro-
tracted, between the staff associations and the
representatives of the Government, the deci-
sion was made to decrease premiums for a
period, as I recall, of five or six months, so as
to re-establish the proper balance, or at least
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to re-establish the fund at a level which
would be consistent with the expected expen-
ditures out of the fund. The end of that peri-
od coincided just about completely with the
expected date of the introduction of Medicare.

Had Medicare come in in full bloom at that
point, the rates would probably have
remained somewhere at the level at which
they were, because the coverage which would
have continued to be provided under the sur-
gical medical plan would have been at a
lower level than before and requiring lesser
contributions.

But what happened was, of course, that at
that point Medicare did not come in, and the
same coverage as before had to be continued,
and at that point the rates of contribution by
the employees and by the Government were
re-established, as I recall it, sir, not quite as
high as they were—

Senator O'Leary (Antigonish-Guysborough):
A little higher.

Mr. Cloutier: A little higher. That is quite
possible. My memory is quite hazy on this;
but the rate at which it was established or
re-established was calculated to maintain the
actuarial balance in that fund.

Senator O'Leary (Antigonish-Guysborough):
I do not see why you disagreed with my
statement that this reduction in premiums
was made at the time in anticipation of
expenditures which did not come about, so
this $6 million is going towards making up
that decreased premium for that period. That
is why we have it.

Mr. Cloutier: The decrease in premium was
calculated—

Senator O’Leary (Antigonish-Guysborough):
—on the state of the fund at that time.

Mr. Cloutier: But to use up thfe surplus that
existed in the fund over a period of five or
six months, as I recall.

The Chairman: And now place it on a self-
carrying basis?

Mr. Reisman: You have a figure of $6.2
million here. There may be some small ﬁguxje
in it related to the alteration of the premi-
ums, but the major figure—I would, say
almost the total—is related to the fact that
payments are being made into the group sur-
gical medical plan in respect of public ser-
vants living in provinces that have not yet
adopted Medicare.

29023—2

Senator O’Leary (Antigonish-Guysborough):
I would accept that. The main portion of this
$6 million is not in for that other purpose
that was mentioned. I did not think so but I
did not know what portion. That is the large
portion.

Mr. Cloutier: You are quite right, senator.

Senator Kinley: There is one question
about education. Sometimes we compare with
other countries as to the amount we spend on
research. In the Estimates we are talking
about this morning, there is reference to so
much being paid to universities. My question
is, how much does industry contribute or do,
in research, in Canada?

I think industry does a lot but that it is
disguised in the income tax payments and
dealt with in that way. It would not be in the
Estimates, would it? You have no knowledge
of how much industry pays in respect of
research?

Mr. Reisman: I think that is quite right, sir.
The figures are available for the expenditures
by industry for research and development,
but they would not appear in the Estimates.

Senator Kinley: It is a feature of income
tax, and it is disguised in that they do not
give credit for what they do. That is the
point.

Mr. Re‘sman: Something does appear. If
you want to know about those programs
operated by the federal Government to sup-
port research and development in industry
you can find some clues in these Estimates.
For example, if you look at the Estimates
relating to the Department of Industry you
will find that there are at least four pro-
grams which involve payments by way of
subventions or by way of support to industry
to engage in research and development.
They are all listed here. There are, of course,
many other programs. For example, Atomic
Energy of Canada Limited, through its con-
tracting arrangements, enables industry to
conduct a very substantial level of research
and development at the federal expense,
because the contract is paid for through a
federal agency. This gets pretty complicated
to listen to, but I expect that Senator
Lamontagne’s committee on scientific re-
search has had a good deal of that evidence
submitted to it.

Senator Kinley: I have had some experi-
ence in this, and I wanted to get that on the
record so that it would be generally known
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what industry does contribute to research in
this country.

There is another question about medicare
that is very interesting. Everybody is talking
about medicare but nobody seems to know
how much it is going to cost the country. I
think, if we look, we will find that organized
industry generally in Canada has social ser-
vices equal to or-even better in some cases
than medicare. We are getting into the field
of the needy in medicare and perhaps it gets
us down to this matter that we are talking
about so much now: “politicking.” After all,
we are only shifting from, for the most part,
insurance control to Government control, and
it is going to come to the point where every-
body will be in the same boat. You know that
in industry they have to go hunting for their
business, but with medicare you do not. And
when you do not have to go hunting for your
business the cost should be lower.

The only experience of medicare that I
know of is in Saskatchewan where they have
tried both methods, and it would be very
interesting to know what they have done. I
think it would be well, Mr. Chairman, if we
could have an analysis of how much more
this is going to cost the people of Canada. For
my purposes, unless our unions think that
anything extra belongs to them instead of
coming back to the country, I would say that
we do not worry much about it because we
do not think it will be any higher, or much
higher, and it will take in the needy people of
Canada who are not in the picture now.
There is a real need there. So I think, Mr.
Chairman, that at a future meeting we might
analyse this medicare to see what it is really
going to cost the people of Canada in taxes
over and above the money they pay now.
That is all I have to say about that.

Mr. Reisman: Perhaps I can make one or
two observations. First, in connection with
next year’s Estimates, which will likely come
down some time in February, there will be
an estimate for the cost of medicare for the
next fiscal year which will be a good deal
more interesting and, I hope, more complete
than what you have before you now. I say
that because more provinces will be in it.

Senator Kinley: You have got $35 million
here, you said at the start.

Mr. Reisman: That is right.
Senator Kinley: In your Estimates?

Mr. Reisman: That only affects two prov-
inces: British Columbia and Saskatchewan.

Senator Kinley: Those are the two that
came in.

‘Mr, Reisman: That is right. By the time we
get to next year’s Estimates there will be a
good deal more information and, I expect, a
much higher figure. Perhaps this committee
will wish to examine that in some detail then,
and perhaps it will be able to determine what
the relative costs were of handling medicare
services by this device than by the previous
arrangement.

Senator Kinley: It will be interesting to
know how much it is going to cost British
Columbia and how much Saskatchewan will
have to pay and how much extra it is going
to cost industry. Thank you.

The Chairman: Are there any other ques-
tions? Senator Grosart?

Senator Grosart: I will yield to Senator
Isnor.

The Chairman: There is no desire to cut
the questions off. It is only as a matter of
courtesy that I call your attention to the fact
that the Standing Committee on Transport
and Communications has scheduled a meeting
at 11.30 in this room and that we do generally
try to suit their convenience. Of course, so far
as this committee is concerned, we are a con-
tinuing committee and we will be continuing
to discuss these matters.

Now, Senator Grosart yields to Senator
Isnor.

Senator Isnor: Mr. Chairman, because of
the general public’s interest in our net deficit
or surplus each year, as the case may be, I
was wondering if we could have a table put
on record showing the interest rates for each
year covering a period of perhaps five years
for each year and showing the net cost as to
our net payments.

Mr. Reisman: I believe we can provide
that. As I understand it, what you would like
to see for the past five years is the level of
the public debt and the total interest pay-
ments in respect of that debt, from which
can be established what the average interest
rate is on the public debt. If I am not mis-
taken, those figures are published in the
public accounts.

Senator Isnor: Just for one year, though.

Mr. Reisman: For one year at a time.
I can see no difficulty in making those ﬁ’gg:ess
available for the five years. We will put them
together and submit them to the committee,
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Senator Isnor: Can we be given those when
they are supplied, Mr. Chairman? The second
request I had was for information concerning
the increase of all salaries for the same
period.

The Chairman: In total volume, senator?

Senator Isnor: The total volume of salary
increases, yes.

Mr. Reisman: I want to make sure that I
understand your question, Senator Isnor.
What I understand you would like to know is
what part of federal expenditures have been
allocated to the payment of salaries for the
past five years.

Senator Isnor: Yes.

Mr. Reisman: We will make that available,
sir.

Senator Isnor: That will show the increases
for each year.

Mr. Reisman: Yes. It will not show
increases in rates but it will show the abso-
lute increases from one year to the next.

Senator Isnor: The gross increases.

Mr. Reisman: Gross, yes.

The Chairman: It should, then, I take it,
Senator Isnor, be related to the number of
employees.

Senator Isnor: -Well, that would be an

added feature.

The Chairman: We already have in the
Estimates each year, senator, a statement
showing the total staff and total wages paid,
and it is a matter of bringing those together.

Senator Isnor: We have that information
for one year only.

Mr. Reisman: Yes. We will make that avail-
able for the five years, sir.

Senator Isnor: Thank you.

The Chairman: Thank you, Senator Isnor.
Senator Grosart.

Senator Grosart: I would like to ask if Mr.
Reisman will be back at our next meeting.

The Chairman: I cannot say as to the next
meeting, but we would certainly welcome
him at any time and we will see what his
plans are and what our own plans are.

13

Senator Grosari: In due course I would like
to ask some specific questions about depart-
mental estimates. Perhaps I could start with
the National Arts Centre. It appears to have
the distinction of being one of the eight
expenditures for departments and services
that are asking for less money this year. It is
asking for a mere $1 million. What is the total
expenditure to date on the National Arts
Centre?

Mr. Reisman: I would prefer, sir, if you
will allow me to take that question on notice
and submit an answer in writing. I do not
have that information in front of me and I do
not think we would get that answer out of the
Estimates for this year, because, as you
know, expenditures have been incurred over
a period of four or five years or perhaps even
longer. I am sure we can get a detail on that
for you. If I am not mistaken, I saw a detail
cross my desk on that just the other day.

Mr. Cloutier: It is available.
Mr. Reisman: It is available.

Senator Grosart: My question arises out of
this figure of $1 million for this year, which
does not give me the picture I would like to
have of the National Arts Centre.

Mr. Reisman: It seems quite modest.

Senator Grosart: The second question
relates to the C.B.C. Concerning their meth-
ods of bookkeeping, are we still giving the
C.B.C. money to pay back interest on so-
called loans?

Mr. Reisman: Yes, we are, sir.

Senator Grosart: Is there any consideration
being given to making the C.B.C. accounting
a little more realistic with respect to so-called
loans?

Mr. Reisman: I would not like to comment
on the relative realism of the different tech-
niques of accounting, but I can tell you that
an examination is underway right at this time
in connection with the accounting methods
and financial techniques for handling the
C.B.C. budget.

Senator Grosari: Is there a particular rea-
son for segregating the department’s operat-
ing expenditures and the capital expend-
itures in the Estimates?

Mr. Reisman: Well, if I am not mistaken,
this is required by parliament, but quite
apart from that it is a breakdown that does
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have significance. If the distinction were not
made we would probably get questions such
as, can you tell us how much is for capital
and how much is for operating.

Senator Grosari: That, of course, is a spe-
cific question; whether these so-called loans
to the C.B.C. should be carried as loans. It
seems unrealistic to me, as they are never
going to be paid back. It raises the whole
question of the presentation of the Estimates
because we have been told over and over
again by our predecessor that a very definite
attempt has been made to make the presenta-
tion of the Estimates a little more under-
standable to the average person. I believe
this is happening

The Chairman: Perhaps we should have Dr.
Davidson back with his new hat on.

Mr. Reisman: I was going to say that from
the experience he gained as Secretary of the
Board, he is a very formidable figure as
President of the C.B.C. and I am sure you
would find him a very interesting witness
with respect to this specific question.

The Chairman: Are there any other ques-
tions? I am sure on your behalf you would
like me to convey our thanks to Mr. Reisman
and to Dr. Davidson, who had to leave. We
could not have had anyone better to take his
place than Mr. Reisman, and if he would be
good enough to come back again before us
when we need his services, I am sure he will
be very welcomed, as he has been very wel-
come. Thank you.

Mr, Reisman: Thank you very much, Mr.
Chairman.

The committee adjourned.




First Session—Twenty-eighth Parliament
1968

THE SENATE OF CANADA

PROCEEDINGS
OF THE
STANDING COMMITTEE

FINANCE

The Honourable T. D’ARCY LEONARD, Chairman

No. 2

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 21st, 1968

Second Proceedings on The Estimates, Revised Estimates
and Supplementary Estimates (A),

laid before Parliament for the fiscal year ending 31st March, 1969.

WITNESSES:

A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada; H. E. Hayes, Director,
Office of the Auditor General.

ROGER DUHAMEL, F.R.S.C.
QUEEN’S PRINTER AND CONTROLLER OF STATIONERY
OTTAWA, 1968

29025—1



THE STANDING COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

7“The Honourable T. D’Arcy Leonard, Chairman

The Honourable H. de M. Molson, Deputy Chairman

The Honourable Senators:

Aird

Aseltine ;
Beaubien (Bedford)

Beaubien (Provencher)
Bélisle

Benidickson

Burchill

Choquette

Connolly (Halifax North)

Connolly (Ottawa West)
Croll

Denis
Desruisseaux
Dessureault
Everett
Farris
Gélinas
Giguére
Grosart
Haig
Hayden

Hays

Isnor
" Kinley
- Leonard

MacKenzie

Méthot

Molson

O’Leary (Antigonish-Guysborough)
Paterson

Pearson

Phillips

Quart

Rattenbury

Roebuck

Savoie

Smith (Queens-Shelburne)

" Thorvaldson

Vaillancourt

--Welch. -

Willis
Yuzyk—(42).

Ex officio members: Flynn and Martin.




ORDERS OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday,
October 1, 1968:

“With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator Martin, P.C., moved, seconded by the
Honourable Senator Beaubien (Prowvencher):

That the Standing Committee on Finance be authorized to examine
and report upon the expenditures proposed by the Estimates and the
Revised Estimates laid before Parliament for the fiscal year ending 31st
March, 1969, in advance of Bills based on the said Estimates and Revised
Estimates reaching the Senate;

That the Committee be empowered to send for persons, papers and
records, to print its proceedings upon the said Estimates and Revised
Estimates and to sit during adjournments of the Senate; and

That the papers and evidence received and taken on the Estimates
for the fiscal year ending 31st March, 1969, in the preceding session be
referred to the Committee.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday, No-
vember 19th, 1968:

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator Martin, P.C., moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator McDonald:

That the Standing Committee on Finance be authorized to examine
and report upon the expenditures set out in the Supplementary Esti-
mates (A) laid before Parliament for the fiscal year ending the 31st
March, 1969; and

That the Committee be empowered to send for persons, papers and
records and to print its proceedings upon the said Supplementary Esti-
mates (A).

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

ROBERT FORTIER,
Clerk of the Senate.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, November 21st, 1968.

(3)

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Finance
met this day at 10.00 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Leonard (Chairman), Aseltine, Beaubien
(Bedford), Connolly (Ottawa West), Croll, Desruisseaux, Everett, Giguére,
Grosart, Haig, Isnor, Molson, Roebuck, Thorvaldson, Welch and Willis. (16)

The Estimates, Revised Estimates and Supplementary Estimates (A), laid
before Parliament for the fiscal year ending 31st March, 1969, were considered.

The following witnesses were heard:

A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada.
H. E. Hayes, Director, Office of the Auditor General.

Several aspects of the Estimates were discussed, particularly the cost-
shared programs and the proposed new form of the Estimates.

At 11.00 a.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chairman.
ATTEST:

Frank A. Jackson,
Clerk of the Committee.
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THE SENATE
STANDING COMMITTEE ON FINANCE
EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Thursday, November 21, 1968.

The Standing Committee on Finance, to which
was referred the Estimates laid before Parliament
for the fiscal year ending 31st March, 1969, met
this day at 9.30 a.m.

Senator T. D’Arcy Leonard (Chairman) in
the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, it is 9.30
and we have a quorum. I call the meeting to order.

It is not necessary for me to introduce to you our
witness today. We have with us Mr. A. M. Hender-
son, the Auditor General, also known as the “watch
dog” of the public’s money. We welcome him back.
As Auditor General he has, of course, responsibility
for reporting upon the expenditures and the public
accounts, but, in addition, he is also very much
concerned with the Estimates, and it is the Estim-
ates, of course, that have been referred rather than
the public accounts. Before I ask Mr. Henderson
to proceed to make his statement I should mention
that he has with him Mr. Harold Hayes, from his
office.

I call the attention of the committee to the fact
that the Senate this week referred to us Supple-
mentary Estimates (A), so that in addition to
the Revised Estimates we have also Supplementary
Estimates (A) before us. However, those supple-
mentary Estimates amount to only $84,000, which
is quite a welcome change from the amounts usually
contained in supplementary estimates.

Senator Grosart: It is an all-time record.

The Chairman: Yes, and they are concerned
mostly with the Estimates of the Clerk of the
House of Commons, which represent some $81,000
out of a total of $84,000. Although we have no
specific evidence on the point yet, I am inclined
to think that this refers to additional staff being
taken on in the House of Commons in connection
with their committee work, which is being expanded
and extended. This is something that I think the
Senate will have to consider in due course.

With those opening remarks, and unless some
senator has another suggestion to make, I would
like now to ask Mr. Henderson if he would speak
to the committee.

Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General:
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I should like, first of all,
to introduce one of my directors, Mr. Harold Hayes,
C.A., who is with me today, and who is largely
responsible for putting many of these notes on this
subject together. I hope that I may be permitted
to ask him to reply to some of the questions.

Once again, honourable senators, it is a particular
pleasure for me to come before you today. I notice
that this committee has had only one meeting this
session, which was held rather more than a month
ago—on October 17, I think, Mr. Chairman—
when you were looking over the main Estimates for
1968-69 and the Revised Estimates for the same
year which were tabled on September 25 last.

The Public Accounts Committee of the House
of Commons itself has held only two meetings
during this first session of the 28th Parliament.
The first was held on November 7, and the second
on Tuesday last, November 19. You may be in-
terested to know that at its meeting this morning
at 11 o’clock this committee will be hearing the
President of the Treasury Board present his new
Estimates proposals. As you know, these are
designed to present the Estimates of the depart-
ments on a program and activity basis with a
view to having this ultimately replace the present
objects of expenditure basis.

This is, of course, of particular interest to me—
very considerable interest, in fact—because if
the proposals are approved by the committee
they will necessitate changes in many of the ac-
counting procedures, as well as in a number of the
resulting financial statements because it is the
form of the estimates which determines in very
large measure how the subsequent accounting
for the expenditure is reported in the Public Ac-
counts.

I presume the President of the Treasury Board
will be before this committee in due course.

15
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In the area of my own work I would like to
point out to you that my 1966 and 1967 reports
to the House of Commons have not yet been
considered by its Public Accounts Committee.
They were both referred to the committee again
by the house on October 29. In my capacity as
the adviser to this committee I faced the prospect
of tackling these two years right at this time with
considerable trepidation. These are rather difficult
days for the audit office, not only because of the
heavy work load we are handling—which, may
I say, includes the United Nations audit round the
world—but also because we are in the midst of
prepararing my 1968 report for the House of
Commons, a task which will occupy us full time
until at least the middle of January next year
at the very earliest, and probably later than that.

As you know, we continue to be short staffed,
and seriously so at the senior level. The fact that
three of my directors shortly go on retirement
does not help this. I therefore suggested to the
Public Accounts Committee that, instead of
endeavouring to tackle not only certain paragraphs
that they left outstanding in my 1964 and 1965
reports, as well as my full reports for 1966 and
1967, the committee might cut its losses and delay
its examination of any of my reports until I submit
my 1968 one to the house. In order to facilitate
this I said I would take special pains with the
1968 report to update all of the situations which
have continued in 1964, 1965, 1966 and 1967,
so that reference can be made when the committee
is discussing each paragraph in my 1968 report
to the previous years’ detail.

I explained to them very clearly that this proce-
dure would of course mean they would not cover
what we might describe as the ‘“single occasion”
situation contained in the reports of these years
unless time should permit, but that they would
have the advantage of tackling the next report
when it is freshly off the press and tabled in the
house. The Public Accounts Committee has now
decided to adopt this course of action, so that
at the present time it is confining itself to examin-
ing the follow-up report I gave it on November 7
which sets forth the 50 odd recommendations
made over the past two years by the committee
which have not yet been implemented or dealt
with by executive action.

I mention this background because I have
been and continue to be very interested in the
progress made by your Finance Committee in
seeking to pursue its study of government finances
and accounting, and also because of the fact that,
I think last January, the Public Accounts of
Canada for 1967 were referred to this committee.
I think it was on March 27 that the assistant
government house leader, on moving second

reading of Appropriation Bill No. 7, said that
an important point remained, namely that of
dealing with the Auditor General’s report which
had been tabled with the interim supply bill
and the main Estimates. He said that while the
Estimates were referred to the Standing Committee
on Finance, for one reason or another the Auditor
General’s report was not. In his opinion the com-
mittee had jurisdiction to discuss the Estimates
and appropriation bill for protection of the tax-
payers’ money, and he thought it could also look
into how the money is spent by departments and
agencies of the Government by referring to the
report of the Auditor General.

It seems that the last time the Auditor General’s
report was referred to a committee of the Senate
was in 1919. The house leader went on to say
he hoped I might be asked to come before the
Finance Committee, when it could deal with
this problem. About a month after this took place
one of the senators, I noticed, complained that
my report was always addressed to the House
of Commons without any reference to the Senate
or to Parliament. I would hasten to explain here
that this is simply because the report is submitted
pursuant to the requirements of section 70 of
the Financial Administration Aect, and no mention
is made in that Act under Part VII that the Auditor
General has any responsibility to transmit his
report, to the Senate.

However, I may tell you that one of the recom-
mendations of the Public Accounts Committee
made in 1966, which is now being brought forward
by the committee members, based on discussions
as recently as the last meeting, has to do with
the desirability of there being a separate act of
Parliament designed to spell out the independence
of the Auditor General on a clearer and more
workmanlike basis. I suggest to you that this
might be the place where this particular commission
could be rectified, and I shall watch that as the
discussions proceed on the present draft, which
the Public Accounts Committee commissioned
me and my legal advisers to prepare. This was
done and completed in February, 1967. When it
comes up I would certainly hope it might be
discussed right here in this committee.

One matter that came up at your last meeting,
which you will probably wish to discuss with
me this morning, had to do with shared cost pro-
grams. I have some notes on this and will be happy
to speak about it. However, before doing so perhaps
I should speak about some things connected with
the Kstimates, because I believe this is really
your prime concern, Mr. Chairman. As I have
said before, you may wish to discuss first the form
and content of the Estimates and review the basic
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principles behind the Estimates and the Govern-
ment’s proposed spending, and its presentation
to Parliament and the people.

It seems to me that parliamentary approval,
like approval of any proposed spending by the
people who have to pay for it, should be before the
expenditure is made. I think the importance of
this is demonstrated by the present discussions
going on in the various House of Commons com-
mittees now studying the Estimates. In this
connection you may want to refer to the outstanding
recommendations of the Public Accounts Committee
which are contained in Appendix I of my 1967
report, which you have. In item 54 at the foot of
page 245, you will note that the committee con-
sidered it

. unfortunate that the parliamentary rules
do not provide for immediate consideration
of the Estimates after they are presented to
the House so that the proposed spending can be
approved and interim supply would not be
required so extensively. It feels that the
rules could and should be changed in this
regard in order not only to strengthen par-
liamentary control of public funds but to
give the Executive the clear mandate it
deserves in the discharge of its heavy re-
sponsibilities.

This is one of the 50 or so recommendations on
which there has never been a response or action.
Perhaps this is something that will come when
these new rules of the house are brought forward
for discussion, but this was the committee’s own
view of the matter.

Estimates of the size of those of our country—
which, I do not have to tell you, have more than
doubled in the last five or six years—should in
my view always be laid before Parliament in the
clearest possible manner. I should like to give
you what I think are four good basic reasons
for this, although there are plenty of others that
I am sure you would want to add.

One is the direct relation of the proposed spending
to the taxes which have to be levied to pay for it.
The second is the complex nature of so many of
today’s big spending programs and the adminis-
trative procedures surrounding them. The third is
the mounting pressures and demands today on the
time of Parliament. Finally there is the fact that
as representatives of the people, parliamentarians
called upon to approve such Estimates can scarcely
be expected to be trained in interpreting all the
financial complexities and consequences which
exist in so many of today’s vast government under-
takings.
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It seems to me that considerations such as these
impose special, or if you like additional, responsibi-
lities on the executive government to present its
spending Estimates clearly and concisely and as
fully descriptive as possible, all other things being
equal. I think this is one of the tests you will want
to apply to the proposals being put forward by the
Treasury Board to change the form of the Estimates
to a program and activity basis.

I have repeatedly been stressing in my reports to
the House of Commons the importance of these
points, including the importance of the Estimates
being presented to Parliament in the clearest manner
possible so that Parliament may have a maximum of
information, not a minimum, but a maximum in its
exercise of controlling public expenditure. On this
point you may be interested to note there are two
recommendations of the Public Accounts Committee
which have been awaiting implementation by the
Executive for nearly five years. One of these calls for
brief notes to be given in the Estimates or in the
details of services explaining the proposed major
increases being called for in the size of establish-
ments.

In view of the growth already referred to in
many of these establishments, the cost of which, as
you would know, is one of the largest single items
of public expenditure today, I believe that such
brief explanatory notes would be of material assist-
ance to the members of the House of Commons and
the Senate in understanding the reasons for the
large increases in this type of expenditure which
have taken place over the past several years. In its
report, the committee asked that where there was
a significant increase—say 5 per cent or more—in
the number of employees, there be inserted a
sentence or two at the bottom of the page explaining
the reason for the increase.

The other recommendation the committee
made was that supporting financial information
of crown corporations and other public instru-
mentalities should be shown in the details of
services so as to inform the House and the Senate
with respect to the nature of the fiscal requirements
of the crown corporations and other agencies
requiring financing by parliamentary appropri-
ation. A classic example of that as contained in
the Estimates—and I have discussed this before on
this committee, Mr. Chairman—was the boxcar
figure of the C.B.C. which made a single appearance
on an Estimates page. The question was: could
they not have put down the broad or general
areas of spending, perhaps on a comparative basis,
showing how the hundred odd million sought was
reached?

I am happy to tell you it is my understanding
that the President of the Treasury Board will
have something to say on this point when he
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appears before the Public Accounts Committee
later this morning. I am not aware if he has any-
thing to say in regard to explaining the increases
in staff, but I am told he is going to say that the
crown corporations will be tabling this information
in future when they come to Parliament for an
appropriation, which is the basis which I think
we discussed in this committee. So it is rather
like going to your banker. You must show him
why you want the money and give him a reason-
able breakdown. So, for those corporations requiring
appropriations in the future, I hope you will see
this information in the Estimates new book. This
will then have been one of our achievements.

It might be helpful if I bring your attention to
some notes I have on the question of the Estimates
dealt with in my reports in the last two years.
Although the particulars are available in these
reports, perhaps I can just briefly summarize
the points, leaving you to refer to the precise
notes later if you wish to do so. These points are
important in any consideration and discussion
of parliamentary control of public money.

The first of these is paragraph 48 of my 1966
report. You do not have the 1966 one, Mr. Chair-
man. The point does not come up in 1967 because
‘there was no election. This report deals with the
all-important subject of the Governor General’s
special warrants. You will probably have one in
next year’s report with respect to the 1968 election.
As you will perhaps recall, section 28 of the Financial
Administration Act provides for urgent expend-
iture not otherwise provided for while Parliament
is not in session. Subsection (1) of this act is quite
specific:

Where a payment is urgently required
for the public good when parliament is not
in session and there is no other appropriation
pursuant to which the payment may be
made. . .

~ In this note I discussed and showed what made
up a total of some $920 million which was provided
for by five special warrants following the disso-
lution of Parliament on September 8, 1965, in
readiness for the 1965 election.

The Treasury Board did instruct the departments
that each vote and class of payments would require
special consideration in light of section 28 of the
Financial Administration Act. The Board also
advised the departments to review and take into
account criticisms which I had made in my Reports
on this subject since 1963. The Board’s general
instructions were supplemented by specific guide-
lines for determining items which might. properly
be provided for by special warrant and the appro-
priate amount to be provided in each special
warrant for each acceptable item. Unfortunately
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these guidelines were not always followed in: the
preparation of the special warrants and in  this
note I list a number of items provided for which
did not meet the test of being ‘“urgently required
for the public good”’ as required by section 28 of
the Act. For example, the special warrants, in two
cases, provided a total of over $4,100,000 for
advances to Atomic Energy of Canada Limited
to finance certain construction. The fact of the
matter was that the advances were not only not
required because interim supply had already pro-
vided over $7 million, but some $400,000 of that
amount remained unspent six months later. This
whole problem was first drawn to attention in
1962 and it was when he appeared before the
Public Accounts Committee in 1965 that the
Secretary of the Treasury Board, our good friend
Dr. George Davidson, undertook to consider the
desirability of enlarging on the special Governor
General’s warrant provision in the Financial
Administration Act in order to clarify its applica-
tion. He said he would study the whole situation.
However, in a quick review of this on Tuesday,
it appeared that nothing has been done, and the
Public Accounts Committee is thinking of forming
a subcommittee to try to wrestle with the problem
itself.

This is a very old piece of legislation which
could very well do with being subjected to a
thoroughgoing discussion in order to bring things
more up to date.

I might refer now to paragraph 54 of the 1967
report, which you have in front of you and this
is pertinent in view of the proposals which you
are going to be asked to consider with respect
to the new program budgeting put forward by the
Treasury Board.

This paragraph 54 of my 1967 Report deals
with the revised vote pattern. This has to do with
proposals made by the Treasury Board for intro-
duction into the main Estimates of 1964-65 which
were approved by the Public Accounts Committee
subject to certain improvements which I had
suggested to them, which the Treasury Board
staff agreed to carry out. As the examples show in
this case, the vote pattern actually adopted differed
in a number of instances from the pattern which
had been considered by the committee.

In this note, I am continuing to give details
of the more important variations, along with
examples of transfers of funds between services.
This would not have been possible under the
previous vote pattern and therefore is a weakening
of parliamentary control.

Senator Grosart: Mr. Henderson, what is
the meaning of “services” in that context—the
transfer between services?
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Mr. Henderson: The army, navy, air force—
is that the National Defence vote?

Senator Grosart: Yes.

Mr. Henderson: Yes. That particular vote
to which I am referring is so large nowadays,
that in 1966-67 this single vote constituted some-
thing like 18 per cent of the country’s total spend-
ing—in one vote.

In 1967, under paragraph 55, I referred at
some length to the contingencies vote. The wording
of this vote has changed over the years. It used
to be Finance Vote No. 15, which we discussed
on more than one oceasion, Mr. Chairman, in
this committee.

However, in the Estimates you have before you
now, the vote appears under the departmental
heading Treasury Board Vote No. 5. I think you
are familiar with it. The purpose of this vote is to
deal with miscellaneous minor or unforeseen
expenses and to supplement other votes. One of the
principal reasons why other votes need supplement-
ing is unexpected salary requirements resulting from
general salary increases or the filling of vacancies
in the establishment faster than anticipated. By
having such a vote available, the Treasury Board
is able to instruct departments to provide in their
Estimates only for known requirements and not to
include any cushion against unexpected obligations.
Under normal conditions the amount required is not
large but over the past four years the annual pro-
vision has been substantial. In 1964-65 it was $46
million; in 1965-66 it was $71 million; in 1966-67 it
was $110 million; and 1967-68 it was $45 million.

The Public Accounts Committee expressed con-
cern that such large amounts were placed in the
hands of the Executive for the supplementing of
the appropriations, and recommended to the
House of Commons in March 1967 that, while it did
not believe there should be any change in the
Treasury Board’s procedure whereby it is the
agency which determines the Government’s overall
cash requirements in stated areas—for example,
salary increases—once this determination is com-
pleted and the individual departmental needs
established, the committee believes the additional
amount required by each department should be
made the subject of a supplementary Estimate
prepared by the department concerned for sub-
mission to Parliament for its consideration and
appropriation in the usual manner—so that you
have a chance to consider it.

I am also concerned about practices being followed
which simply supplement parliamentary appropria-
tions. In other words, parliamentary control over
expenditure is weakened when appropriations
containing provision for the spending of revenue
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received during the year may be supplemented,
without parliamentary authority, when the revenue
received is in excess of the revenue estimated.

A number of cases were cited, the principal
example being the Department of National Defence
appropriations—the one to which Senator Grosart
referred.

The wording here provided authority to spend
revenue received during the year from the sale of
military clothing, assistance rendered to the United
Nations, and charges made pursuant to regulations
under the National Defence Act. The estimated
amount of this revenue together with the estimated
amount recoverable from repayment for material
supplied or services rendered was shown in the
Estimates as $60 million, the amount appropriated
being the net of the estimated expenditure and
estimated revenue. The revenue credited to the
vote during the year and completely expended
exceeded this, with the result that the departmental
appropriation was supplemented by this amount.

It continues to be my view that to restore parlia-
mentary control expenditure in these cases, three
figures, namely estimated gross expenditure, estim-
ated revenue and net amount appropriated, should
appear in the appropriation wording itself and the
amount of revenue used to supplement the net
amount appropriated should be limited to the
amount of estimated revenue shown in the appro-
priation. 3

There is generally no disagreement with this, but
unfortunately there is no action to support it yet.

Senator Everett: Mr. Henderson, an example
is given here of the defence services. Does that
just refer to one of the three items listed?

Mr. Henderson: Yes.

We come now, Mr. Chairman to the shared
cost programs. I have some material here in readi-
ness to deal with any questions which members
may have on that, and I would be happy to do so.

If T deal may with Senator Everett’s question,
at the bottom of page 23 of the 1967 report you

will find the wording of these appropriations.
Could I have the question again?

Senator Everett: It refers to defence services,
and I wondered if that was the net of all three
items mentioned above; that is, sale to military
personnel, assistance rendered to the United
Nations and charges made.

Mr. Henderson: They were given the right
under this vote to spend what they could recover
from these sources.

Senator Everett: Right.



Mr. Henderson: And they exceeded the amount
that was shown in the supporting details, but
of course they went on spending because of the
wording of the vote, whereas I feel they should
come back to the house, when they exceed in
spending, so it can be discussed.

Senator Everett: You are saying that that
was $1.3 million?

Mr. Henderson: In this case $1,309,000 was
the excess. The figure is not large or important,
perhaps, but the principle we are dealing with
is, because this is also in a number of other depart-
ments as well, such as the Veterans’ Affairs.

Senator Everett: That is the result of not
properly estimating.

Mr. Henderson: It is difficult to estimate
revenue, I must say in fairness, but if they put
the three figures in you would have something
to stay with.

Senator Molson: National parks would come
in there.

Mr. Henderson: Yes. Now, we will take a
look at the shared cost programs and, if you will
look up my 1967 report, paragraph 165 on page 96,
you will be quite interested in light of the discussion
you had with the Treasury Board officials when
they were before you. You will see that I have
a paragraph there dealing with federal-provincial
shared-cost programs, and I would direct your
attention first of all to the second paragraph,
which is the kind of thing I have been saying.

In our 1966 Report...we expressed the
belief that it would be informative to the
House if a detailed summary of the numerous
federal-provincial shared-cost programs were
more readily available, which would show
the federal share of the costs on an annual
and cumulative basis, and suggested that
this be shown as an appendix in the Public
Accounts.

There has never been any action here because there
has never been any Public Accounts Committee to
consider it. I keep bringing it forward each year.
There should be some place where there is a sum-
mary of all these shared-cost programs. In the
absence of such a place, I give it here, and this is
the only place you will find it.

You will notice that whereas in 1965-66 there
were 87 such programs at a cost of $916,037,000, in
1966-67 there were 97 programs at a cost of
$1,139,882,000. You may wonder what the figure is
going to be for 1967-682 We happen to be working
on that right now and I can tell you that there are
gome 95 programs and that the cost will be
$1,328,000,000. It continues to go up.

Standing Commitiee

On page 97 you may see the listing by depart-
ments of the major programs costing more than $10
million. This is the bulk of it here. We shall be
giving a similar listing of the performance during
1967-68 when my next report comes out.

According to some hasty notes I put together on
this, there are some 14 departments, agencies and
Crown corporations responsible for the initiation of
these, or under whose aegis they take place. You
might be interested in knowing who they are and
perhaps the number of programs they administer
would be of interest to you. Actually, they are all of
a different type as you go along. In some cases they
are just for one province; in some cases they are for
five provinces; in some cases they are for all prov-
inces and in some cases they are fixed money—the
federal amount, is fixed. In other cases you have the
open ended variety such as the Minister of Finance
was talking about.

So I am rather in your hands, Mr. Chairman, on
that.

Perhaps this gives you a bird’s-eye view of this
situation.

The Chairman: I believe Senator Grosart had
something to ask you about that.

Senator Grosart: How many of these programs
are open ended programs of the type that the
Minister of Finance was talking about?

Mr. Henderson: The short answer, Senator
Grosart, is that there are probably six or eight of
the largest ones in that area.

The Chairman: Have you any idea of the total
volume, for example, in your 1966-67 report?

Mr. Henderson: If you look at the list on page
97 you will see that one is hospital insurance and
diagnostic services, which has gone up from approxi-
mately $318 million to roughly $396 million, and in
1968 it will be over $400 million.

The Chairman: I believe a good deal of technical
and vocational training is on a shared-cost basis, is
it not?

Mr. Henderson: That was roughly $219 million
in 1966-67. It appears to have gone down for
1967-68; it is $204 million now. The Canada
Assistance Plan payments just got started in 1966-
67. This new arrangement is perhaps the worst one
because although it is only $10,496,000 for 196667,
it will be $226 million in 1967-68.

Senator Molson: The opting out of Quebec in

theee. programs in a sense distorts these figures,
does it not?

_ Mr. Henderson: As I say in the paragraph
immediately below those figures, the expenditures
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shown are direct costs only and do not include any
administrative expenses incurred by the federal
Government. The total expenditures do not include
tax abatements and tax equalization payments.

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): I should
know the answer to this question, but are most of
these programs statutory or are they budgetary?

Mr. Henderson: Most of them are statutory,
Senator Connolly. That is another problem the
minister faces in trying to tie down the cost, you see.

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): Yes.

Mr. Henderson: There is another large point
you might like to note under the Secretary of
State, and that is post secondary education, which
comes in this year as $108 million.

Senator Grosart: Mr. Henderson. in how
many of these large programs is there no federal
accounting of the provincial figures?

Mr. Henderson: That varies. Before the
payments are made by Canada the agreements
generally provide that the provincial auditor of
the province is to sign it, and attest to its correct-
ness, and it is paid on that basis. In a number
of cases the Audit Services Branch of the Comp-
troller of the Treasury, or my own office—we try
to spread the work between us—will go into the
techniques employed by the provincial auditor,
and in some cases where he is not able to give
it adequate coverage we will do it. There are
very few cases where it is just paid cold, so to
speak. The basis is the agreement that Canada
has entered into which has a proviso in it that
it is to keep the books open. The winter works
program is one of these, as you know.

Senator Grosart: That is one I was thinking of.

Mr. Henderson: You know what I have had
to say to the house on that. We have discussed
it in this committee. Unemployment assistance
is another.

With respect to Unemployment Assistance,
I have been saying for years that the act is so
ambiguous that it is impossible either to see equity
in the payments or for us to check them properly.
We are hoping something will take place in the
Canada Assistance direction. This is just getting
started, and I will have something to say about
that in my report this year.

It might give you some idea, if I were to give
a rundown of the Department of Health and
Welfare. Old Age Assistance is audited by the
provincial auditors. It is audited by National
Health and Welfare and checked by them, and
audited by my office. The Comptroller of the
Treasury does not come into that. The same
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situation prevails with blind persons’ allowances,
disabled persons’ allowances, and unemployment,
assistance. Four of us are trying to check it, in
my case unsuccessfully. But the provincial auditors
look to see what the provincial Government
should have out of it. With welfare grants the
situation is the same except that for some reason
or other the Department of National Health and
Welfare does not operate on that. Fitness and
Energy Sports—there are three of us checking
that. Hospital Insurance, the same; Health Grants,
the same; Hospital Construction Grants, the
same; Health Resources, the same; Mental Retard-
ation Grants, Disabled Persons’ Advisory Services,
and Blind Persons’ Treatment.

The Chairman: What will be the situation with
respect to medicare?

Mr. Henderson : That will depend on the regula-
tions. I do not think anything has been established
on that.

Senator Thorvaldson: Looking at the figure
for unemployment assistance of $143 million in
1966-67, I take it that that is entirely outside the
unemployment insurance fund?

Mr. Henderson: Yes. This has proven a difficult
matter. There is a very substantial discussion of
this in this report, if you are interested in it. You
have the situation where there is a large number of
chronic unemployables. We face a problem there.

Senator Thorvaldson: This expenditure is not
involved in the regular unemployment insurance?

Mr. Henderson: It is quite separate from
unemployment insurance fund administration.

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): Could the
witness say what the level of the unemployment
insurance fund is approximately? How does it
stand?

Mr. Henderson: That would necessitate refer-
ence to the March 31, 1968 figures and subsequently
and I do not have that with me. I have only my
1967 report, that is up to March 31, 1967. The full
picture of it is there up to that point. How it stands
today would have to be obtained. There have been
questions in the house on this, but I am afraid my
memory is not good at this stage.

Senator Grosart: Following up my earlier
question, are you satisfied that in the audit machin-
ery there is adequate protection in the area of
interpretation of the statutes under which cost-
sharing is established?

Mr. Henderson: Yes.
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Senator Grosart: I am speaking particularly
of the winter works situation where there is a ques-
tion of interpretation of the statute as to whether
any particular project was a winter work within the
meaning of the statute. I think there was some
evidence that certain things have gone far outside
the statute.

- Mr. Henderson: Where that has taken place
I have dealt with the matter in my report to the
house. In the case of the winter works program, as
a result of what I had to say and evidence given
before this committee—I think Mr. Jean Marchand
came before this committee at the time, and I think
the deputy minister came before the Public Ac-
counts Committee—a very genuine effort was made
to clear that situation up. We have made quite a bit
of headway, but we have not cleared it up com-
pletely. The provinces are claiming certain things
for winter works projects which Canada is not
prepared to accept. We will have more to say about
this in my forthcoming report to the house. But at
least we have sought to pinpoint the situation, and
I can only hope that action will be taken to stop
these abuses.

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): In all of
these shared cost programs, is the only protection
the federal authority has the signature of the
provincial auditor? Or do you or the Comptroller
of the Treasury or your officials make checks them-
selves?

Mr. Henderson: We make checks ourselves
providing the covering agreement has given us that
right of access. Not all of them have. But most of
them do now. But we are familiar with the standards
—the work standards and so forth of the provincial
auditors. I am in quite close touch with them all, and
generally speaking we find that they do a pretty
good job. There is one case now which is concerning
me quite a bit because I find there was some mis-
understanding as to what the responsibilities were,
and as a resalt nobody seems to have done any-
thing, and this has concerned me because of a
backlog. However, the performance generally is
satisfactory.

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): Generally
speaking, do you suppose it is right to say that
the administration of these programs is in the
hands of the provincial authorities and really
all the federal authority does, subject to the
certificate of the provincial auditor, is to pay?
Is that so?

Mr. Henderson: Yes.

The Chairman: There may be other questions,
but in the meantime I thought I should call the
attention of the committee to the fact that they
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all should have these forms of revised estimates
which are supplied by way of illustration only
and which show how it is proposed to be done
to set out the estimates. Perhaps some members
of the committee have studied these. I suggest
that all the members of the committee should,
and that we record the fact that we have them
before us, and I think it would be appropriate to
ask Mr. Henderson to make some comment.

Senator Molson: Could we ask who prepared
the examples, Mr. Chairman?

Mr. Henderson: With regard to these drafts,
in the first instance the figures would have been
prepared by the department. You have the Solicitor
General, and I think, Indian Affairs. They would
be prepared by the departments under the guidance
of Treasury Board and in accordance with the
manuals, and so forth, which Treasury Board
has issued. Then Treasury Board has had them
printed up in this format and distributed as ex-
amples, to show the pattern in which they are
going to come.

Senator Molson: I think it is terribly unim-
portant, and I do not want to nit-pick, but I think
one is the Solicitor General's department, and
I looked at it very quickly, and it seems to me
they had the thousands in the wrong place and
they are talking in millions when it should be
thousands.

Mr. Henderson: I have not seen that one
myself. This only came to me on Tuesday, and
I have not had much opportunity of seeing it,
though we have been familiar with the project
for some time.

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): In any
event, the Treasury Board itself has the authority
to give directions as to the form in which the
Estimates shall appear. I take it you recommend,
or the Public Accounts Committee makes recom-
mendations, and if they are accepted then it is
within the authority of Treasury Board, under
the Financial Administration Act, to make such
changes in the form in which the Estimates appear
as may seem to be desirable.

Mr. Henderson: The successive Ministers
of Finance, and now Presidents of Treasury Board,
wish to have the approval of the Public Accounts
Committee of their proposed format. The last
time round on this was in 1963, when the Public
Accounts Committee formed a subcommittee—
that is what I referred to in my talk to you—
because they did not always adhere to their under-
taking in the subsequent years.

That is what has concerned me, this whole
question of how far the people who approve the
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money are prepared to go in the type of explanation
they are to be satisfied with. I think that there
are very important principles at stake here. For
example, I do not know whether you have Indian
Affairs in front of you ...?

- The Chairman: No, I do not think we have,
unless some other members have. I think all we
have are Solicitor General and Department of
Insurance.

Senator Everett: Indian Affairs came in this
morning.

The Chairman: I think some of the members
have not received these as yet, but we will see
that they get them.

Mr. Henderson: In a nutshell, Mr. Chairman,
the sort of thing you have here, the Indian program,
as it is deseribed in this one, is $135 million. The
description of the vote covering that $135 million
is extremely lengthy, taking up about one-third
of a page, in which the various things to be included
thereunder are a matter of six or eight words,
as the case may be, and then there is a semicolon.

You are interested in knowing what additional
information you are getting, what are the activities
of that $135 million. All I have been able to find
are four short headings: Administration; Develop-
ment; Education: Indian Annuities and miscel-
laneous pension (Statutory).

I would have thought it would have been better
to put a cost on each one. That is a great deal
of money, and it says.

Expenses of the program, including expend-
itures on buildings, works, land and equip-
ment on other than federal property;

If that amount could have been broken down
it would have been more satisfactory.

Then the next one.
grants and contributions;

We might want more detail on that.

special payments, including those specified
in the sub-vote titles in the Estimates;

They go right on down, and it is a vast array
of descriptive material. If that were done, you
would be able to form a better judgment and
ask more pointed questions in your discussion.

The Chairman: Is the point really that in
cutting down the number of votes what is im-
portant information is also being left out? Is
that the point really?

Mr. Henderson: In trying to keep this simple,
I would have thought that for an item of $135
million you would want to know what the $135
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million is to cover and have it suitably broken
down. It would be beyond my competence to
approve $135 million unless I knew somethin
of what was in it. :

As a result of what is proposed here—let me
sketch this back for you. In 1963, when Treasury
Board came to the Public Accounts Committee
of the House, one of their points was that
Glassco had said that we had in Canada 450-odd
votes. It was thought we should cut them back,
more like the British practice, so as a result of
that operation in 1963 we came down to 236
votes. This proposal today is going to reduce that
number by something like 100 more. You will
be down to 136 votes, so that it is just 136 votes
you will be asked to pass.

I must concern myself, on behalf of the mem-
bers of the House of Commons and, I would hope,
on behalf of the members of the Senate, in this,
because I want to find the answer. On the surface,
it looks like a lessening of parliamentary control.
Are you prepared to surrender to the Executive
100 opportunities for discussion of items and to
allow the money to be grouped into 136 items?

I think that is a valid question when you realize,
with the spending of today, that this reduction,
which is over 50 per cent, is to take place despite
the fact the revised main Estimates for 1962-63—
that is six years ago—totalled $6 billion, and
the Revised Main Estimates for 1968-69 are
over $10 billion. That is an increase of about
70 per cent. Are you satisfied to see the number
of votes reduced from 236 to 136? That is really
the question, is it not?

Senator Molson: Was not the program in-
tended at some time to set forth the Estimates
in a way so that it might be much easier to under-
stand what the actual programs being carried
out were and how effectively they were being
carried out? Was not that the purpose of the
revised form?

Mr. Henderson: To achieve accountability;
in other words, to hold people responsible.

The Chairman: Yes.

Senator Molson: Yes.

Mr. Henderson: I do not disagree at all with
this concept.

Senator Molson: Is it being achieved?

Mr. Henderson: It has not got started yet.
In the first place, one of the first steps towards
achieving this responsibility is to delegate the
spending authority to the departments, but no
action has been taken yet—nor in the areas of
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pre-audit and commitment control. The depart-
ments are staffed up, but nothing has been done
vet. I think it is proposed to do it, but to do so
will necessitate a change in the Financial Admin-
istration Act. That is how you are ultimately
going to achieve your accountability. I am vitally
concerned with this because, of course, it is going
to increase my work. They have already asked
me to be prepared to increase the scope of my
external audit, as is quite proper. Dr. Davidson
originally suggested this to me some years ago,
and I am holding myself in readiness for when
it takes place. But, the Financial Administration
Act will have to be amended because it imposes
on the Comptroller of the Treasury very definite
responsibilities for this pre-audit work and com-
mitment control. Unless and until that is done,
the department will not have the authority.

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): Subject
to your general comments as you have made
them, Mr. Henderson, do you think, generally
speaking, that the idea of reducing the number
of items in the Estimates, in view of the increasing
load of work that Parliament has to face—

Mr. Henderson: I beg your pardon, senator.
In view of the—what?

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): Consider-
ing the increasing load of work that Parliament
faces, do you think the cutting down of the number
of items in the Estimates is a valid step?

Mr. Henderson: I would want to look closely
at what is going to take place before I answer
that question. We have this, but—

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): I prefaced
my remarks by asking whether you thought this
was a valid step subject to the comments you
have already made about getting further detail.

Mr. Henderson: Well, T think Senator Molson
puts his finger on it when he speaks of the im-
portance of accountability. All of these steps
have to move together. I think there is a field
for very great improvement in the deseription
of the spending and the setting up of the Esti-
mates, so as to give Parliament adequate informa-
tion. Personally, I favour maximum information,
if you know what I mean. I do not mean a lot of
paper, or anything like that, but a maximum
disclosure. There must be this in fairness to the
people who are charged with the responsibility
of approval, and who in turn must account to
the taxpayers.

This may make things much easier administra-
tively for the executive, but I suggest to you that
that should not be the purpose. I think their func-
tion is to service Parliament in this area.
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Senator Molson: Are some of the departments
undergoing the organizational changes that will be
required if they proceed to the accountability we
are speaking of, as I understand they plan to? I am
referring to the program of deseription and account-
ability, and so on. Are departments being reorgan-
ized at this moment to achieve that purpose?

Mr. Henderson: Indeed they are. I believe I am
correct in saying that this is in a fairly advanced
stage. There have been employed senior financial
advisers in many of the departments—senior
financial officers along the lines that the Glassco
Commissionrecommended. Management consultants
have been brought in in order to assist. There is
direction in that.

I would also suggest to you that it is costing a
good deal of money too. That is one of the reasons
why our overhead—as you know, I have been
speaking in my reports each year about the mount-
ing cost of overhead, and this is something to which
I think one has to direct attention.

You know, I said last year:
It will be recalled that when the Royal Com-
mission concluded its work in 1962-63 the
cost of administrative overhead approximated
$1,000 million.

That is just administrative overhead in terms of
staff needs and office costs—nothing else. It is the
housekeeping. I went on to say:
The comparable figure presently estimated for
1967-68. . .

and this was last year
. is $1,594 million, an increase of almost 60
per cent during the past five years.

Then, because I thought it was important that
Parliament should know, for some years now I
have been putting in Appendix 2 in order to show
the number of employees authorized for depart-
ments, Crown corporations and other instrumen-
talities, and I pointed out that they had increased
by over 18,000 during the last year, bringing the
total increase up to nearly 40,000 people.

Senator Thorvaldson: Did you say 4,000 or
40,000?

Mr. Henderson: There were 40,000 more
people on the payroll since the year ending in 1963.
So, it is pretty hard, it seems to me, to say just
where these savings are coming from in the imple-
mentation of those recommendations.

Senator Thorvaldson: From what page were
you reading, Mr. Henderson?

Mr. Henderson: I think this is on pages 5 and 6
of my report—yes, it is at the bottom of page 5, and
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the top of page 6, under the heading of “Findings of
the Royal Commission on Government Organiza-
tion”’. Over the long haul I presume, in an organiza-
tion like this, you will recoup. That is the ultimate
objective. But, you have to spend money in order
to save money.

Senator Molson: That is what I was going to
ask you about. If these changes are put into effect is
there any prospect that the savings will offset
these additional costs in the intervening years?

Mr. Henderson: I do not think we are going to
know that, Senator Molson, until the years have
rolled by.

Senator Molson: I did ask not whether you
would know it; I asked whether there was any
prospect.

Mr. Henderson: Well, there is always hope.

Senator Isnor: Mr. Chairman, may I go back
to a statement made by Mr. Henderson in reference
to cost-sharing projects. I am in accord with his
thinking that these should be definitely shown in
the Estimates. I feel also that it should be the
responsibility of someone with authority to okay
the projects as coming within the scope of the
federal-provincial scheme before they are under-
taken. Is there any such responsibility at the present
time, Mr. Henderson?

Mr. Henderson: There is our ministerial
responsibility. The minister at the head of each
of the departments is responsible for its programs.
You have, under our Government organization
here, and the principles of ministerial responsibility,
Central Mortgage and Housing Corporation admin-
istering one, the Department of Health and
Welfare, the Department of Manpower and Immi-
gration, Emergency Measures, and so forth.

Senator Isnor: No, those are not the projects
I had in mind.

Mr. Henderson: That is the old Department
of Labour.

Senator Isnor: I beg your pardon?

Mr. Henderson: It is the Department of
Manpower and Immigration now, is it not? It
used to be the Department of Citizenship and
Immigration.

The Chairman: Your point is that before
some particular municipal work can go ahead
there should be some specific approval from the
federal Government?

Senator Isnor: That is right, Mr. Chairman.
29025—2
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Mr. Henderson: That is something that is
rather hard for me to comment on, Senator Isnor,
because that is part of the policy, shall we say,
of the minister responsible for the negotiations.
I think it makes complete sense, but it may be
that the provinces are not prepared to go that far.
I am not in a position really to be of much help
to you on that.

The Chairman: From a factual standpoint,
has he that power of discretion now?

Mr. Henderson: I would think so, because
so many of these arrangements are subjected to a
contract between the parties—a working contract
under which the auditing is defined, and also the
powers of the parties.

Senator Isnor: In private business certainly
someone has to okay any expenditure to be made,
no matter of what nature.

Mr. Henderson: Perhaps your point would be
answered if in the case of those shared-cost programs
which are open-ended, or which must be open-ended,
that fact might be indicated by having those words
set out in parenthesis, and so on. If that were the
case you would know from the Estimates that
that is a possible contingent liability. Perhaps a
disclosure like that would be helpful.

Senator Isnor: That is so, but I am thinking
that some provinces take advantage of these pro-
grams...

Mr. Henderson: Well, I suppose...

Senator Isnor: ..and make fairly huge ex-
penditures on cost-shared winter projects so as
to help alleviate their unemployment situation.
I was wondering as to whether there should not be
definite responsibility on the part of a province,
and particularly the federal Government. Is that
clear to you, Mr. Chairman? I think you have
the same thought, that some responsibility should
be placed on the federal Government.

The Chairman: It may be it is the kind of
question we ought to be directing towards the
ministers rather than Mr. Henderson, who can
speak only about what he finds when the money
has been spent.

Senator Isnor: I have some faith in Mr. Hender-
son in putting his finger on these points.

Mr. Henderson: It might be that Mr. Hayes
could explain how some of these projects began.

Mr. H. E. Hayes, Director, Auditor General’s
Office: The sole purpose of the program is to create
employment and it is up to the municipalities to
originate the project, so the impetus is given at that
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level. Then the federal under its agreements with
the provincial governments undertakes to share in
the cost of the labour, because this is the purpose

of the program, to stimulate employment. This is -

really some of the problem areas because many of
these people who get on payrolls for these projects
may not necessarily be out of work or anything
like that, so then they are not ones whom the
project was to assist in the municipality. This is
the area we find difficult. Once we have brought
this to the attention of the department, it has to
attempt to remedy the situation, and it is a cat and
mouse act more or less to find a loophole which we
attempt to plug up but it is not really until after
the end of the year that we know this. For example,
we are in 1968-69, and it would not be until 1969-70
that we would have any idea of the abuses or actual
costs of the program undertaken during that
preceding winter. You cannot really estimate their
costs because you do not know the circumstances
in the municipalities where these projects are
starting up. This is the difficulty one experiences;
there is no control over them.

Senator Isnor: I follow you to that point. My
concern is that there should be some responsibility;
there should be some finger pointed at who gives
the final O.K. for that project.

Mr. Henderson: It is sometimes very hard to
find the answer to every question. One can find it
in business, but it is hard in government to find
where this takes place.

Senator Isnor: Well, that is the best we can do.

Senator Thorvaldson: I intended to ask a
question on the growth of the establishment. We
heard a while ago that it had grown by about 40,000
in the last five years and I wanted to ask Mr.
Henderson if there was a continuing pattern of
growth. However, I think I have found my answer
to that question at the bottom of page 5. I was
going to ask Mr. Henderson whether this growth
had stopped or whether it was continuing, and if it
was continuing whether it was at a slower rate or a
faster rate than in, say, 1962, 1963 and 1964. I find
this passage at the bottom of page 5:

Some explanation of this can be found in
Appendix 2 which shows that the number of
employees authorized for departments, Crown
corporations and other instrumentalities at
March 13, 1967 had increased by 18,788 over
the past year.

I take it that perhaps for 1967 and 1968 the
growth has been continuing. Would that be correct?

Mr. Henderson: I ‘happen to be dealing with
that in connection with my forthcoming report to
the house. If my memory-serves me aright, the
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increase continued through March 31, 1968. I
think the increase in the number of employees in
departments is of the order of 10,000.

Senator Everett: I should like to mention
accountability. You mentioned the C.B.C. and the
problem we have with the bulk amount which is
put into the Estimates. Could you tell me whether
for Crown corporations you generally receive in
the Estimates more, the same, or less detail than
in the general departmental estimates?

Mr. Henderson:
receives it?

You say ‘receive’”’. Who

Senator Everett: In the Estimates themselves,
not you. As I understand it, we are concerned
about the number of votes being reduced but the
information and detail given within those votes
being increased. I am wondering whether in your
mind the detail given by Crown corporations is
adequate.

Mr. Henderson: No. You could not very well
reduce the C.B.C. detail because there is only
one figure on the page.

Senator Everett: I am referring to the other
Crown corporations. Are they just as bad?

Mr. Henderson: Yes. The theory is that if a
Crown corporation has to come to the Government
for an appropriation, then in asking people to vote
money for its deficit it should disclose the reasons
why it wants it, in the same way that a business
would have to disclose such information to its
bankers if it wanted to borrow money. As Mr.
Hayes has just pointed out to me, a great deal
depends on the management of the corporations
You will find that the National Film Board gives
more detail. I think they need $9 million or $10
million a year usually. The question is therefore
raised why the other Crown corporations could
not conform.

As T mentioned, I understand that this morning
the minister is prepared to say that that is going
to be put in in the future, the broad general areas
of their spending, so that you will know how it
compares.

Senator Everett: They are really separate
entities with their own budget staff and their
own accounting staff.

Mr. Henderson: That is right.

Senator Everett: They more than any other
department or arm of government should be able
to give detailed estimates of their expenses, and
they should be showing the way for other depart-
ments of government. We should be able to look
at the C.B.C. or the National Film Board or any of
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the crown corporations and say, “there is the
standard that each department generally should try
to imitate.”

Mr. Henderson: You are absolutely right,
Senator Everett. They have by and large very
competent staffs and enjoy this freedom from
much of the red tape that surrounds government
departments. When they prepare their Estimates for
their cash requirements for the Treasury Board,
they file everything in very considerable detail.

Senator Everett: Does it follow that one of
the things that Parliament should do is to put a
great deal of pressure on the corporations to give
this sort of information in its Estimates as a means
of establishing the sort of norm that should be
imitated by all departments of government?

Mr. Henderson: I think so. I think actually
all crown corporations should come under parlia-
mentary review before a Committee on Estimates,
for example, so that questions can be asked about
them. At least we are accomplishing something
if those that have to come for money to cover
their deficits have to disclose their figures. That
is a step forward, but many of the Crown
corporations we have would, I think, benefit
today from discussions in committee.

Senator Everett: If Parliament went to these
corporations and said, “We want more information
disclosed,” they would have sufficient staff and
organization to quite adequately give this infor-
mation.

Mr. Henderson: You will find this confirmed
if you look in the Crown corporation section of my
1967 report where the affairs of all Crown cor
porations are shown. I audit practically all of them.
You will find some quite interesting descriptions
about each one, the earnings, the reason the earnings
are up or down and how they are doing and what
they are spending. Uniformly, they have pretty
good accounting statements and details.

Senator Everett: Outside of the National
Film Board you are disappointed in the way—

Mr. Henderson: They naturally will only
give what they are asked for and they will plead
perhaps in some cases that they are giving in-
formation for the benefit of their competitors,
but I do not think Parliament would ever ask a
crown corporation to table information that
was going to hurt the national interest or endanger
the position of its investment. It should be pos-
sible to explain in some brief fashion why the
money is needed.
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Senator Everett: Thank you.

Senator Molson: I just wanted to ask the
Auditor General why the sums voted for the
Trans-Canada Highway are not decreasing at
a faster rate? I would have thought that program
was very well advanced, yet even in this year’s
Estimates I think there is still $45 million.

Mr. Henderson: That is a specific question
and I would have to get the answer. I cannot
answer that offhand except to say that the process-
ing of accounts and that type of thing is lengthy,
and there may be some items of settlement in
dispute. We can easily get that information for
you and send it to your office.

Senator Molson: Thank you very much. I
would just like to ask if the record could be changed
with regard to an earlier comment of mine in
speaking about these examples of new forms
for the Estimates. I referred to the Solicitor Gen-
eral’'s Department. My reference should have
been to the Department of Insurance.

The Chairman: I think we might put it clearly
on the record now. This is one case where the
chartered accountants have it on the lawyers.

Senator Molson: I am glad to hear that ad-
mission from the Chairman.

The Chairman: Senator Molson has noted
that on page 7 of the illustration of the revised
Estimates of the Department of Insurance that
the heading of the table is “Thousands of Dollars”,
but the first item for salaries and wages would
indicate that the department pays a bill of $212
million, which is obviously incorrect, and the
table carries that through. So really the wording
“Thousands of Dollars” should not be there.

Mr.
Affairs.

Henderson: I was only given Indian

The Chairman: It would be just as well for
us to call that to their attention.

Honourable senators, we are still open for ques-
tions, but I would mention that Mr. Henderson
has a meeting of the Public Accounts Committee
at or about 11 o’clock. Unless there is something
someone particularly wants to ask at the present
time, there are no further questions. He is always
available to come back to us.

Senator Isnor: We always learn something
from Mr. Henderson.

The Chairman: Yes, and we are always glad
to hear from him. Are there any other ques-
tions.
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I think that probably in connection with the Senator Grosart: May I ask if any progress
next meeting I would like to ask the President has been made on a decision to call certain depart-
of the Treasury Board to come before us. He is ments before us for detailed discussion?
appearing before the Public Accounts Committee -
on this matter of the new forms and I think we The Chairman: Not as I understand at the

should ask him to come before us. Is that agreeable? Present time.

Hon. Senators: Agreed. The committee adjourned.




First Session—Twenty-eighth Parliament
1968

THE SENATE OF CANADA

PROCEEDINGS
OF THE
STANDING COMMITTEE

FINANCE

The Honourable T. D’ARCY LEONARD, Chairman
No. 3

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 27th, 1968

Third proceedings on The Estimates and the Revised Estimates laid before
Parliament for the fiscal year ending 31st March, 1969.

WITNESSES:
TREASURY BOARD:
The Honourable Charles M. Drury, President.
S. S. Reisman, Secretary.

APPENDIX

“A”—Statement by the Honourable Charles M. Drury to the Public
Accounts Committee of the House of Commons.

ROGER DUHAMEL, F.R.S.C.
QUEEN’S PRINTER AND CONTROLLER OF STATIONERY
OTTAWA, 1968
29027—1



THE STANDING COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

The Honourable T. D’Arcy Leonard, Chairman

The Honourable H. de M. Molson, Deputy Chairman

Aird

Aseltine

Beaubien (Bedford)
Beaubien (Provencher)
Bélisle

Benidickson

Burchill

Choquette

The Honourable Senators:

Farris
Gélinas
Giguére
Grosart
Haig
Hayden
Hays
Isnor

Connolly (Halifax North) Kinley
Connolly (Ottawa West), Leonard

Croll

Denis
Desruisseaux
Dessureault
Everett

MacKenzie
Méthot
Molson

O’Leary (Antigonish-

Guysborough)

Paterson

‘Pearson

Phillips

Quart

Rattenbury

Roebuck

Savoie

Smith (Queens-
Shelburne)

Thorvaldson

Vaillancourt

Welch

Willis

Yuzyk—(42).

Ex officio members: Flynn and Martin.



ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday,
October 1, 1968:
“With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator Martin, P.C., moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Beaubien (Provencher):

That the Standing Committee on Finance be authorized to examine
and report upon the expenditures proposed by the Estimates and the
Revised Estimates laid before Parliament for the fiscal year ending 31st
March, 1969, in advance of Bills based on the said Estimates and Revised
Estimates reaching the Senate;

That the Committee be empowered to send for persons, papers and
records, to print its proceedings upon the said Estimates and Revised
Estimates and to sit during adjournments of the Senate; and

That the papers and evidence received and taken on the Estimates
for the fiscal year ending 31st March, 1969, in the preceding session be
referred to the Committee.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

Robert Fortier,
Clerk of the Senate.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
WEDNESDAY, November 27th, 1968.
(4)

Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing Committee on Finance
met this day at 11.30 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Leonard, (Chairman), Aseltine, Bur-
chill, Connolly (Halifax North), Dessureault, Everett, Gelinas, Haig, Methot,
Molson, Pearson, Quart and Smith (Queens-Shelburne). (13).

The proposed new form of the Estimates as set out in the sample Illustra-
tions were discussed at length.

The following witnesses were heard:

Treasury Board:
The Honourable Charles M. Drury, President. S. Reisman, Secretary.

Upon Motion, it was Resolved to print as Appendix “A” the statement
made by Mr. Drury to the Public Accounts Committee of the House of
Commons.

At 12.35 a.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chairman.
ATTEST:

Frank A. Jackson,
Clerk of the Committee.



Eamcma:)o'm [0 aamm
BURE AITS aedmoval il i
3 , )

-mxm‘z 10 esttimaioD am qts samuﬁm :mmmgbu of tasce®
s 0811 35 w55 it dom

iz B ai.isa,& SoooraindD)  brsmoed zmimzl& sidamornd 24T oy
.;adssu HieH peniied m&mmsﬂ ~ Lol wpi¥intl) viloaaeD [Mids
. ~EBLY. (m&ﬂsﬂ-enswgl dfien2 bas 'nag goreEsS fo=lghd

-s~mmﬁamsﬂmnnbtssasumdﬂwao mot wea hagogoug T
: ! e .ﬁtamtsbawmzbﬂ.,.v 2T

.bm s'gau o sreatiw poiwolial odT

E et immpﬂ'.

w@ma ammnma&mm
mw“h“iﬁbMQAasmﬁWmﬂMm@U

«hmwhmw ﬂﬁmam#wﬁfg
'.’Ew v__> m:‘:m
mmsmhmwﬁmmm.mmmxm
: O TiTRNTTA

ol e



THE SENATE
STANDING COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, November 27, 1968.

The Standing Committee on Finance, to
which were referred the Estimates laid before
Parliament for the fiscal year ending 31st
March, 1969, met this day at 11.30 a.m.

Senator T. D'Arcy Leonard (Chairman) in
the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, I am
very glad on your behalf to welcome the
President of the Treasury Board, the Honour-
able C. M. Drury, as our witness today. Mr.
Drury has been before us on other occasions,
but in a different capacity. I think this is the
first time we have had an opportunity to wel-
come him as President of the Treasury Board.

We are continuing our consideration of the
Revised Estimates for 1968-69, referred to us
by the Senate. I think all honourable senators
have before them the illustrations of the sug-
gested new form of the Estimates for the
Department of Indian Affairs, the Depart-
ment of the Solicitor General, -and the
Department of Insurance. Perhaps you have
also before you the statement to which the
minister will speak. If it is your pleasure, I
will ask him to proceed.

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

Honourable C. M. Drury, President, Treas-
ury Board: Mr. Chairman, honourable sena-
tors, it is a pleasure to be back with the
committee again. If I might impose on it, I
would like these proceedings this morning to
be rather in the nature of an educational pro-
gram than the summoning of a witness to
give evidence; and if I appear to be lecturing
or instructing, I hope you will forgive me.

By way of background, let me say that
there were quite significant and substantial
recommendations made by the Glassco Com-
mission, designed to make the process, the
technique of fiscal and financial control with-
in Government, within an executive branch,

rather more meaningful than perhaps it had
been on a system related to more leisurely
and less complex times.

The changes were sufficiently substantial to
take some time to bring about and we are
now in the process really of doing so.

One of the fundamental changes is that
departments and agencies of Government will
look at their work, their operations, in terms
of specific programs, in financial terms, and
account for their operations in this way on a
program basis.

In the past, we have tried to look at the
department as a whole and have it account
for its activities in terms of so-called standard
objects of expenditure.

While is is interesting, perhaps, to know
that one department is spending more on
electricity than another, unless you know
what the electricity is being used for, it is a
little hard to say intelligently whether it is
being effectively used or not. Therefore, in-
stead of looking at such items, instead of tak-
ing very homely objects such as electricity or
pencils and looking at them, department by
department, under these heads, we have
invited them to divide up into specific pro-
grams and attribute to each of those pro-
grams all the costs. Then, by looking at their
work in terms of programs, we may be in a
better position to measure the accomplish-
ment and the utility or perhaps, in some
cases, the futility of some of those programs
and either enlarge, change or abandon them.
It is for this purpose that this new form of
Estimates is being proposed.

As I say, the object is to display to Parlia-
ment, the controlling body, the activities and
operations of a department, or indeed of the
Government, in terms of programs where
there is a delineation of the objective to be
sought by the program, the means being used
to carry it out and some indication of the
progress being made. This, I think, will pro-
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vide an occasion for Parliament to understand
better what is being done and how. It will
also give the departments themselves an
opportunity to take a more realistic and
harder look at their own success or lack of
it in achieving the objectives.

Now, you have received copies of a long
statement which was presented but not read
to the Commons Public Accounts Committee.
It describes in some detail what I have been
endeavouring to indicate to you briefly and
also provides a description of the proposed
new form of Estimates.

Mr. Chairman if you will turn to page 12 of
that statement, I will start from there. If at
the same time in this instructional lecture you
could look at the revised Estimates 1968-69
for Indian Affairs and Northern Development
marked “illustration only,” that is the one I
will be dealing with.

The Chairman: Perhaps a convenient way
of dealing with this would be to put in the
statement as an appendix. I do not imagine
you want to read the whole of this submission
to which you referred. Would it be in order
to suggest that we might have the whole
statement which is before you printed as an
appendix to our proceedings today, and then
we can deal with specific parts of it by
questions.

Senator Pearson: I so move.
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

Hon. Mr. Drury: Do you wish me to des-
cribe the booklet or answer questions?

The Chairman:
planned.

Just go ahead as you

Hon. Mr. Drury: Briefly, then, we have
done this organization of the approach to our
accountability on a program basis progres-
sively through departments. Some are more
advanced than others in doing this. We start-
ed out with four departments, namely,
Agriculture, Northern Affairs and National
Resources, Transport and Veterans Affairs.
Then we had another five departments,
namely, the Dominion Bureau of Statistics,
Indian Affairs and Northern Development,
which you have in front of you, Insurance,
Manpower and Immigration and Royal
Canadian Mounted Police. They all have
not only been able to put forward their esti-
mates in the classical form, in the Blue Book,
but have also done so in this new form that
you have in front of you.
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We hope that by the next fiscal year, 1970-
71, all the departments will be presenting
their estimates in this form contained in a
booklet or as modified by the suggestions and
advice we get from your committee, sir, and
from the Public Accounts Committee of the
House of Commons.

Senator Pearson: These booklets will all be
separate. There will be one for each
department?

Hon. Mr. Drury: This is one item on which
we have not yet reached a decision. The Esti-
mates are now printed and bound in only one
single volume. Thus, anybody who wants one
item has to have recourse to a very large
volume. Because of the increase in informa-
tion being proposed here, the Blue Book, if it
were bound in the same way as in the past,
would be quite a lot thicker, considerably
more expensive and much larger. Considera-
tion has been given to binding or producing
all these pamphlets separately and distinctly
for each department, which would be more
convenient for anyone interested in only his
own department, but we have also given
thought to binding them together, which,
although producing a rather large volume,
does limit the number of volumes.

There is also the linguistic problem. Should
the Estimates, as are the new statutes and
bills, be bound in a bilingual form in each
pamphlet or should there be separate pam-
phlets for both English and French? The
samples you have before you now are sepa-
rate pamphlets for English and French. This
is another feature on which we would wel-
come the advice of the committee, because,
after all, the purpose of this is to be of use to
the users, and you gentlemen are the users.

Senator Aseltine: I certainly appreciate it
more in this form.

Hon. Mr. Drury: In the pamphlet form?

Senator Molson: Has any thought been
given to a looseleaf form, Mr. Minister? Has
that been contemplated also? The pamphlets
could be incorporated in a binder.

Senator Pearson: Yes. Each pamphlet
would be separate but could be contained in a
looseleaf binder.

Hon. Mr. Drury: That might be appropriate
for Members of Parliament, but it is very
expensive.

Senator Molson: There is that.
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Hon. Mr. Drury: If the pamphlets were
generally in looseleaf form it would be very
expensive. The Government might, however,
punch holes in these pamphlets and let the
individual user provide his own binder.

The Chairman: We do that sometimes now,
in any event.

Hon. Mr. Drury: If you look at the new
samples, Mr. Chairman, you will notice that
on page 3 a foreword appears outlining in
general terms some of the features proposed
which I have been endeavouring to indicate
to you orally. This is rather more succinet
and more lucid as an outline of what is being
sought to be accomplished.

On page 5, and I am still referring to the
pamphlet on Indian Affairs, there appears for
the first time an outline of the objectives, a
statement of the departmental objectives
divided up into the four programs of the
departments.

In the present Estimates these statements
of objectives, if they are made or given at all,
are given by the minister orally in the House
or before this committee. But henceforth we
would hope that, for all to see, there would
be a distinct statement of objectives being
sought and the means of achieving them actu-
ally spelled out in the Estimates themselves.

Page 6 is the layout of the administration
program. This gives rise to a bit of a problem
in that it is hardly a program in itself. The
administration of the department and the de-
sceription of the program objectives given at
the bottom of page 6 obviously would be the
same for every department of Government.
One wonders whether it is necessary in a
large bound volume to reprint the same thing
26 or 28 times. We have not quite resolved
that problem either.

However, while program objectives do not
quite fit the administration program, if you
will look at page 12, and I will deal mostly
with the Indian Affairs program now, you
will see that page 12 provides the objectives
of this program in narrative form. A further
elaboration, called a program explanation,
dividing it into its generality and into the
so-called activities of the program is also
given.

I think you would agree that for those who
have access only to the printed Estimates
themselves, this is a much more comprehen-
sive outline of what the departments are all
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about than the present Blue Book which pro-
vides a series of numbers without any words.

Generally speaking, each departmental pro-
gram shows one Vote for each of the catego-
ries administration, capital and grants. That
is, there is one Vote for administration, one
Vote for capital and one Vote for grants. The
purpose of this change is to provide Parlia-
ment with a better appreciation of the cost of
any given program and the elements which
went into its make-up.

In line with the concepts of program budg-
eting and responsibility accounting under
which each program is considered as a unit,
made up of these three different elements, we
are proposing to take the next logical step in
the development of a rational vote structure
and to consolidate into a single vote the three
votes presently being shown for each pro-
gram, the three votes being administration,
capital and grants. This would permit Parlia-
ment to review more readily each departmen-
tal program in the light of its total cost and
would give members a firm basis for a more
complete discussion of each particular pro-
gram. The total cost of each program would
of course continue to be broken down in the
Estimates details into its main elements of
administration, capital and grants.

Together with this, we also propose that
non-budgetary requirements, that is loans,
investments and advances, be shown with the
appropriate program. Now if you will look at
the Indian program on page 12, you will see
how this treatment is reflected in the Esti-
mates for this program.

This change in the vote structure would
result in a reduction of some 100 vote items
from the current 236, had it been applied to
the Estimates for 1968-69.

The Estimate for each program is displayed
by activity, which is a subdivision of the total
program, broken down into the usual catego-
ries of operating requirements, capital re-
quirements and grants, and, where applicable,
into non-budgetary requirements. Against the
operating requirements for each, there is
shown the proposed man-years of employ-
ment allocated for each activity. The number
of man-years for each activity is shown in the
table at the top of page 12 under the heading
“Activity”. The proposed man-years for 1968-
69 are 705 for administration, 769 for devel-
opment and 2,084 for education. This distrib-
utes, in terms of man-years, the effort put
into the subdivision of the program for vari-
ous activities.



There is also added to the estimate of the
cash requirement for each program the value
of services received from the department
itself or from other departments.

In the case of the Indian program illustrat-
ed on page 12 of the sample new form, the
value of services provided by other depart-
ments includes accommodation provided by
public works. This includes only the cost of
all office accommodation for which the
Department of Public Works is responsible.
For specialized accommodation such as
laboratories, warehouses, schools, hospitals et
cetera, the cost is shown against the entry
“accommodation provided by this depart-
ment”; accounting and cheque issue services
provided by the Comptroller of the Treasury;
contributions by the Government as an
employer to the Superannuation Account, the
Canada Pension Plan Account and the Quebec
Pension Plan Account; the Government’s
share, as an employer, of Group Surgical
Medical Insurance Premiums; the Govern-
ment’s share of employee compensation
payments; and the carrying of franked mail
by the Post Office Department. I suggest that
this should assist Parliament in assessing the
total cost of the various programs that are
being described.

There are some programs which receive
more in the way of assistance from other
Government departments than others, but in
all cases by adding these in we are able to get
a rather more accurate picture of the total
amount of resources devoted to each program.
In addition, for each program we propose to
provide a table showing the total cost of the
program by standard object of expenditure,
again broken down into the three main
elements of administration, capital and grants.
In this connection I refer you to page 14
which is to some degree a repeat of what is
currently shown in the blue book as of today,
that is a breakdown in relation to the pro-
gram of these standard objects of
expenditure.

Below that is a table showing the details of
the manpower allocation and utilization which
is a break-out of the item I mentioned earlier,
the proposed man-years for one year. The
manpower utilization allocation follows for
three fiscal years the direction or the totals of
manpower allocations broken down into the
three principal categories of classification.
This I think will be much more illuminating
than the present system of showing tables of
the numbers of people by class or the estab-
lishments therefor for only two fiscal years.
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One important feature I think, of this table
is the figure shown for the allowable strength
at year-end and this is shown for both the
current and the new year.

Now if you turn to page 15 there is provid-
ed a sample of the new form of Estimates
showing under the heading of “activities” the
construction and acquisition projects with a
total estimated cost regardless of the year of
expenditure in excess of $250,000 for each of
the activities. What is new in this table is that
one is able to get a total picture in respect of
each program showing not only current
expenditures but also the total cost of each of
the particular items.

By way of example the total cost of Indian
Housing is given—the total estimated cost—
and a figure given of expenditure to 1967-68
for what is proposed in the Estimates for the
current year 1968-69, which indicates fairly
clearly the total size of the progress made to
date and what is needed to completion. In the
case of Indian housing—*“Miscellaneous
Projects Carried Over”—it is quite clear that
that is about finished, but new projects total-
ling $12,494,000 have not yet started.

Under the heading “Education” one can get
an idea of the progress being made in provid-
ing educational facilities.

Senator Molson: Mr. Chairman, referring to
that table, the statement we were just consid-
ering: the items “New Projects” are, in many
cases, quite large. I suppose it is impossible
to give in what areas they would occur. Pre-
sumably, they are projects under considera-
tion, and it is impossible to say more than put
them under that heading, is ‘this the case?

Hon. Mr. Drury: Well, Mr. Chairman, all
this information is available, and the question
is how can it most satisfactorily or conven-
iently be provided. One could go on listing
each of the new projects in detail, but with
every additional item you put in your
increase the size of this particular document,
and what we have tried to do is to strike a

balance.
I would be glad of the view of the potential

users of this document as to the areas in

which more information is needed or where
there appears to be too much. But one should
bear in mind all the time that the more infor-
mation that is provided in this particular
printed form, the more expensive it is and, in
some ways, the less handy it is for the user.
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In fact, the details of new projects are
obviously known to the minister, and the
proposal would be that information sought
by Parliament would be provided by the
minister in response to questions in a parlia-
mentary committee or, if the case arises, on
the floor of the House.

The Chairman: That figure of $1,250,000
for new projects, under education, is over
and past the Estimates for 1968-69, to the
extent they will go ahead and they will be in
the Estimates for 1969-70, will they not? That
is a figure that represents something still in
the planning stage, and does mot represent
Estimates for expenditures for the current
year, am I correct in that?

Hon. Mr. Drury: There are no expenditures
being made in the current year, that is cor-
rect, sir.

The Chairman: The figure in the proposed
Estimate for 1968-69 covers what is intended
to be spent this current year on new projects,
in addition to those listed; but, then again,
you are, in effect, saying, in giving us this
information, that you may expect in the Esti-
mates for 1969-70 that they will contain
details as to some new projects which at
present are only in the planning stage and
do not involve expenditures in the current
years?

Hon. Mr. Drury: That is right.

Senator Molson: I think the minister’s point
is very well taken, as to where do you stop in
listing things. I was not really quarrelling
with it; I was just saying that in some cases
the new projects loom very large in com-
parison with the actual estimated costs of
specific projects.

The Chairman: As long as we have this
information in the Estimates for any commit-
tee hearing, we can say, “What have you in
the planning stage now for which you are
suggesting it may cost a year from now $1,-
250,000?” To try to put that into the sort of
future, 1969-70, would not be practicable.

Senator Molson: I think the point is very
well taken, Mr. Chairman.

Hon. Mr. Drury: Bearing in mind the dis-
tinction, if the committee would turn to page
16, between grants and contributions, we
woull propose that for each program—and
this is under the heading “Indian Program”—
there be a detailed delineation or exposé of

the amounts and purposes of all the grants
and all the contributions.

Senator Molson: It is difficult to pass the
first item without question, Mr. Chairman.
What is the Skookum Jim Memorial Hall in
Whitehorse?

Hon. Mr. Drury: This is called for “illustra-
tion only”.

Senator Molson: Thank you.

Hon. Mr. Drury: I really do not know what
the answer to that is. It would appear we are
in for $1,200 a year for some time.

I might just point out—and I think that
perhaps the committee is aware of the dis-
tinction between “grants” and “contribu-
tions”—that under this particular terminology
a grant is an unconditional payment or a pay-
ment by the Government for the purposes
and subject to the conditions laid down by
Parliament in the granting statute or the
granting authority. Contributions, however,
are payments made by the Government aris-
ing out of agreements made either with the
provinces or with other agencies, as author-
ized by parliamentary statute, and the statute
in this case does not provide for the amount
of the payment, but does merely authorize
the Government to enter into an agreement
which calls for payments and which estab-
lishes some of the parameters of the agree-
ment. That is the distinction between grants
and contributions.

Senator Gélinas: May I ask a question, Mr.
Chairman. Under “Contributions” is the item
“Cash payments for general assistance to
Indians” amounting to $15,969,000. “General
Assistance”, what is that in a few words?

Hon. Mr. Drury: Well, with respect to this
item and the immediately preceding one,
there are a number of statutes of which one
of interest provides a parliamentary authori-
zation for the federal Government to enter
into agreements with the provincial govern-
ments for financial assistance to Indians.
The federal Government makes an agreement
with each provincial government outlining
the conditions under which assistance will be
given and administered by the provinces, and
this provides the amount of money to be paid
in execution of these agreements.

Senator Gélinas: Thank you.

Hon. Mr. Drury: In most cases the assist-
ance is provided directly to the Indians
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through the Indian Affairs Branch, where the
federal Government assumes complete re-
sponsibility. In other cases the assistance is
provided through the provinces to Indians in
the provinces.

I do not think, Mr. Chairman, I have much
to add to this description, but I would be glad
to answer any questions. I emphasize again
that this is a proposal by the Treasury Board
for a new form of estimates, and we do not
feel dogmatic in any way about it. The inten-
tion is to provide to members of the House of
Commons a rather better and more informa-
tive description of the purposes for which
money is needed, and the means by which
those purposes will be achieved. If sugges-
tions can be given as to improvement in this,
then we would be most grateful to have them.

Senator Aseltine: I think it would be agree-
able so far as clarity, and help in giving us
information, is concerned. I am wondering
about the effect on the departments. Will it
create more efficiency? 3

Hon. Mr. Drury: It will create more
efficiency in two ways. In those rare cases in
which there may be an intention to do so they
will find it rather more difficult to confuse
and befuddle members of Parliament.
Because here it is explained clearly instead of
there being a whole lot of numbers which can
be juggled around in any way you like.
Secondly—and I think this is quite impor-
tant—it will require them to look at them-
selves rather differently; to look at their
operations in terms of a large overall objec-
tive rather than concentrating on a niggling
petty detail. I think this will contribute to
more efficiency.

Senator Molson: Mr. Chairman, may I ask
if with program accounting will come depart-
mental accountability? Have we made
progress at that stage within these depart-
ments? Are they getting into shape for
accepting the responsibilities inferred by
these changes?

Hon. Mr. Drury: We have made a lot of
progress in this field in establishing the
machinery, which involves both procedure
and personal competence to take on this new
responsibility. It is proposed to introduce this
with the measure to be placed before Parlia-
ment providing for the re-organization of
Government departments. The Government
re-organization bill will provide statutory au-
thority for introducing this new accountability
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and delegation of authority to departments,
and we would hope—

Senator Molson: Is there any date foreseen
for that move?

Hon. Mr. Drury: The timing of the intro-
duction of the bill is early in the new calen-
dar year. The application of this delegation
will not be universal, but will be gradual in
the light of the ability of a department to
take over these new responsibilities. They are
not all equally ready. Some are more so than
others, and we will start with those which are
in the best position to assume and discharge
this responsibility, and then gradually move
on. This is somewhat the same approach that
has been followed in relation to the centrali-
zation of the purchasing functions in one
department. It has been taken over step by
step. This takes longer but I think probably it
is productive of less error and less inefficien-
cy than an endeavour to introduce it univer-
sally at one fell swoop.

Senator Pearson: Are all departments
working towards this now?

Hon. Mr. Drury: All departments are, and I
am glad to say that a number of them are
ready.

The Chairman: Mr. Minister, it appears
that we are going to have more information—
certainly more in volume—than we have had
in the past, and I should like to ask you what
has been left out from the information we get
at the moment. Perhaps we can find this out
for ourselves by studying it, but perhaps you
can provide the answer more conveniently for
us. What have we in the Blue Book that is
not now in these illustration booklets, and
which is of consequence, or even, perhaps,
not of great consequence? What kind of infor-
mation is being left out, and which is now
being made available?

Hon. Mr. Drury: Well, I would hope, Mr.
Chairman, that nothing of significance has
been left out. Quite a lot more has been
added. One of the things that has been left
out is—perhaps I could refer you to page 196
of the Blue Book. I am not sure how many
senators have a copy of this, but at the bot-
tom of page 196 is a table with which I think
you are all familiar. Under the heading of
“Departmental Administration” this appears:
“Salaried Positions: Executive, Scientific and
Professional”, and then follows a listing of
the numbers of officers by salary range, and
this is for the whole departmental administra-
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tion. It has not been our experience that this
discloses very much real information.

If one turns to page 198 one sees that half
the page is taken up by a similar listing for
another branch. At page 199 again half a page
is taken up by such information as: “1 Senior
Officer 2 ($18,500-$23,500); 3 ($14,000-$16,000);
11 ($12,000-$14,000)”, and so on.

Instead of all this information being shown
in this way, the manpower tables allocating
them to programs rather than to whole depart-
ments will be a little more meaningful. But,
that particular bit of information is not con-
tained, and it is something that occupies
throughout the Estimates a great many lines
of print. This will be one of the substantial
savings in space, or savings in print, which
allows the provision of more pertinent
information.

The Chairman: This means a cutting down
of the number of votes. When a vote is called,
or is under consideration, the vote will be for
the same sum of money, presumably, than
the aggregate of the votes that it replaces, but
the information that was formerly in three,
four, or five votes, and which is now sup-
planted by one vote, will still be under the
heading of one vote, apart from the type of
thing you have mentioned? That is, there will
be greater detail per vote, where a vote sup-
plants what previously was under the heading
of more votes?

Hon. Mr. Drury: Well, the system of votes
really was a classification of the accounts by
the so-called standard objects of expenditure
which—and I think I detect some measure of
agreement—has not been too meaningful. We
would propose to classify the expenditures in
terms of programs and group in each pro-
gram the standard objects of expenditure. It
does not make much sense to have a vote
under the heading “Program, Northern
Affairs Administration”, then under the head-
ing “Indian Program” another vote for
administration, then under “Northern Pro-
gram” another vote for administration. We
would rather have a vote covering individual
programs.

The Chairman: It may be presented in a
different form or under a different heading,
but nothing significant in connection with the
information previously available has been left
out?

Hon. Mr. Drury: We think not and hope
not.
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The Chairman: How much of the new form
is likely to be in the 1969-70 Estimates?

Hon. Mr. Drury: For 1969-70 it would be
planned to present the Estimates for, if you
like, official use in the old or blue book form
with minor modifications, but also on an illus-
tration basis like this to present all the esti-
mates for all the departments in the new
form so that Parliament will have available
both forms. The following year we would
hope to go on to only the new form and
abandon the old.

Senator Burchill: Are there many of the
Glassco Report recommendations not yet
implemented?

Hon. Mr. Drury: Practically none. When I
say “practically”, I think the number not
dealt with—that is, on which no conclusion
has been reached either to accept as they
stand and implement, modify and implement,
or reject—is 60 out of 294. In spite of the
allegation made to the contrary, I think that
successive governments have taken the Glas-
sco Report and its recommendations to heart
and given quite an extraordinary degree, in
terms of royal commission reports generally,
of action to them. I would say in a general
sense that Glassco has now either been imple-
mented or is in the process of being imple-
mented. This is, in effect, one of them. It has
taken us some time to get round to this, but
we are here.

Senator Smith (Queens-Shelburne): I
should like to ask a question on that. What is
our experience in dealing with the Glassco
Commission Report? How does it compare
with the experience of the American people
in dealing with their Hoover Commission
Report some years back? Do our people know
whether we have been able to adopt or adapt
more of the Glassco Commission recommen-
dations than the total adopted recommenda-
tions of the Hoover Commission some years
ago in the United States? It was held up to us
at one time as a model for Canada to follow
and I wondered whether we had exceeded
our American friends or fallen short of our
expectations.

Hon. Mr. Drury: I do not know.

Mr. S. S. Reisman, Secretary of the Trea-
sury Board: I do not think we can answer
that, sir. We have not made a comparison
between the degrees of progress of the Glas-
sco and Hoover Commissions recommenda-
tions. What we can say is that there is not
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the Glassco recommendations that have not
been implemented or are not now under very
active consideration for early action, so if the
Americans have done as well as we have they
have done pretty well.

Senator Smith (Queens-Shelburne): That is
my impression too. I was reading some refer-
ence to the Hoover Commission not very long
ago and I concluded, on the basis I had to
form conclusions, that the Hoover Commis-
sion did not really get into the changes that
we have made in this country. It is a great
tribute, of course, to the late Mr. Glassco that
his recommendations were acceptable. It is
not the general experience of royal commis-
sions to have all their recommendations
adopted.

The Chairman: Mr. Minister, this may per-
haps be a digression from what we have been
discussing, but I believe some senators think
that too much money has been spent upstairs
on a committee room of the Senate similar to
this. Looking back over the Estimates of 1968-
69 I see there was an estimate of $500,000 for
Centre Block improvements, which I assume
covered a great many other things. When
you, as President of the Treasury Board, get
an item of $500,000 for improvements for the
Centre Block, is that broken down, for exam-
ple, to cover improvements to a committee
room of the Senate so that we can have some
idea what it will cost?

Hon. Mr. Drury: I do not think that under
the new form this would be in the printed
Estimates. One would have to direct questions
to the Minister of Public Works to find out
precisely what it covered.

The Chairman: Before the Treasury Board
approved the $500,000, I assume they would
have the items?

Hon. Mr. Drury: They would have a gener-
al description of the items, yes. If before the
Estimates are printed the Treasury Board
examines or purports to examine in consider-
able detail each particular room the Govern-
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ment or one of its agencies was going to
modify we would never get the Estimates
printed. This would be a responsibility vested
in the departments and they would be ans-
werable for it.

Senator Molson: I should just like to call
the attention of the minister to the new sheet
on the Insurance Department, where there is
a slight error in that the total estimates
appear to be $1,000,467,000. The heading
“thousands of dollars” has slipped out of
place.

Hon. Mr. Drury: I remember someone once
asking me, “What is a million?”” I will not fall
into that trap.

Senator Molson: This is a billion.

Mr. Drury: This shows the usefulness, Mr.
Chairman, of submitting our proposals to a
committee like this, to have the mistakes cor-
rected. I hope there will be other suggestions.
It is important.

The <Chairman:
questions?

Are there any other

Senator Molson:
more important.

It is becoming more and

The Chairman: If there are no further
questions, honourable senators, on your
behalf I would like to thank the Mr. Drury,
Mr. Reisman and Mr. Cloutier, and other
members of the staff. I am very grateful to
you, Mr. Minister, for coming before us and
giving us this information. It is certainly
going to be of use to us from now on in
dealing with the Estimates. Thank you very
much.

Mr. Drury: I look forward to receiving
suggestions as to whether or not we have got
generally the right answers. I am grateful for
this opportunity to appear and be able to
explain them.

The Chairman: Thank you very much. The
meeting is adjourned.

The committee adjourned.
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APPENDIX “A”

Statement by
The Honourable C. M. Drury
President of the Treasury Board
to the Public Accounts Committee
relating to
a revised form of Estimates
Thursday, November 21, 1968

Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee,
I am happy to have the opportunity to be
here this morning to review briefly with the
Public Accounts Committee the changes that
have occurred in the form of Estimates in the
past few years and to present you with
proposals for further changes that are
designed to assist Parliament in its considera-
tion of Governmental expenditure plans.

As committee members no doubt know, the
Financial Administration Act vests in the
Treasury Board, in the name of the Queen’s
Privy Council for Canada, authority to deal
among other things with matters relating to
financial management, Estimates and the
review of annual and longer term expendi-
ture plans and programs of departments. The
Estimates Blue Book is a reflection of this
responsibility.

The Estimates in a very real sense provide
the basis for financial management in the
Government service. Because the Public
Accounts Committee is very much concerned
with this function, it has been the practice to
seek its concurrence for any change in Esti-
mates presentation. After its deliberations are
completed the Committee may recommend to
the House changes that it, in its review of
departmental spending, views as desirable. It
also makes recommendations with regard to
changes that are brought before it from time
to time by the Treasury Board.

This Committee has not dealt with changes
in the form of Estimates for some time. I
therefore thought that I would recall to
members that as result of the deliberations of
this Committee in 1963, the number of votes
in the Estimates was reduced from some 550
to 220 as recommended in the Committee’s
report to the House at that time. The primary
reason for that change was related to the
need to bring together under one heading the
different elements that constitute a depart-
mental program. This purpose, generally

speaking, was achieved by setting up one
administration, one capital and one grants
vote for each departmental program. This
resulted in a more rational presentation of
activities within each Departmental structure,
but it was only the beginning of what was to
become an exhaustive study of how best to
achieve better departmental control over
existing operations, to improve governmental
assessment and control over both new and
existing programs, and to provide more
meaningful information on public expendi-
tures to Parliament.

Since that time, and following the recom-
mendations made by the Royal Commission
on Government Organization, the Treasury
Board staff has been engaged in a fundamen-
tal review of its expenditure control role in
the context of its position as a central plan-
ning agency, in cooperation with all depart-
ments and agencies. As a result, the orienta-
tion of the Treasury Board has changed, as
the Royal Commission envisaged, from an
Agency primarily concerned with keeping the
lid on expenditures through highly central-
ized and detailed control mechanisms, to a
forward looking planning body which pro-
motes the effectiveness of departmental pro-
grams through expert analysis of expenditure
proposals in terms of both possible alterna-
tives and the objectives of the Government.
Within the constraints prescribed by the Gov-
ernment, the Treasury Board is then able to
set goals and propose allocation of resources
on the basis of priorities and the forecasted
availability of funds.

I would now like to deal with a number of
changes that we are proposing for future
Estimates presentation as well as with certain
changes that we are incorporating in the
1969-70 Blue Book now under preparation.
Committee members should note that the
changes being made to the current form Blue
Book, that is the book that will display the
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estimates for 1969-70, fall into two categories:
those of a purely presentational character;
and those featuring an element of control.

Before I review the changes for 1969-70 I
might mention that the Revised Estimates for
1968-69 which were tabled in the House on
September 25 reflect a change that was intro-
duced earlier this year in the original Esti-
mates tabled on February 12. I refer to new
standard objects of expenditure that are
designed to serve the needs of internal
accounting procedures and a national accounts
presentation. This new system was devel-
oped by an inter-departmental committee
which was asked to determine the coding
procedures that would be compatible with
these needs, while retaining the existing level
of information for publication in the Blue
Book.

The inter-departmental committee made
recommendations on the restructuring of the
standard object classification and this restrue-
turing was subsequently approved by the
Treasury Board. The new system consists of
13 standard objects in place of the traditional
34 standard and special objects which have
appeared in Estimates until now. The new
system is adaptable to whatever object clas-
sification individual departments adopt for
internal purposes, because each of the 13 new
standard objects can be further broken down
into reporting objects and economic objects
that can be used for expenditure accounting
purposes by departments and for the provi-
sion of information needed for the presenta-
tion of expenditures on the National Accounts
basis.

With regard to the 1969-70 Blue Book, we
would have preferred to present you with
proposals for changes earlier this year, but
since events prevented us from appearing
before you until now, and since they could
not have been implemented in the 1969-70
Estimates if the necessary instructions had
not been issued to the departments and agen-
cies of Government before this September,
the Treasury Board reviewed these changes
very carefully last summer and authorized
the issuing of the necessary instructions.

1. Expenditure Coding

Having briefly explained the new system of
standard object classification which is incor-
porated in the Revised Estimates for 1968-69
we plan to extend the implementation of the
system by consolidating in single line entries,
under new descriptive titles, the entries that
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appear separately in these Estimates. For
example, the “Traveling and Removal
Expenses”, and the “Telephone and Tele-
grams” which are both shown as standard
object - (2) in the Revised Estimates would be
grouped under the heading “Transportation
and Communications” as standard object (2).

I might add that this change will reduce
the length of the Blue Book by some 27
pages. However, the more detailed informa-
tion which heretofore appeared in Estimates
will continue to be available at the depart-
mental level and can be provided to Parlia-
mentary Committees or the House during
Estimates consideration.

2. Supporting Financial Information for Cer-
tain Crown corporations

It is now the custom in Canadian Estimates
to give much less detail for votes containing
provision for the requirements of agency and
proprietary Crown corporations than is given
for the requirements of departments and
departmental corporations. This treatment is
a reflection of the different expenditure con-
trol relationship which Parliament has pre-
scribed should exist between the Treasury
Board and Crown corporations. It is also a
reflection of the requirement that the budgets
of Crown corporations be tabled separately in
the House of Commons.

As you are well aware, the Public Accounts
Committee has in past years endorsed recom-
mendations made by the Auditor General that
supporting financial information be given in
Estimates for Crown corporations requiring
appropriations. At the request of the Public
Accounts Committee, the Treasury Board
undertook to consult with the heads of these
Crown corporations regarding the provision
of such supporting information. Earlier this
year, we wrote to a number of Crown corpo-
rations expressing the views of the Public
Accounts Committee and asked them to con-
sider how they could best respond to your
Committee’s wishes.

I am pleased to report that, as a result of
these consultations, we will include in the
printed Estimates for 1969-70 a statement of
income and expenditure in support of Crown
corporation operating requirements funded
through Estimates and an indication of
proposed capital expenditure where these are
funded through Estimates. This change, I am
certain, will be most welcome by your
Committee.
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3. Elimination of Salary Ranges

We propose to eliminate the various salary
ranges now appearing in the Estimates and
indicate instead the numbers of continuing
full-time employees in each major occupa-
tional category. The kind of detail now pro-
vided is rather meaningless since there are
continuous changes between ranges in the
course of the year as a result of economic
salary revisions and the reclassification of
staff.

The inclusion of numbers of employees in
each category should provide a better
appreciation of the type of personnel engaged
in carrying out the purposes of individual
programs.

I might say that this change would result in
a reduction of some 70 pages in the current
Blue Book. In this case also, should more
detailed information be required during
Estimates consideration it would be made
available by the Departments concerned. We
propose of course, to retain the Manpower
Allocation and Utilization Summary which
now appears at the end of the current Blue
Book.

4. Clarification of Grants and Contributions

As members of the Committee are no doubt
aware, it is an accepted principle of Parlia-
mentary practice that the making of outright
grants is a prerogative of Parliament. This is
reflected in Canadian Estimates in such vote
titles as “Grants and Contributions as detailed
in the Estimates.”

However, the situation is now such that we
do not have any rational distinction between
outright subsidies on the one hand (such as
the grant to the Boy Scouts as shown on page
445 of the Revised Estimates for 1968-69) and
payments made by the Federal Government
in pursuit of programs already authorized by
legislation. For example, the Occupational
Training of Adults’ Act authorizes payments
by the Government for several purposes, such
as for training allowances and for capital
assistance. These payments are made pursu-
ant to agreements entered into with the Prov-
inces, under the authority of legislation. The
agreements always call for the auditing of
accounts to be presented by the recipients of
the payments. Present vote titles however
(such as Manpower and Immigration, Vote 10,
at page 304 of the Revised Estimates for 1968-
69), do not allow the transfer of an excess
provision that might arise under one agree-
ment to meet a deficiency arising under a
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different agreement. Such excesses or defici-
encies may occur as a result of the difficulty
of forecasting with precision at the time of
the printing of the Estimates, levels of
anticipated expenditures = which depend
entirely upon the extent of participation in
the program in question. To achieve such a
transfer of funds, it is now necessary to
include an item in Supplementary Estimates,
regardless of the fact that authority to enter
into the agreement already exists and that
sufficient funds may be available within the
vote as a whole.

On the other hand, there are vote wordings
which permit the transfer between contribu-
tions without the requirement for a Supple-
mentary Estimates. An example of this is
shown at page 104 of the Revised Estimates
for 1968-69 where the wording of Vote 50 for
Energy, Mines and Resources allows transfers
between the ten contributions that are pres-
ently listed pursuant to the Canada Water
Conservation Assistance Act.

We propose that restrictive vote titles be
used only in those cases where no Parliamen-
tary authority for the expenditure exists and
where no accounting or auditing is made of
the expenditure in question. Under this
change, Parliament would retain its funda-
mental right of determining grants that are
clearly unconditional disbursements, and the
Government would have added flexibility in
carrying out the wishes of Parliament and
making payments required as a result of
agreements authorized pursuant to Acts of
Parliament. In no case of course would the
total of a Vote in the Estimates for grants and
contributions be exceeded without further
Parliamentary action.

Having dealt with changes for the fiscal
years 1968-69 and 1969-70, we now have fur-
ther changes to propose for the Estimates for
1970-71.

The Committee will recall that the Royal
Commission on Government Organization
recommended that:

1. the form of the Estimates be revised
so that the votes more clearly describe
the purpose of expenditures, that more
comparable and complete supporting
information be provided, and that
unnecessary detail be eliminated;

2. departmental Estimates be prepared
on the basis of programs and activity and
not only by standard objects of
expenditure.
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One of the first steps taken by the Govern-
ment following the receipt of the Glassco
report was to engage management consultants
who were given the task of proposing expend-
iture control and financial management
procedures for four departments. These
departments were Agriculture, Northern
Affairs and National Resources, Transport,
and Veterans Affairs. As a result of these
studies, there arose proposals to change the
form of Estimates presentation designed to
better reflect the new concepts of financial
management, as recommended by the Glassco
Commission, and to provide Parliament with
the kind of information necessary for a mean-
ingful review and discussion of governmental
activity.

Subsequently, five departments (Dominion
Bureau of Statistics, Indian Affairs and
Northern Development, Insurance, Manpower
and Immigration and Royal Canadian Mount-
ed Police) submitted their 1967-68 Main Esti-
mates in the suggested new form as well as in
the traditional form. After further refine-
ments, and I might say at this point that we
are continually refining the presentational
aspect of this proposed new form, twenty six
departments and agencies were able to submit
their Estimates for 1968-69 to the Treasury
Board in both the current form and the pro-
posed new form. Finally, I expect that for
the 1969-70 Estimates, most departments and
agencies will be in a position to submit their
Estimates in both forms.

Several booklets were distributed this
morning to illustrate the Estimates for 1968-
69 in the suggested new form for the depart-
ments of Insurance, Indian Affairs and
Northern Development, and for Solicitor Gen-
eral. The current form of Estimates for the
Department of Indian Affairs and Northern
Development was also distributed to permit
comparison between the two forms. You may
wish to refer to these as I review briefly the
proposed new form of Estimates, which re-
flects the changes I have already mentioned
as well as several additional new features.

If Committee members will look at their
sample new form for the Department of Indi-
an Affairs and Northern Development, they
will note that a foreword appears on page 3
which outlines in general terms some of the
features that are proposed to be included.
With this in mind, perhaps the Committee
will now permit me to discuss in more detail
some of these new features.
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(a) Members will note that on page 5 there
appears a statement of departmental objec-
tives which are explained in terms of the four
programs of the department.

(b) On page 6, where a detailed breakdown
of the Administration Program begins, you
will note the statement of the program objec-
tives followed by a narrative description of
the Program itself outlined in terms of those
objectives. The Program is broken down into
a number of activities that are the means by
which the objectives, as set out, are to be
achieved. This approach is designed to assist
Members of Parliament in identifying the
purpose of the Administration Program,
thereby aiding in their examination of the
expenditures proposed under it.

This same approach for each of the other
three programs is followed throughout the
sample (at pages 12, 20 and 30). In this
regard, I might remind the Committee that
the current form of estimates does not include
any narrative material concerning the depart-
ment nor, for that matter, any of its pro-
grams to activities.

(¢) As I reviewed the vote structure
appearing in the current Estimates, I recalled
to the Committee that it had agreed in 1963, to
reduce the number of votes in the Estimates,
so that generally speaking, each departmental
program would show one Vote for each of the
categories administration, capital and grants.
The purpose of that change was to provide
Parliament with a better appreciation of the
cost of any given program and the elements
which went into its makeup.

In line with the concepts of program budg-
eting and responsibility accounting under
which each program is considered as a unit,
made up of these three different elements, we
are proposing to take the next logical step in
the development of a rational vote structure
and to consolidate into a single vote the three
votes presently being shown for each pro-
gram. This would permit Members of Parlia-
ment to review more readily each departmen-
tal program in the light of its total cost and
would give members a firm basis for a more
complete discussion of each particular pro-
gram. The total cost of each program would
of course continue to be broken down in the
Estimates details into its main elements of
administration, capital and grants.

Together with this, we also propose that
non-budgetary requirements (that is loans,
investments and advances) be shown with the
appropriate program. Pages 10, 12, and 13 of
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the sample new form of Estimates for Indian
Affairs and Northern Development illustrate
how this treatment would be reflected in the
Estimates for the Indian Program of that
department.

This change in the vote structure, if it com-
mends itself to your Committee would have
resulted in a reduction of some 100 Vote
items from the current 236, had it been
applied to the Estimates for 1968-69.

(d The Estimate for each program is dis-
played by activities broken down into the
usual categories of operating requirements,
capital requirements and grants and, where
applicable, into non-budgetary requirements.
Against the operating requirements for each,
there is shown the proposed man-years of
employment allocated for each activity.
(pages 6, 12, 20 and 30 of the sample).

The indication of manpower utilization in
this manner should allow members of Parlia-
ment and the public to relate more effectively
than is possible at present to a given activity
the number of employees engaged in that
activity.

(e) There is also added to the estimate of
the cash requirement for each program the
value of services received from the depart-
ment itself or from other departments.

In the case of the Indian Program illustrat-
ed on page 12 of the sample new form, the
value of services provided by other depart-
ments includes: accommodation provided by
Public Works; (this includes only the cost of
office accommodation for which the Depart-
ment of Public Works is responsible. For spe-
cialized accommodation such as laboratories,
warehouses, schools, hospitals, etc., the cost
is shown against the entry “Accommodation
provided by this Department”); accounting
and cheque issue services provided by the
Comptroller of the Treasury; contributions by
the Government as an employer to the Super-
annuation account, the Canada Pension Plan
account and the Quebec Pension Plan
account; the Government’s share, as an
employer, of Group Surgical Medical Insur-
ance premiums; the Government’s share of
employee compensation payments; and the
carrying of franked mail by the Post Office
Department. This should assist Members of
Parliament in assessing the total cost of the
various programs.

In the current Blue Book, the value of ser-
vices received free of charge from other
department is provided for the total depart-
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ment only. Page 196 of the current form sam-
ple in front of you illustrates this point.

() For each program, we propose to pro-
vide a table showing the total cost of the
program by standard object of expenditure,
again broken down into the three main
elements of Administration, Capital and
Grants. pages 7, 14, 23 and 32 of the sample
new form).

(g) Details of the manpower allocation
among the major occupational categories (and
its utilization) are shown for each program as
the committee can see at pages 8, 14, 23 and
32 of the sample new form of Estimates. The
total man-year utilization in the first column
of the table is of course identical to the total
shown against the activity breakdown on the
program, which I just mentioned. One impor-
tant feature of this table is the allowable
strength at year-end figure which is shown
for both the current and new years. In addi-
tion, a three-year comparison of staff numb-
ers is offered instead of the two-year com-
parison in the current form. The Manpower
Allocation and Utilization Summary appear-
ing at the end of the current Blue Book
would of course be retained.

(h) Members will also note at pages 15, 24
and 33 of the sample new form of Estimates
that construction and acquisition projects with
a total estimated cost—regardless of the year
of expenditure—in excess of $250,000, are
shown in a separate table for each program.

() Having in mind the principles which I
described earlier in relation to grants and
contributions, where I outlined the distinction
to be made between outright subsidies and
payments made pursuant to agreements, we
propose that for each program there be a
listing of each grant and of each contribution
that is to be made under the program. An

example of this is shown at page 26 of the
sample.

Having reviewed the main features of the
proposed new form of Estimates, it is evi-
dent, I believe, that the program approach to
Estimates presentation is the fundamental
concept that emerges. Perhaps I might
recapitulate by stating what is a program and
what is an activity. A program is a group of
departmental activities authorized by legisla-
tion or authority emanating from legislation,
that is directed to the achievement of a defi-
nite objective. The activities are the varied
means employed in carrying out the program.
Bearing this in mind, the program structure
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must be carefully designed to assist in the
resource allocation decisions made by the
Government. The programs of a department
are the headings under which that depart-
ment makes its request for funds and under
which requirements can best be justified and
the benefits forecast.

It might be appropriate at this point, Mr.
Chairman, to outline briefly to the Commit-
tee, the process through which Estimates are
prepared for presentation to Parliament.

In recent years, the Treasury Board has
developed a two-stage approach to the exami-
nation of departmental expenditure plans.
First, there is the review during the summer
months of departmental 5-year forecasts of
Estimates requirements, on the basis of which
targets are set for the following fiscal year.
Secondly, there is the traditional detailed
Estimates review in the late autumn and
early winter.

During the review of program forecasts,
the Treasury Board considers this information
against the background of overall government
priorities and the most recent estimates of the
total funds that are likely to be available
throughout the 5-year period. This review is
the occasion where the Treasury Board, fol-
lowing discussion and consultation with
departments, sets financial and manpower
targets for each program for the subsequent
fiscal year. Eventually, when the system is
more refined, it is proposed that this would
be the occasion for Treasury Board to grant
broad approval in principle for the depart-
ment’s long-term plans for each program.

Following the program review, the second
phase of Estimates preparation and review
for the subsequent fiscal year begins. With
the approval in principle of their plans for
each program, and against the financial and
manpower targets that have been set for each
program, departments are asked to develop
their detailed operational plans for the next
fiscal year—establishing recognized goals for
each centre of budgetary responsibility and
allocating the necessary funds within
individual programs.

The Board’s review of the Main Estimates
submissions consists of an examination of
departmental proposals, and of their detailed
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plans to confirm that they are in line with
previously approved targets, and the govern-
ment’s expenditure policy for the forthcoming
fiscal year. In addition, the Board reviews at
this time the departments’ detailed costing of
the operational plans for each program for
the new year.

The product of this second phase is the
Book of Estimates. The Estimates for 1969-70
will of course be produced in the present
form, incorporating the changes that I men-
tioned earlier. In addition, we expect to be in
a position next Spring to provide Parliamen-
tary Committees that will be considering
departmental Estimates, with Estimates
booklets similar to those that have been dis-
tributed to you today. We believe that these
booklets will permit a more informed exami-
nation of departmental Estimates by the Com-
mittees. From the discussions of your commit-
tee and from the examination of Estimates by
Parliamentary committees next Spring, I
would expect that there will emerge sugges-
tions for further refinements which could be
incorporated into the Estimates for 1970-71.

In 1970-71, then, Estimates would be pre-
pared and presented to Parliament in the new
form only. It would be our intention to pro-
duce them both in booklet form for each
department as well as in the form of a com-
plete volume containing the Estimates of all
departments and agencies.

I want to conclude, Mr. Chairman, and
members of the committee, by re-emphasizing
what I said at the beginning of my remarks.
The Blue Book of Estimates constitutes the
framework for Parliamentary control and the
examination of Departmental expenditure
plans. The primary objective of the proposals
that I have presented to you is designed to
facilitate your task in carrying out your re-
sponsibilities as Members of Parliament. At
the same time, they are designed to serve
better the needs for more effective Govern-
ment Administration.

I know Committee members will want to
express their views and reactions to these
proposals. My officials and I are at your dis-
posal and we would be willing to provide you
with all the assistance we are able to.

Thank you.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Tuesday, February 25th,
1969:

“With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator Martin, P.C., moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Langlois:

That the Standing Senate Committee on National Finance be authorized to
examine and report upon the expenditures set out in the Supplementary Estimates
(B) laid before Parliament for the fiscal year ending 31st March, 1969.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

Robert Fortier,
Clerk of the Senate.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Thursday, February 27th, 1969.
(7
Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Senate Committee on National Finance met
this day at 11:00 a.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Leonard (Chairman), Beaubien, Bourque,
Desruisseaux, Dessureault, Everett, Gelinas, Grosart, Irvine, Laird, McLean, Nichol,
Pearson, Phillips (Rigaud), O’Leary (Anti-Guys), Sparrow, and Walker—(17).

Supplementary Estimates “B” for the fiscal year ending 31st March, 1969, were
examined and the following witnesses were heard:

Treasury Board: S. S. Reisman, Secretary;and J. G. Glashan, Director, Estimates and
Supply Procedures Division.

Upon motion, it was Resolved to report that the Committee recommend Supplement-
ary Estimates “B”, but that certain items contained therein be drawn to the attention of
the Senate.

The Honourable Senator Everett inquired into the possibility of obtaining a list of
claims in excess of $100,000 which had been written off by the Department of National
Revenue.

Mr. Reisman undertook to supply an answer for Senator Everett.

Mr. Reisman undertook to supply an answer to the Honourable Senator Grosart’s
question respecting items in Supplementary Estimates “B”, which were referred to as
‘items amending existing legislation’.

The Honourable Senator Beaubien suggested that the Committee inquire into Federal
and State taxation policies in the United States of America and study any relevant figures
published by the Organization for Economic Co-operation.

Senator Beaubien’s suggestion was referred to the Steering Committee for further
consideration.

At 12:40 p.m. the Committee adjourned until Thursday, March 6th, 1969 at 11:00
a.m.

ATTEST:
Frank A. Jackson,

Clerk of the Committee.
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THE SENATE

COMMITTEE ON NATIONAL FINANCE

EVIDENCE

Thursday, February 27, 1969.

The Senate Committee on National Finance, to
which was referred the Estimates laid before Parlia-
ment for the fiscal year ending 3 1st March, 1970, met
this day at 11 a.m.

Senator T. D’Arcy Leonard (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, I hear elevea
o’clock striking and it is our tradition to start
promptly. We are glad to welcome back again to the
committee Mr. S. S. Reisman, Secretary of the Treas-
ury Board. With him are Mr. J. G. Glashan and Mr. G.
A. Berger from the Treasury Board.

The committee has had referred to it by the Senate,
the Estimates for 1969-70 and the supplementary Esti-
mates(B) for 1968-69. Subject to your own views, I
suggest that, as the appropriation bill based on the
supplementary estimates will in all probability reach
us before any bill on the 1969-70 estimates, we should
start today to deal with the supplementary Estimates
(B). Mr. Reisman is prepared to do that. I doubt
whether we will be able to in one sitting get through
supplementary Estimates (B) and also the 1969-70
Estimates, but we will do as much as we can today and
then we will carry on probably next Thursday with
what is left over.

Is it agreeable that we proceed in that way?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: I think we might start by asking Mr.
Reisman whether he wants to make any preliminary
statement or whether he justs wants to plunge right in
and start with item 1. You will probably find that a
number of these items, particularly the dollar items,
will fall into one or more patterns that may need
individual explanation.

Have you a preliminary statement, Mr. Reisman?
Mr. S. S. Reisman, Secretary of the Treasury Board:

Mr. Chairman, I do have a general statement, if that is
your wish.

The Chaizman: If that is agreeable, we will have the
questions afterwards.

Mr. Reisman: Mr. Chairman and honourable sena-
tors, these supplementary Estimates, which you have
before you, are the final supplementary Estimates for
the fiscal year 1968-69. As usual, they contain both
budgetary items, loans, investments and advances. The
former category, which amounts to $152 million, is
just under the amount indicated for budgetary items
when the main Estimates for 1969-70 were tabled a
few weeks ago. This brings the total budgetary Esti-
mates for 1968-69 to $10,823 million.

The loans, investments and advances included in
these supplementary Estimates total just over $70
million. The difference between this amount and the
$36 million indicated for such items in the Main
Estimates for 1969-70 is accounted for by three items,
the need for which was not evident at the time the
main Estimates for 1969-70 were printed. These items
are, first, loans to Eldorado Nuclear Limited in the
amount of $22 million. This is a fall-back item as it is
likely that the corporation’s requirements will be met
through direct borrowing from private financial insti-
tutions. You will find this item on page 26 of the
supplementary Estimates (B).

The second item is loans of up to $6 million to assist
the ground fish industry. This can also be found on
page 26. At an earlier stage it appeared that this
requirement would require a budgetary item, but the
Government has decided that its objectives in this

respect will be pursued by means of loans rather than
grants.

Senator Beaubien: You say, “loans”. Are you sup-
posed to get it back?

Mr. Reisman: That is right, sir. It is regarded as an
investment. Perhaps, when we get into the detail of
this, I can give a fuller explanation later, but, if you
prefer, I could interrupt my remarks now to do that.

The Chairman: Suppose we let Mr. Reisman finish
his presentation.
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Mr. Reisman: The third is an item on page 28 creat-
ing a $7 million revolving fund for the Canadian
Government Printing Bureau. This item is not new as
it will replace the Bureau’s existing statutory revolving
fund, the authority for which will lapse with the pas-
sage of Bill C-173, the Government Organization Bill.
The new revolving fund will reflect the need for in-
creased working capital. So that it is a somewhat larger
figure than the figure of the old revolving fund which
will lapse.

I would like to draw to the attention of the com-
mittee, Mr. Chairman, a new feature in these supple-
mentary Estimates, namely, the use of funds available
from other appropriations previously approved by
Parliament to meet other requirements within the
same ministry. As honourable senators are aware, the
past practice had been to vote additional moneys to
meet all requirements that could not be met from the
same vote. I draw you attention, for example, to the
first item in these supplementary Estimates, vote 10b
for agriculture on page 2, in which you will notice that
the gross requirement of $1,216,400 has been offset
completely by funds available in another vote of that
ministry. The amount of $1, of course, is necessary to
bring the item before Parliament and to obtain the
approval of Parliament for the transfer. We believe
that this approach reflects more accurately the net
additional requirements of the Government than past
supplementary Estimates practice.

As I mentioned earlier, Mr. Chairman, the budget-
ary requirements in these supplementary Estimates
total approximately $152 million. The committee
will note that about two-thirds of this total is sought
for one vote, the Treasury Board contingencies vote,
to be found on page 23. This is, of course, a very
large sum. It represents our assessment of the
demand to be made upon the Treasury as a result of
the completion of the collective bargaining negotia-
tions now underway in the Public Service. As it is
not possible to assess this requirement on a
vote-by-vote basis, much as we would like to, the
Government proposes that the funds be provided
centrally in this contingencies vote and that allot-
ments from this vote be made to supplement the
votes of individual departments and agencies as their
requirements are determined following the con-
clusion of individual collective bargaining agreements.

May I point out, Mr. Chairman, an unusual feature
of this proposed appropriation. The Amounts in-
volved are, as I have said, substantial, and collective
bargaining is a process in which no employer should
allow the particular accounting system under which
he operates to put him under undue pressure of
time. It is proposed, therefore, that Parliament grant
this appropriation, worded in such a way as to allow
payments owing in respect of the 1968-69 or prior
years to be made and recorded up to April 30 next
in the Public Accounts for 1968-69 under the title
of the department requiring the money and that the
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unexpended balance on that date remain available
for salary adjustment payments that, in view of the
need to close the books for the year 1968-69 at the
end of April, would not be distributed among
departments. I should like to emphasize that pay-
ments from this vote will be confined to amounts
owing in respect of services rendered in 1968-69 and
prior years.

Finally, I should add that the amounts requested
under the contingencies vote will provide only for the
costs of salary revisions arising out of collective
bargaining. Other additional salary requirements are
provided for in several departmental votes contained
in these Estimates.

Now, Mr. Chairman, this is all I have to say by
way of general introduction, but no doubt honour-
able senators will want to raise some questions, and
my staff and I would be pleased to answer to the
best of our ability. If there are questions asked that
go beyond our capabilities, it may be that you will
want to invite the individual departments whose
Estimates are involved.

Senator Grosart: Mr. Chairman, my first comment
on the supplementary Estimates (B) would be to
congratulate the Treasury Board on a rather greater
measure of disclosure than we have had in the past.
My second comment would be that I still do not
regard it as adequate disclosure. There are a great
many one-dollar votes in these supplementaries,
perhaps the largest total of votes in the supplemen-
tary Estimates. I recognize the fact that the majority
of these are transfers within a department from one
vote to another.

The total saving, if I may put it that way—that is,
the total amount that does not have to be added to
the request for funds departmentally—is about $50
million, so I congratulate the Treasury Board on
finding $50 million within the estimated votes. I
wonder if I could ask Mr. Reisman if the reason for
this is that the Treasury Board has said to depart-
ments who come asking for money, “You find it!”

Mr. Reisman: That is a fair assumption, senator.
Increasingly, in a tight situation, we have said to
departments, if proposals for expenditures come up
which have not been foreseen, “Go through your
books and find some place where you can reduce,
cut or postpone, and find the money you need for
these more urgent things.” I think these dollar items
are, indeed, a reflection of that process.

Senator Grosart: While that is certainly most
welcome it is also slightly disturbing because one
wonders, looking back over earlier years, if the same
attitude by Treasury Board might have saved a good
many hundreds of millions of dollars. For example,
Agriculture Vote 65 seems to have taken quite a
beating; and Votes 10b, 15b, 17b, 20b, 25b, 30b,
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and 35b are all cases where money has been transfer-
red from Vote 65. Vote 65, in the original Esti-
mates, was a vote to the Canadian Livestock Feed
Board.

Is it a correct assumption that the original estimate
of the requirements of the Canadian Livestock Feed
Board was so far out that all this money was made
available, or did some situation intervene in the
meantime to make it available? I take it is just
one example of the situation we find throughout the
Estimates.

Mr. Reisman: I cannot answer that question in the
kind of detail requested. What I can tell you is that
when we invite departments to find moneys in their
votes to meet these urgent requirements which form
the subject of supplementaries, we try to leave it to
the department to determine what its own priorities
are and where it can best, in light of its total
situation, find the monies. In fact, some monies have
been found from the Canadian Livestock Feed Board
vote. You are asking whether perhaps they padded
the figures originally. I doubt that very much.

The note I have on the subject is that funds are
available within the vote for the 1968-69 portion of
the new expenditures. Expenditures are expected to
be $18 million rather than the $21,600,000 voted,
because feed grain crops in Ontario have been larger
than expected and the number of animals to be fed
is somewhat lower than anticipated, and so it has
made it possible for them to find some funds there.

Senator Grosart: This raises the question as to
whether people who were looking with rising expec-
tations to the expenditures by the Canadian Livestock
Feed Board are fully aware of this diminution of
Parliament’s grant for their purposes, and if they
would approve.

This brings me to the earlier question of disclosure.
Again, I would seriously suggest that in presenting
even supplementary Estimates these explanations
should be given. I do not care if it is a mimeographed
sheet, but if I were to go through all these supple-
mentary votes I would ask an information question
on each one of them. Obviously, we have not the
time this morning.

There are votes in here, for example, where there
is a transfer of money voted for transfers to the
provinces which has been taken away. There is
external aid money.

If I refer, for example, to Vote 1b, on page 6, of
External Affairs, some external aid money has been
transferred. In Vote 2b, Finance, on page 8, money
intended originally for grants to provinces has been
transferred to another use. Again, on page 8, in Vote
15b, money originally appropriated—not merely
estimated, because they are referring to an Appro-
priation Act here—money appropriated for expend-
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itures in regard to international commissions and the
international expenditures to provinces and munici-
palities. That is Fisheries and Forestry, Vote 15b.

What I am suggesting to you, Mr. Reisman, is that
it would be helpful if, in future, there were explana-
tions given as to why, when the provinces tell us
they are looking for more money, do we find money
appropriated for the provinces, for transfers to the
provinces, still available. I am not saying there is
anything wrong. I am a great believer in the principle
of disclosure by business firms, and I think this
applies particularly to the Government. I know there
is a great effort being made to make the Estimates
more meaningful, and I am urging that particularly
in every one-dollar vote and every vote setting aside
amounts under the Financial Administration Act, in
every vote that extends the purpose of an existing
act—and there are examples of these here—there
should be an explanation, and you should say, “The
present act does not provide for this. Here is why it
should be provided...”

I am suggesting to you that this would be very
helpful, even if a mimeographed sheet were put
before us explaining the reasons for this in detail,
because, as fas as I know, the information you are
prepared to give us here is not otherwise available. I
would like to go through every vote today and ask
for this information, but the sensible alternative, it
seems to me, is to have you provide it in advance.

The Chairman: Then you would do away with the
committee!

Senator Grosart: Then we would have even more
to argue about, Mr. Chairman!

Mr. Reisman: If I may make a comment on that,
Mr. Chairman, it is that, clearly, the more the
material which is made available, the clearer and
more lucid the presentation of these supplementaries
will be.

I do have in this black book, prepared by the staff
of the Board, an explanation of every single item in
the supplementaries and, in particular, the so-called
dollar items, whether they are transfers of moneys or
a change in the statute. So that if members of
Parliament or honourable senators wish explanations,
we can give an explanation, or try to give an expla-
nation, of every single one of these items.

The suggestion has been made: “Why wait for
questions? Why do you not make the explanation at
the time of tabling the Estimates, or at the time
they are looked at in committee? ™ Obviously, there
cannot be anything in principle to object to in that
suggestion, other than, I suppose, the cost. It would
not be a huge cost, but it would be an additional
cost. It would involve compilation, printing or
mimeographing, and distritution, and it would add to
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the volume of paper that confronts honourable
senators every day. If this suggestion is examined by
the committee, and is made by the committee, then
I am sure the Treasury Board would want to take a
very good close, but sympathetic, look at it with a
view to trying to meet it. That is, if it is your wish.
But, it does involve additional money. It involves
staff, and that kind of thing, and we are trying, at
least in respect of paper work, to keep this down to
a minimum. If we are to provide a good example to
the departments and agencies then we ourselves must
not expand, except where desirable and necessary,
the volume of material produced. This is the only
comment I have on that.

Senator Grosart: I have other questions, but I will
pass for the moment.

The Chairman: Senator Everett, you had a
question? We will not forget the point you have
raised, Senator Grosart.

Senator Everett: 1 should like to refer to your
statement on the Department of Agriculture. I may
be wrong, but I got the feeling that in that particular
case the money was not required by the department
due to crop circumstances, and, therefore, the de-
partment decided to come up with a new item which
would sop up that money, it having already been
appropriated I am interested in that philosophy. I can
understand it if the Treasury Board is saying to the
department: “Here is an undertaking which you are
proposing. Perhaps you can find a lower priority
project and transfer the money allocated to it, to the
high priority project which you now have in mind.”
I can understand that, but what I am concerned
about is the fact that once they have the money and
they do not use it, they then dream up another
program —that is unfair, because they probably have
many piograms, but nevertheless, they are going to
sop up that money come hell or high water.

Mr. Reisman: Mr. Chairman, that is a very pointed
and excellent question, and one that I should really
try to answer. I shall try to answer it by way of
explaining how the scrutiny system operates in
respect of proposals for expenditures, particularly in
the supplementaries.

I am sure that this a process that has taken place
in the past with greater or lesser thrust, but I can
tell you in the present circumstances every proposal
for expenditure, and in particular proposals for
expenditures in supplementaries which have not have
been foreseen, are really given a very thorough scru-
tiny, not only by the staff of the board but, if they
are significant items, by the Board ministers. Very
many are tumed down on the ground that a case of
urgency or compelling need has not been made. So,
they must first get by that first hurdle. If something
to which there is some urgency attached, or for
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which there is a particular need, avises the staff of
the board, and then the ministers of the Board, have
to be convinced that that is so. That is the first
hurdle.

The second hurdle is where we say to the depart-
ment: “Well, if you feel that this is so vital, and you
have obviously convinced the Board that it is, what
in your program is less vital? ” There may be occa-
sions where something that is less vital arises because
they have made a wrong estimate about the crop
conditions, say, or other circunstances, such as in the
item that has been described, in which case that item
would normally have lapsed some money to the
extent that conditions in the market place were not
fully foreseen. The question arises as to whether, as
a technique for handling supplementary Estimates
where you have an urgent item and you have anoth-
er item where a lapse would otherwise occur, this is
a useful device for transferring what otherwise would
have been lapsed into this new and more urgent
item. This is what is being proposed. I suppose what
I am trying to say it that the fact that there is some
money in an item which would otherwise lapse in
whole or in part is never used as a reason for
allowing a proposal for another expenditure.

Senator Everett: I suppose if you take a very harsh
attitude to expenditures that are not required you
may well find that they are made just to use the
money, or the tendency to do that might be there. I
suppose it is better in the long mun to recognize,
since they have the appropriation and if the item has
a high enough priority, that it should be used in any
event. Is that your philosophy?

Mr. Reisman: I think you can describe it in that
way, Sir.

The Chairman: May I ask you a question, Mr.
Reisman? Are there any of the $1 items that are in
effect a statutory change?

Mr. Reisman: Yes, sir, there is a number of these
$1 items. Perhaps I can give you an example. On
page 29 under “Loans, Investments and Advances”
you have a series of items for Central Mortgage and
Housing Corporation. There are four $1 items, the
purpose of which is to amend clauses in the relevant
statute, the National Housing Act. You will observe
that in each case the proposal would have the effect
of amending the National Housing Act by raising the
commitment limits from one figure to another figure
under the respective sections of that act. They do, in
fact, amend the statute. There is no question about
that.

Senator Grosart: Is it not a fact, Mr. Reisman, that
every one of these authorizations to transfer monies
from one vote to another is, in effects, an amend-
ment of the Financial Administration Act?
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Mr. Reisman: I do not think they are amendments
of the Financial Administration Act. They are
amendments to the Appropriation Act for the rele-
vant fiscal period, because these Estimates are, in fact,
legislation. When Parliament passes them, each of
this items is a piece of legislation. The $1 items
which are designed to transfer money from one vote
to another in fact amend a piece of legislation con-
tained in a previous appropriation act, but they do
not amend the Financial Administration Act.

Senator Grosart: But does it not also mean that
the Financial Administration Act which, as I under-
stand it, prohibits the transfer of appropriated funds
from one vote to another, but allows it within a
vote, is contravened. These items allow the transfer
of money from one vote to another so they are, in
effect, amendments of the Financial Administration
Act.

There is one question I would like to ask you, and
it is: In view of the very high number of exceptions
made to that rule would you suggest that that pro-
hibition against the transfer from vote to vote is
anachronistic?

Mr. Reisman: First, it may be a matter of under-
standing, but I do not see how these $1 items that
transfer money are an amendment of the Financial
Administration Act. They may, as you suggest, be an
indication that that particular requirement of the
Financial Administration Act imposes stringent re-
quirements of a kind that makes this necessary,
but it is not an amendment as such. The amendment
from a purely legal point of view, if I may suggest, is
to an Appropriation Act. Your second point, sir, is:
does it reveal that there is something wrong with the
provision in the Financial Administration Act? This
is a very interesting point and it gets you into the
problem of how much flexibility Parliament wishes
to allow with the Financial Administration Act.
Under the new system of the presentation of the
Estimates, which will take effect beginning in the
1970-1971 fiscal year, a proposal has been made to
reduce the number of voted items and to have
sub-items so that transfers may be made within an
item.

Senator Grosart: Which I understand is one of the
purposes of that reform.

Mr. Reisman: And that reform would, in fact,
make it less necessary to have these dollar items
transferring moneys from one vote to another, be-
cause what now appears as votes would show up as
sub-votes or activities under a vote where transfer
would be permitted under the present terms of the
Financial Administration Act.

Senator Everett: Within the vote itself?
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Mr. Reisman: Just within the area of the vote
itself, and I might say that when this was discussed
in the Public Accounts Committee of the Commons
there was really quite a debate around this. A
number of members thought this provided too much
flexibility and others thought it did not provide
enough flexibility, an unbalance, if I am not mis-
taken. The committee made some modification or
proposed some modifications to the suggestions that
came from the department by way of requiring a
larger number of votes than the department pro-
posed. This being the compromise between flexi-
bility which is the administrative problems and the
need to go back to Parliament to get authority and
some compromise.

Senator Beaubien: Mr. Reisman, could you give us
some good news where a little money was saved for
the taxpayer some place? It seems awfully depress-
ing to listen when one department cannot spend as
much as they think they need and somebody else
gobbles it up and spends it. When you consider they
were up 15 per cent last year, 14 per cent the year
before, and have doubled in 10 years it seems terri-
ble to sit here and vote more and more money, $105
million—I am wondering whether anything was done
to save any money?

Mr. Reisman: We cannot find the money the
provinces and the municipalities are spending, and
the federals are having a terrible time getting, the
money.

Senator Beaubien: Was anything done to save any
money?

Mr. Reisman: Well, sir, I do not know whether I
can attempt to answer that question. It is major
policy but perhaps I can reveal a piece of informa-
tion that I think is relevant to your question and
permissible for a public servant to give.

In respect of the 1969-70 Estimates, which are the
first full year’s Estimates that I have been involved
in as a Secretary of the Treasury Board, the total
requests from the departments and agencies which
came in originally in their program review was
something like $1.5 billion higher than what was
eventually incorporated in the main Estimates that
were presented to Parliament some weeks ago—
a biulion and a half. Now, [ can tell you, sir, that
it took blood, sweat and tears to work those propos-
als down by $1.5 billion. I am not going to
comment whether that was enough nor try to
comment whether more could or should have been
done. This is a matter of policy which ministers have
to deal with, and I am sure if you want to pursue
this, the ministers would appear and answer ques-
tions of that kind.
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Senator Grosart: Mr. Chairman, on your question
as to whether there are amendments, Mr. Reisman
has given us one example. I point out there are a
good many but there is an extraordinary one on
page 16 under Vote 15b of Public Works where
there is an exception sought from a basic provision.

...no contract may be entered into for new con-
struction with an estimated total cost of $50,000
or more unless the project is individually listed in
the details of the Estimates.

Here is a provision that there may not be contracts
of this kind entered into unless it is in the details of
the Estimates. Of course, this is not in the details of
the Estimates. So here we are saying that regardless
of the very wise provision that there should be
limitation on such contracts there, it must be listed
in the Estimates.

The Chairman: Are you suggesting that this
Labrador City for which the money is required is
not listed in the Estimates?

Senator Grosart: That is right.
The Chairman: In these Estimates?

Senator Grosart: All the amounts. The Labrador
City, Port Coquitlam and on page 17, Pinkney’s
Point, Sillery and so on are all in excess of the
$50,000 prohibition.

The Chairman: But they are listed in these Esti-
mates. This is the listing right in front of you.

Senator Grosart: No, I take it that, because this
comes from the original Estimates, this is a basic
requirement. I may be wrong, but this seems to be a
basic requirement and what we are seeking here is an
exemption from that basic requirement because these
items are over $50,000. Is that correct?

Mr. Glashan: No, sir, that is not correct. This is
the same kind of proviso we have in the main Esti-
mates for these votes. It is your safeguard really. It
is upon necessity to list for you each project whose
total cost exceeds $50,000.

The Chairman: It does not matter if the item
appears in the main supplementary Estimates. If
more than $50,000 it must appear in one or the
other.

Senator Grosart: That is clear to me. Estimates
here refer to any estimates, not the main Estimates.

Mr. Reisman: Yes, sir.

The Chairman: If I come back to the statutory
amendment, I take it that in the case of the National
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Housing Act, these are figures that must auto-
matically be increased as the size of the operation,
Central Mortage and Housing Corporation, increases.
Is that not so?

Mr. Reisman: That is correct.

The Chairman: There is one that looks like a
statutory amendment and I would like to have it
explained. That is in connection with the Canadian
Livestock Feed Board, the last item on page 4.

Freight assistance on Western Feed Grains. . .

Those words have been put in from other regions.
Does that mean in the regional statute or in the
statute that freight assistance only was designed for
certain regions and that this carries the assistance to
other regions?

Mr. Reisman: That is right, sir. My recollection, sir,
is that the original statute was very broad and did
not limit the regions, but that, subsequently, the
particular wording of the items in the Estimates
limited this program to the movement of western
seed grains to eastern Canada, and it is now through
a revision in the wording that it is designed to
broaden it again to permit this program to apply to
the movement of grains for other reasons.

I have a fairly lengthy explanation here, which I
could read to you, sir, if you wish.

The Chairman: The main thing I want to know is
whether the statute limited it to the western prov-
inces so that this, in effect, amends the statute by
extending the regions, or whether it was that our
original vote was limiting the amount of money but
that the statute enabled other regions to be brought
into it.

Mr. Reisman: My understanding, sir, is that it is
the latter situation.

The Chairman: It is not really an amendment of
the statute but an amendment of the vote.

Mr. Reisman: It is an amendment of a previous
vote, yes.

The Chairman: Thank you.

Senator Grosart: Mr. Chairman, on the same item,
authority is asked to ratify payments already made. I
merely comment that this is the kind of explanation I
would like to see in the White Paper, and I suggest
that a statement saying why it is necessary now to
ratify payments made in 1967-68 would be good. I
am not questioning it, but I would like to know.

Mr. Reisman: That is exactly what happened.
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Senator Grosart: Perhaps you can give the answer
now.

Mr. Reisman: That is exactly what happened. In
this case payments were made that were not author-
ized by an item due to an error, and what is being
asked of Parliament here is to make legal provision
for that payment that was originally made illegally.
It is just as simple as that.

Senator Walker: Under ‘“‘Treasury Board’, on page
23, Vote 5b, there is the heading “‘Contingencies”.
How much of that $105 million would be voted for
anticipated increases in salaries which have not yet
been granted, keeping in mind that part of it might
be retroactive. What part of it would be in anticipation
of retroactive increases? I ask this, because you can
appreciate how difficult this could be for the civil
servants, for instance, if they were to see $105
million had been granted for their increases and the
increases had not yet been found. If that situation
occurred, everything would be up for grabs, would it
not? I think they are anyway.

Mr. Reisman: Well, sir, as you know, Parliament
enacted several years ago to provide for collective
bargaining in the Public Service. ..

Senator Walker: Yes, I know.

Mr. Reisman: And by statute it named the Treas
ury Board as the employer in these collective bar-
gaining negotiations. Now, we are currently engaged
in negotiations with perhaps more than a score of
unions—not of unions, but of groups that have been
designated under the Public Service Staff Relations
Act for bargaining purposes. Most of them are either
in the Public Service Alliance of Canada or in the
Professional Institute of Canada. These bargaining
groups are largely formed under that umbrella, and
they are engaged in negotiations.

We have completed quite a large number of agree-
ments, and a pattern is beginning to form. These
negotiations have concerned themselves with salary
adjustments dating back for a number of years. This
is because the whole process of collective bargaining
is new in the Public Service and the statute itself
indicated a timetable by which these negotiations
were to take place at least during the initial period,
and a pattern is beginning to develop out of the
agreements already signed, providing for retroactive
pay in some cases as far back as the fiscal period of
1966. But for the most part it covers the year 1967
and the year 1968, years in which no adjustments
had been made in salary or only interim adjustments
were made.

I should indicate to this committee that the pro-
cess of bargaining has not gone forward as rapidly as
anticipated. Partly this was because it took rather
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longer than was anticipated in the legislation to get
certification for unions. In fact, some of them have
not yet been certified. There are jurisdictional
disputes between different groups wanting to re-
present categories of employees. In some cases nego-
tiations are very tough so that when you sit down at
the table it takes months to deal with a wide range
of requests on salary and related fringe and other
matters, conditions of employment.

This contingency vote has been calculated to
reflect as best we are able to what we expect to be
the results of these negotiations, having in mind the
pattern which is already emerging from what has
happened up to date. As you know, these increases
have averaged 5%, 6% and even in some cases 7 per
cent annually. I think there is some evidence that
the thing is tapering off a little.

I do not think it is any secret, I think the unions
know, that the Treasury Board is trying in negotia-
tions to get those rates of increase tapering down-
ward. But, as you know, what happens in the Public
Service, if one looks at the major factors that enter
into the consideration of what is appropriate adjust-
ment, or, in other words, when the employer has to
consider what is a reasonable proposition to put on
the table in collective bargaining, you have a good
close look at what is happening out in the private
sector for comparable groups. I do not believe that
the agreements we have entered into go beyond what
has taken place in the private sector. I would not
want to say that it does not go as far as the private
sector, because all that would do is to invite people
at the bargaining table to press harder.

But I can tell you that the Treasury Board nego-
tiators behave in as hard-nosed a manner as any
negotiators I have seen anywhere in the private
sector. So it takes a long time to complete some of
these agreements.

Senator Walker: This gives moral courage to the
bargainers on behalf of the civil servants, this $105
million set aside in anticipation that their efforts are
going to be successful, and that they are going to be
paid. It is almost a guideline to increases, is it not?

Mr. Reisman: I do not think so, sir. I put it this
way, Senator Walker . . .

Senator Walker: They are aware of this.

Mr. Reisman: The point is precisely that, in han
dling this in a contingency vote rather than breaking
it down to individual departments and agencies, we
have kept it rather indeterminate. Had we taken this
$105 million which is our best estimate of what will
be required to cover 1968-69 and former period, and
had we divided that between the departments and
agencies, it would have been a ready-made target for
the employee side in the negotiations. They would
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have know exactly what to shoot for. But this re-
lates to a rather indeterminate number and a rather
indeterminate group, and it reveals very little to the
individual bargaining units. The purpose is to do just
that. It is not to reveal too much, in that sense.

Senator Walker: The result is, then that each group
tries to get as big a grab as it can out of the $105
million.

The Chairman: I do not want to cut this off. I just
want to let the committee know that I have Senator
McLean next on my list and then Senator Everett
and then Senator Nichol. Do you wish to continue,
Senator Walker?

Senator Walker: No, that is fine. I think Mr.
Reisman has answered my question.

Senator McLean: On page 26 of the supplementary
Estimates (B), under the general heading ‘“Loans,
Investments and Advances,” there is an item under
“Fisheries and Forestry,” given as Vote L32b. That
vote reads as follows:

Vote L32b—Loans in the current and subsequent
fiscal years and in accordance with
terms and conditions to be prescribed
by the Governor in Council to assist
processors of ground-fish in Canada,
which, as determined by the Fisheries
Prices Support Board, are unable to
obtain sufficient financing on reason-
able terms from other sources, to main-
tain raw fish prices, ie. prices to
primary producers, at the 1966-1968
level . . . .$6,000,000

Now, is this money a loan or is it a grant? Isita
loan which is returned with interest or is it a grant
to the processors? What relation has this support to
the announcement made last week by the Depart-
ment of Fisheries with reference to the east coast
groundfish industry.

Mr. Reisman: This particular $6 million, as I
understand it, sir, is for the purpose of enabling the
Fisheries Prices Support Board to go into the market
place and to purchase frozen groundfish and to
withhold it from the market, with a view to encour-
aging the price to move upwards to a price that
more closely reflects reasonable costs and the situa-
tion in the market place as of a year or two ago.

As honourable senators know, there has been
rather a bad decline in the price of ground-
fish—codfish, mainly, codfish fillets—to the detriment
of fishermen in eastern Canada and, particularly, in
Newfoundland. The Strange situation is that the
prices, in the main market for these frozen fillets, at
the retail level, have been rising, and rising rather
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quickly, and this suggests there is something wrong
at the initial marketing end. While Canadian fisher-
men and processors are getting less for their ground-
fish than they did two years ago, the retailers are
getting considerably more for the same fish. This
suggests that the marketing system, whereby a large
number of suppliers face in the market place a small
number of big buyers, has driven the prices down. I
gather that competition from European countries has
also been a factor in this, where they had the effect
of offering supplies at a time when the buyers would
take advantage of it and drive the price down, and
then pick up a rather bigger margin in their dis-
posals.

I gather that the Department of Fisheries, after
examining the situation and considering how best to
help the fishing industry and in choosing between a
straight handout, which is a sort of income support
to the fishermen, or a system whereby you intervene
in the market place by taking some of the supplies
off the market at a critical time, from the point of
view of the taxpayer and a healthier industry, the
judgment was made that it would be better to enter
into the market and take off supplies at these critical
periods and let the price move back to a more
reasonable level, and then reintroduce them into the
market.

If all goes well, this $6 million will be spent for
supplies of fish to be injected into the market after
the price moves upwards. If that occurs, there will
be no loss. If it does not, and the Fisheries Prices
Support Board incurs a loss, then in one of the
future Estimates items the Department of Fisheries
will include an item making up the loss of the Board
in the form of a straight appropriation. It is hoped
that this money will come back and that there will
not be a cost to the taxpayer.

A question was asked as to whether interest would
be covered. I am afraid I do not know the answer to
that, and I would like to consult my colleagues
whether provision is made for the Fisheries Prices
Support Board to do some bookkeeping on their rate
of interest.

Honourable senators, I believe there is. I believe
that when an advance is made to an organization like
the Fisheries Prices Support Board it is made on the
basis of the cost of borrowing to the Government
for medium-term bonds, plus some small charge for
administration.

Senator McLean: As you know, 90 per cent of the
east coast ground fish, frozen, are sold in the United
States.

Mr. Reisman: That is right, sir.

Senator McLean: Unless Norway, Poland, Green-
land and Iceland are in accordance with our depart-
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ment, then the department could find themselves
with a hell of a lot of fish on their hands. I have had
talks with the department on that. If they can get to
work with them, then, fine; but, if not, the United
States buyers can say, “Go ahead and buy your
fish.” They could buy all the east coast production.
$6 million, to me, looks like a very small amount if
they run into trouble.

Mr. Reisman: If I might make an additional
comment on this, a considerable proportion of the
groundfish produced in Canada is handled through
processors who are themselves part of an integrated
operation, and they have much better control of
prices at which these fish trade. A rather smaller
proportion are independent processors who must go
into the market place and face an arm’s length pur-
chase. Therefore, $6 million would be looked at in
relation to that aspect rather than a total produc-
tion.

A second situation is—and it is quite a fancy
game—if you intervene in the right place at the right
time, small interventions can have quite significant
effects. 1 agree with you that a good deal will
depend on the behaviour of the overseas suppliers.

Senator McLean: Thank you.

Mr. Reisman: I think there is some evidence they
are also unhappy about the price and, in a sense,
Canada, in taking this action, is giving a lead. If
co-operation is forthcoming, the price advance could
be quick and significant. If these people simply take
advantage of the fact Canada is withholding, the
conclusion will not be as satisfactory.

Senator McLean: On the east coast you have three
or four very large producers—Booth Bay Fisheries,
Gordon-Pew Limited, O’Donnel-Usen Fisheries—and
they conduct these fish right to retail in the United
States. Probably it does not matter to them what
they charge as a book entry in Canada for their fish.
That is the point you have to watch. They could sell
to the American houses at any price they wanted,
because it is only a book entry, because they control
the retail end.

Mr. Reisman: I hope the Department of Fisheries
look at the minutes of this committee meeting and
extract some good ideas from them as to how to
handle their operation.

Senator McLean: I have spoken to them several
times already.

Senator Everett: I see that under Vote 5b, which
Senator Walker mentioned, one of the reasons for
treating it that way is to get the expenditure in the
fiscal year in which, it will eventually be an expense.
The Income Tax Act, as I understand it, does not
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permit a business to set up reserves for contin-
gencies. Seeing the Government has now decided to
adopt this method of accounting, I hope you will
speak to the Minister of Finance and ask him if
there will be the same provision made for us poor
businessmen!

Going on from there, I hope I do not offend you
with a naive question. The loan account, which to-
tals for the year, $754 million, appears to me to be
an authorization which may or may not be used, as
opposed to $10 billion of actual estimates which will
be spent. Is there a statement showing the situation
at any particular time of the year in respect of those
loans. Can we see how much has been expended and
how much has been repaid, and where the loan
account stands at any particular time? I ask that
question while realizing that it may be a naive one.

Mr. Reisman: It is a question I should be able to
answer. I can say this, that as far as the Treasury
Board is concerned we do not publish periodic re-
ports in the course of a year to indicate this state of
the loans account or the state of the appropriations
account. The final accounting turns up in the Public
Accounts, after the event. The Department of
Finance does from time to time issue statements as
to what is happening in respect to revenues and
expenditures, drawing attention to extraordinary
developments. Of course, the budget statement of
the Minister of Finance—and in recent years there
have been more than one a year—contains a fairly
full indication of what has been taking place. That
information is in the White Paper as well as the
budget statement itself. But, whether those releases
deal precisely with the point you raise, I am not in a
position to say.

Senator Everett: The loans authorized are, in ef-
fect, an asset on the Canadian Government’s balance
sheet, and at any one time we should be able to find
out which of those loans is outstanding and what the
repayment situation is, and how short we are of the
total authorization. It seems to me that loans con-
tribute to the inflationary forces. I am just wonder-
ing whether it would be worthwhile to give consid-
eration to having an annual statement of the loan
account of the Government of Canada.

Mr. Reisman: The Public Accounts contains that.
The Public Accounts of Canada have the full detail
on an annual basis. I thought you were referring to
periodic reports during the year.

Senator Everett: No.

Mr. Reisman: That information can be found in
the Public Accounts.

Senator Everett: I covered myself by saying that it
was probably a naive question.
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Senator Nichol: I should like to ask Mr. Reisman a
general question, following on Senator Beaubien’s
question as to whether there is any way in which
money is ever saved. Of the total governmental ex-
penditures in Canada it is my impression that about
one third is federal, and about two-thirds are com-
bined provincial and municipal. My first question is:
Is that about right? My second question—and I am
not asking you to comment on the control methods
or budgetary techniques of other levels of govern-
ment in Canada—is: Are there figures to show ex-
penditures incurred by the federal government, the
provincial governments and the municipal govern-
ments, and if so, how do they relate? If those
figures are available, how does the federal govern-
ment’s performance compare with that of other
jurisdictions in terms of its control of rising costs? I
ask this question in a very broad sense.

Mr. Reisman: On your question, sir, as to whether
this proportion of one third to two thirds is about
right, 1 suppose what can be said is that this has
been a shifting picture over the course of the last
fifty years. I think if you go back over that period
you will find that the federal budget was a much
higher proportion of the total than it is today. I
suspect what has been happening is that the fields of
responsibility which are essentially provincial and
municipal and municipal have been regarded by the
elected representatives of the people at all levels of
gouvernment as more urgent, namely, education,
health and highways, which have been taking increas-
ing amounts of the total pie. I think this explains
the shift. If I were asked to make a guess I would
expect that that shift will continue, with the prov-
inces and municipalities expending an increasing
proportion of the total as time goes by.

In reply to your question as to how we are doing
when compared with other levels of government, I
would say that we are doing better.

Senator Nichol: That is why I asked that question.

Mr. Reisman: We are doing better, I think, in
terms of the annual rates of increase. I think if you
look back over the last number of years, or over the
past decade, you will see that there seens to have
been a more effective restraint at the federal level
than at the other levels of government in the rates of
anuual increase of public expenditures. There may be
very good reasons for this, and in making that com-
ment and using the term “‘better” I did not mean it
in the sense of more approbrium . . .

Senator Nichol: I am speaking of performance sta-
tistically, and not morally.

Mr. Reisman: Yes, statistically.

Senate Committee

Senator Grosart: Mr. Chairman, with your permis-
sion, I would like to put on the record the specific
items in the supplementary estimates which ask for
authority to do something, notwithstanding the
provisions of some other act. On my reading they
are as follows:

Page Department Vote

6 External Affairs 1b

7 External Affairs 15b
10 Indian Affairs 5b
21 Transport 57b
21 Transport 60b
26 Finance L27b
27 Indian Affairs L35b

Then, here are the authorizations requested to
extend the purpose of present acts:

Page Department Vote

13 Manpower and

Immigration 15b
19 Supply and Services 15b
23 Transport 5b
24 Treasury Board 10b
25 Veterans Affairs 30b
27 National Revenue L83b

It is my hope that some time in our deliberations,
we will come back to a discussion of those, but I
put them on the record at this time because you,
Mr. Chairman, did ask the question originally as to
what authorizations there were requested here that
in effect amend or set aside the provisions of exist-
ing statutes.

I should like also to ask Mr. Reisman about the
request at several places in the supplementaries for
the authorization of a revolving fund. I think I know
the purpose of that. Is it correct to say that this is
an authorization requested for an exemption from
the general provision that funds appropriated under
any vote must be returned to the Receiver General if
they are not expended by the end of the fiscal
year? Whether that is so or not, under the new look
of the Estimates is it contemplated to allow every
department a revolving fund to get over what I have
said may be a problem in that anybody seeking a
grant of money from a department is quite often
told to get the request in at about the end of the
eleventh month because the department may have
some money left over, and that is when there is the
best chance of getting some? In view of that I am
wondering whether it would not be wise to allow
each department a minimum revolving fund.

Mr. Reisman: Well, sir, the question really is
whether the revolving fund is a technique for getting
around the lapses of voted items. We are using re-
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volving funds increasingly. I think you are correct,
senator, in referring to the fact that this is a method
which we see more of now than we used to, but I
would like it to be very clear why in the mind of
the Treasury Board the revolving fund system is one
that is worth using in some circumstances.

We encourage the use of revolving funds only in
respect of those activities which are designed to pay
for themselves or where the Treasury Board is en-
couraging the departments to run those activities on
a self-financing basis. A good example of this is the
Passport Division of the Department of External
Affairs. In the past they would seek an appropriation
to pay for the staff, equipment and whatever else
they needed, and this would show up as an expend-
iture. Whatever fees they obtained from the issuance
of passports would then be handed in to the Re-
ceiver General of Canada and would turn up in the
Consolidated Revenue Fund. Well, for some years we
have been encouraging the Department of External
Affairs—and we finally brought it to a head this last
year—to realize the desirability of running the Pass-
port Office the way a business is run. What does it
cost to handle that operation and what is a reason-
able fee to be charged for the issuance of passports?
After all, why should the taxpayer generally pay for
people who want passports in order to travel? Let us
handle this on the basis of the people that want that
service to pay for it on a reasonable basis.

This has, in fact, been done and in order to have
that operate as a good clean business operation they
are given a revolving fund and are permitted to make
inputs into it in terms of their sales and in terms of
their services, and withdraw from it to pay for per-
sonnel, rent and other things that they need in order to
render the service. There will be an accounting, and
this will be revealed. Hopefully, the Estimates will be
defined in such a way that the public at large and
Parliament in particular will know what is happening
in respect to that service. Are you losing money, are
you making money, are you operating efficiently,
and so on, and this is what the revolving will do.

Senator Everett: Where will the accounting appear
when the fund is made up again?

Mr. Reisman: We are proposing that in the annual
Estimates there will be sections dealing with these
revolving funds for which there will be a balance
sheet, as well as a profit and loss, and the works, so
you will know exactly what is happening in respect
to it. There are many other instances where this sort
of system can be applied.

We are having discussions with the Department of
Energy, Mines and Resources in respect of their
mapping service, where they produce maps and make
them available to the public or to industries who need
them. We have encouraged them to handle that on a
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user-charge basis and not make this a charge against
the taxpayer. That is really the purpose of the revolv-
ing fund, and it is not to try to avoid lapses.

On lapses, traditionally, the figure of lapsing year
over year has been in the order of about 2 per cent.
This is an interesting point, because one might have
expected that in periods of financial stringency, where
departments and agencies are being pressed very
firmly, the lapsing might have declined, but we find
that there has been a pattern where roughly 2 per cent
has been maintained.

Senator Walker: The principle, again, is that Parlia-
ment should control the purse strings. You have to be
very careful in extending.

Senator Grosart: How would that principle apply to
Vote L83b, which is on page 27, “National Revenue’’.
Do they sell uniforms?

Mr. Reisman: That is a type of revolving fund that
relates to the bulk purchase of stores. It is not the
kind of revolving fund where they hope or expect to
balance their books. It is to ease administratively the
problem of that department in respect of the purchase
of the material it requires to handle this operation.

Senator Grosart: This is a separate type of category
of revolving fund.

Mr. Reisman: Yes.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): Mr. Reisman, I am
warning you as a lawyer that I am about to put a
leading question to you. As an employer in terms of
the Treasury Board, would you like to tell us whether
the Treasury Board ever feels the twinge of conscience
because it is bound to fiscal policies and they are
greatly responsible to the inflationary trend in this
country?

Senator Walker: Tell him that is a good question.

Mr. Reisman: I want to tell you, sir, my staff and
I lose a lot of sleep, but not because of pangs of
conscience, but only because there are times we feel
perhaps we have not been as successful as we ought to
be; however, we do try.

The Chairman: I come back to Senator Grosart’s
questions in which he outlined certain items. It was
my thought that as there is a possibility the Appro-
priation Bill based on these supplementary Estimates
might reach the Senate before we had another meet-
ing of the committee, that in some way we should
report to the Senate on these Estimates. Consequent-
ly, I am wondering how we should deal with what
you have in mind, Senator Grosart, about these par-
ticular items to which you have referred. Do you
wish to leave it that Mr. Reisman will supply us with
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an explanation of those items you mentioned or do
you wish to simply leave it that we speak on the
Appropriation Bill in connection with them? I
would like to see us report if we can today that we
have examined, pursuant to the order of the Senate,
these Estimates and commend them to the Senate or
whatever you wish to say in connection with them.

Senator Grosart: I have two answers, Mr. Chair-
man. One is that if in the wisdom of the steering
committee it is useful to draw the attention of the
Senate to these particular items merely by naming
them, I would be very happy.

Senator Walker: To do what?

Senator Grosart: To have them included, just the
statement that there are these ‘‘notwithstanding
items” and these authorizations to extend the pur-
poses of acts. I say in your wisdom if you think it is
important enough to include them in the report of
the committee—

The Chairman: We should do more than we have
done so far, We should have the explanation of these
items given to us by the Treasury Board; otherwise,
we are making a statement and leaving it still in the
air. I would suggest that we would ask Mr. Reisman
to furnish us with a written explanation of each of
those items, and our report would indicate that we
called attention to them and received an explanation
from the Treasury Board, and then the adequacy of
the explanation could be dealt with in any debate on
that report or on the Appropriation Bill.

Senator Grosart: I would agree entirely. I was
drawing attention to these matters and my original
suggestion was that in futuue, it it is feasible, we should
have these explanations in advance.

The Chairman: May we then count on getting
something from the Treasury Board at your early
convenience dealing with those particular items that
Senator Grosart called attention to?

Mr. Reisman: Yes, sir, we will do that and submit
it as quickly as we can.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): May I put a question on
behalf of Senator Gélinas who had to leave? Would
you be good enough to turn to page 8, Vote 46b,
with respect to the Exchange Fund Account,
$553,393. Senator Gélinas would be interested in
knowing, Mr. Reisman, why there appears such a
delay between the time of the loss and the time of
its appearing before Parliament now, in that it would
be likely that the amount of loss would be clearly
established.

Mr. Reisman: I am sure I have an explanation here,
sir, which I will read to you as soon as I find it.

Senate Committee

The Chairman: While you are looking that up, Mr.
Reisman, perhaps Senator Bourque might ask his
question.

Senator Bourque: My question is in relation to
Vote 6b at the bottom of page 23. While the item
there is only concerned with $1,614,637, it does
form part of the total $7,267,768.60. My main ques-
tion concerns page 24 where it says that debts due
to Her Majesty are to be written off as a charge to
expenditure. If I understand that correctly, that is a
book entry.

The Chairman: We will get the answer to that
when Mr. Reisman is ready to deal with it.

Mr. Reisman: May 1 read this explanation to
Senator Phillips (Rigaud) now, sir? I am not
sure it will answer precisely your question but it
will throw some light on it. This amount is required
to restore the surplus account in the Exchange Fund
at the end of 1966 to the level of $30,300,000
established by the Minister of Finance with the con-
currence of the Public Accounts Committee. The
1964 profits of $1,449,000 and 1965 profits of
$1,406,000 were transferred to the Consolidated
Revenue Fund during 1966. A loss of $533,000 was
incurred which brought the account below the
agreed level. The purpose of this is to restore the
account.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): I understand. Thank you
very much.

Senator Beaubien: You do not need to restore it,
if there is a profit, in other words.

Mr. Reisman: That is right, sir.

The Chairman: I do not know if you were able to
catch Senator Bourque’s question.

Senator Bourque: 1 would simply direct Mr.
Reisman’s attention to page 24, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Yes. Really, the question was
whether these were just book items.

Senator Bourque: It refers to debts due to Her
Majesty needing to be written off as a charge to ex-
penditure. I believe those are book entries which
total $1,614,636.17.

Mr. Reisman: The explanation I have, sir, is that
Parliamentary authority is required to write off these
debts and claims because the Government is limited to
deletion of amounts of $1,000 each under Section 23
of the Financial Administration Act. The first catego-
ry.in this vote consists of debts due to the Crown, and,
since these items were originally authorized as loans,
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the amounts written off must be shown as budgetary
charges. They total approximately $1,614,000 and
they comprise a list of various items. Essentially, these
are losses, and because they are losses in respect of
items which originally appeared as investments, you
need an appropriation to cover them. If a loss is a very
small figure, under $1,000, there is provision in the
Financial Administration Act to wipe such a loss off
the books without seeking special Parliamentary
authority. But where a loss exceeds that figure, you
need Parliamentary authority to indicate that a loss
has been incurred and that it is wiped off the books.

Senator Bourque: What do you have to say as to
item (b) ‘“‘Claims by Her Majesty to be written off
that have not been carried in the Statement of Assets
and Liabilities”? These are actual debts that were not
paid to the Government, I understand. Is that right?

Mr. Reisman: That is right.

Senator Bourque: It seems to me that with respect
to national revenue, customs and excise, the sum of
$1,547,748 is rather large when you consider that it
averages out to approximately $5,840 per case. Per-
haps there is one case of $100,000 and another one of
$1,200, but when you consider that the average is
$5,840, it seems quite high to me. And then, if you
look at national revenue, taxation, totalling
$3,918,070.37, the average there is $8,706.

Mr. Reisman: Yes?

Senator Bourque: That seems a very high amount
that we are losing there. There should be some way of
putting an end to that, because it seems that when we
have items of $8,706, it seems high. Generally the
income tax division is very much on the job. It seems
to me that that is a big loss. That is what it averages
to. It may be a few dollars more or less.

The Chairman: I think the question that arises here,
Senator Bourque, is what is the situation with respect
to disclosure of the particular items of the debts or
claims as distinct from the aggregate amounts. This I
do not know and I do not know whether Mr. Reisman
does.

Mr. Reisman: I can provide a little bit of detail,
but you know there are a vast number of these
cases. Let me give you a few indications of what is
involved here. Let us look at the Department of
National Revenue, taxation. Deceased, no estate, 37
cases running to $316,000. Untraceable—they cannot
locate the partv who has the obligation, 94 cases
running to $284,000. Indigent—they just have not
got anything, 51 cases running to $357,000. No
longer residing in Canada, 35 cases running to
$366,000. Corporations inoperative and without any
assets, 151 cases running to $2,053,000. Undis-
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charged bankrupt corporation, no assets and trustee
discharged, 82 cases running to $540,000.

Included in the above table are two cases each
exceeding $200,000, on which further details are
attached and which I can give you if you care to
hear them.

So you see that in the business of collecting taxes
in either the Income Tax Department or the
Customs and Excise Department, there are just
thousands of cases where there is a very hard time
collecting, and these are the reasons why these are
being written off.

Senator Bourque: Considering the number of cases
and the average amount, it did seem rather high; but
when you get the explanation, it does alter the
situation a bit. z

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): Does that mean that the
Department of National Revenue works on an ac-
crual basis and that issuance of assessments are on an
accounts receivable basis as distinguished from being
on a cash basis, when it issues assessments?

Mr. Reisman: No. I asked my staff that very ques-
tion at the last meeting of the Treasury Board, and I
will admit to you that I did not get a full answer.
The answer, sir, as I understand it, is it does not;
that is, that when an assessment is issued it does not
become an account receivable to the credit of the
Receiver General. That does not become a Receiver
General account receivable until an assessment has
been made and obligation accepted and arrangements
made for payment over a period.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): But the law provides
that the issuance of an assessment constitutes a li-
ability in law against the taxpayer, and that interest
accrues from the time of the issuance of the assess-
ment. You can only have a write-off of an account
receivable on the assumption that there is such a
debt. The position is contradictory. The Income Tax
Act says quite the contrary, that the issuance of the
assessment constitutes a debt.

Mr. Reisman: The nature of the question, Mr.
Chairman, indicates that obviously the honourable
senator knows much more about that than I do, so I
will beg off. What we will try to do is to get an
answer for you from the experts and submit it to
you in writing.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): I would like to suggest
clearly that in the treatment of the supplementary
Estimates there is a variation, I think, on a strict
point of law, having regard to the Income Tax Act.

Mr. Reisman: We will have a look at that, sir.
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Senator Everett: This is a supplementary question
Mr. Chairman. Is it possible to obtain a list of the
claims written off by the Department of National
Revenue which exceeded $100,000, and the reasons
for those claims being written off?

I know that information regarding personal or
corporate taxation is privileged. However, I wonder
if the details of written-off claims are still privileged
under the Act?

Mr. Reisman: I take it that you would like to have
information, if it is not privileged, in respect of the
name of the company or the individual, or simply a
sort of summary?

Senator Everett: I thought it would be interesting to
consider all amounts above $100,000, to see what
went wrong and what happended to create these
losses. As I recall, there was one claim in the hundreds
of thousands. I cannot remember exactly how much it
was, but it was a rather substantial claim and there
were, perhaps, half a dozen over $100,000.

Mr. Reisman: We will inquire into it.

It may be that in cases of this kind you might want
to have before you even the minister or officials from
the Department of National Revenue, but we will have
a look at it and provide some kind of answer—either
that in the view of the department it is privileged, or,
if it is not, where and how you could obtain that
information.

Senator Grosart: May I make one observation? It
will be interesting, if that information is made avail-
able, to have a description of the reasons. For exam-
ple, I think the one Senator Everett is referring to was
a bankruptcy. It will be interesting to have the reasons
why they were written off.

Mr. Reisman: Very well.

The Chairman: Is it in order, as far as the commit-
tee is concerned, then—in anticipation of the fact we
may not have further meeting of the committee
before the Appropriation Bill based on these esti-
mates reaches the Senate—to report to the Senate
that the committee has considered the bill, that we
call the attention of the Senate to certain items in
which references were made to statutes, by way
either of exemption from statutes or amendments of
statutes, and that we would ask for and obtain
explanations in connection with those items? Is it
agreed that should be the substance of our report to
the Senate? Is that agreeable, or have you any other
suggestions?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: That still leaves us, on that basis,
with the main Estimates for 1969-70 which we have

Senate Committee

not yet touched, and unless some committee mem-
ber is anxious to get on with that now, I would
suggest we leave them to our next meeting. In that
connection, normally we would meet next Thursday
and normally, if we were starting with our consider-
ation of these Estimates, we would have Mr.
Reisman or officials of Treasury Board before us.
However, it so happens that we are in conflict with
ourselves in that connection. The Science Policy
Committee has arranged for Mr. Reisman to appear
before it next Thursday, so Mr. Reisman can hardly
be in two places at one time. Following up the
suggestion made by Senator Beaubien (Bedford) in the
chamber the other night that we should be looking
into not only the Estimates themselves, but also into
the economic effects of the expenditures represented
by the Estimates, not only from the standpoint of
pressure on prices and costs, but also from the stand-
point of the level of taxation and the matter Senator
Nichol raised, the question of the increase in expend-
itures relative to the other Government bodies in
Canada and the general level of taxation resulting
therefrom in Canada, with some relationship to the
levels of taxation in other countries, I can only say
that at the moment I am in touch with potential
witnesses who might be helpful to us in that connec-
tion, and I will try to arrange for them to come
before us in due course.

Senator Beaubien: Should I make a motion on this,
Mr. Chairman?

The Chairman: Just as you like.

Senator Beaubien: I would like to move that the
committee make a further study of the level of
taxation in the States of New York, Massachusetts,
Illinois and California, and also that it be empowered
to look into any relevant figures which are published
by the Organization for Economic Co-operation and
Development, so that we can have a chance to com-
pare their tax burden to our own.

Should I add something about calling witnesses and
sitting during adjournments of the Senate, Mr. Chair-
man?

The Chairman: No, you do not need to do that.
We have the power to call witnesses, and so on.

The only thing that is bothering me is what kind
of evidence we would get with respect to the states,
because that would then involve municipal expend-
itures in the states. You mentioned New York State.
Do you have in mind that we would have to con-
sider the municipal expenditures?

Senator Beaubien: I thought we should confine our-
selves more to federal and state taxation. If you go
into municipal taxation, it is so terribly complex
that I think we should only look at the state and
federal taxation.
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The Chairman: That is why I raised the question. Committee can obtain, and having it brought before
the committee in due course.
Senator Beaubien: We would only get a partial
answer, but if we go to a level of what cities charge =~ Is there any other business to come before the

for water—I do not think we need that. meeting before we adjourn? If not, I will thank Mr.
Reisman, Mr. Glashan and Mr. Berger again for their
Hon. Senators: Agreed. co-operation. We shall look forward to having them

back with us at some future time.
The Chairman: We will follow up on that by seeing
what information the Chairman and the Steering The committee adjourned.
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ORDERS OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Wednesday,
February 12th, 1969:

“With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald, moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator Langlois:

That the Standing Senate Committee on National Finance be au-
thorized to examine and report upon the expenditures proposed by the
Estimates laid before Parliament for the fiscal year ending 31st March,
1970, in advance of Bills based upon the said Estimates reaching the
Senate; and

That the Committee have power to engage the services of such
counsel and technical, clerical and other personnel as may be necessary
for the purpose of the inquiry; and

That the Committee have power to sit during adjournments of the
Senate.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Wednesday,
March 5th, 1969:

“With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator Martin, P.C., moved, seconded by the Hon-
ourable Senator McDonald:

That the Standing Senate Committee on National Finance be au-
thorized to examine and report upon the expenditures set out in the
Revised Supplementary Estimate (B) laid before Parliament for the
fiscal year ending 31st March, 1969.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

ROBERT FORTIER,
Clerk of the Senate.

29419—1%
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, March 6th, 1969.
(8)

At 11.00 am. this day the Senate Committee on National Finance met
to consider the Revised Supplementary Estimate (B), laid before Parliament
for the fiscal year ending March 31st, 1969, and the Estimates laid before
Parliament for the fiscal year ending March 31st, 1970.

" Present: The Honourable Senators Leonard (Chairman), Beaubien,
Bourque, Desruisseaux, Gélinas, Grosart, Isnor, Irvine, Laird, MacDonald
(Queens), McDonald, McLean, Pearson, Phillips (Rigaud), O’Leary (Anti-
gonish-Guysborough) and Walker. (16).

Present, but not of the Committee: The Honourable Senators Argue, Haig
and Macdonald (Cape Breton). (3)

After discussion, it was agreed that the Honourable Senator Phillips
(Rigaud) be appointed a member of the Steering Committee and that he be
Acting Chairman during the absence of the Chairman.

Upon motion of the Honourable Senator Beaubien, it was Resolved that
the Chairman have power to engage a research assistant and to set the terms
of his duties and remuneration.

Revised Supplementary Estimate (B), was considered.

After explanation by the witness, and upon motion, it was Resolved to
report on the said Supplementary Estimates.

NOTE: The full text appears in the Report of the Committee immediately fol-
lowing these Minutes.

The Committee then proceeded to the examination of the Estimates,
1969-70.

The Chairman informed the Committee that Dr. George F. Davidson,
President of the C.B.C. would be the witness at the next meeting.

At 12.20 p.m. the Committee adjourned until Thursday, March 13th, 1969,
at 9.30 am. :

ATTEST:

Frank A. Jackson,
Clerk of the Committee.



REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, March 6th, 1969.

By Orders of the Senate respectively made on Tuesday, February 25th,
1969, and Wednesday, March 5th, 1969, the Senate Committee on National
Finance was directed to examine and report upon the expenditures set out
in the Supplementary Estimates “B” and Revised Supplementary Estimate
“B”, laid before Parliament for the fiscal year ending March 31st, 1969.

Your Committee has examined the said Supplementary Estimates “B”
and Revised Supplementary Estimate “B”, and heard evidence from the
Secretary of the Treasury Board and members of his staff thereon and reports
as follows:

1. These are the fiscal Estimates for the fiscal year 1968-69 and bring
the total of all Estimates for the year to the sum of $10,822,797,126
and the total of all Loans, Investments, and Advances to $754,918,126.

2. Your Committee has noted with approval that for the current year
the Supplementary Estimates, in number or in total amount, have
been less than for many years. This is a step in the right direction
which we hope will be maintained in the years to come.

3. The said Supplementary Estimates “B” contained over forty (40)
items of one dollar ($1) each, and your Committee asked for explana-
tions of these items individually. The explanations have been received
from which it appears that these items fall into three categories;

(a) Items authorizing transfers within Votes previously approved by
Parliament.

(b) Items authorizing transfers from Votes previously approved by
Parliament.

(c) Items which are legislative in nature.

While the Committee has not approved of the general practice involved
in these one dollar ($1) items, and particularly of those involving statutory
amendments, it accepted the explanations with respect to such individual items
contained in the said Supplementary Estimates “B” and Revised Supplementary
Estimate “B”. These explanations will be appended to the printed proceedings
of the Committee.

All which is respectfully submitted.

T. D’ARCY LEONARD,
Chairman.



THE SENATE COMMITTEE ON NATIONAL FINANCE

EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Thursday, March 6, 1969

The Senate Committee on National Finance,
to which was referred the Estimates laid
before Parliament for the fiscal year ending
31st March, 1970, met this day at 11 a.m.

Senator T. D’Arcy Leonard (Chairman) in
the Chair.

The Chairman: Before we proceed with the
main business of today’s meeting there are
some housekeeping items to be dealt with.
First, Senator Donald Smith was for many
years on the old Finance Committee—and its
steering committee. I would suggest that
Senator Lazarus Phillips might take his place
on the steering committee, if that is
agreeable.

Hon, Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: The second matter is that I
shall be away for the next three meetings. I
have taken the liberty of asking Senator Phil-
lips (Rigaud) if he would be acting chairman
in my absence, and I would ask the commit-
tee if they will endorse that invitation.

Hon., Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, and
thank you very much, Senator Phillips, for
agreeing to do so.

Over a period of time I have been consider-
ing whether we should not have a research
assistant for this comittee. With the additional
work we are doing and with the suggestion
agreed to last week, put forth by Senator
Louis Beaubien, we are engaged in a study of
the level of taxation and I think it becomes
more important that we have a research
assistant. I have been making some investiga-
tions and inquiries, and I think we may very
well have somebody in mind. In view of the
fact that I shall be absent I should like to be
able to complete the definitive terms with
somebody before I go away. This may require
you giving me something in the order of a
blank cheque, but I should like you, if you
are willing to do so, to authorize the engaging

of a research assistant for the committee on
terms to be settled by the chairman of the
committee.

Senator Beaubien: I so move.
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Is there any discussion? It
will not be for too long a period of time, but
as long as we are engaged on these special
studies I think we must have somebody to
work with us. If there is no discussion on this,
is it your pleasure to adopt the motion?

Hon, Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Last week we agreed on a
report to the Senate dealing with Supplemen-
tary Estimates (B). There was some wording
to be put in dealing with the dollar items at
the suggestion of Senator Grosart. The report
would have gone in before now with this kind
of wording, the rest of the report dealing
simply with the figures:

The said Supplementary Estimates (B)
contained over 40 items of $1 each, and
your committee asked for explanations of
these items individually. The explanations
have been received. ..

and actually they are on the table here now,
for each individual $1 item...

from which it appears that these items
fall into three categories:

(@) Items -authorizing the transfers
within Votes previously approved by
Parliament.

(b) Items authorizing transfers from
Votes previously approved by Parlia-
ment.

(¢) Items which are legislative in
nature. While the committee has not
approved of the general practice involved
in these dollar items, and particularly of
those involving statutory amendments, it
accepted the explanations with respect to
such individual items contained in the
said Supplementary Estimates (B).



This was the form of the report as
drafted. The report was held up because there
was filed an amendment to Supplementary
Estimates (B), Vote 12b, under the heading of
“Labour Standards and Benefits.” Vote 12b as
it read in Supplementary Estimates provided
for certain payments of compensation

to employees of the Cape Breton Devel-
opment Corporation who incurred silico-
sis as a result of employment in the coal
mines now operated by the Corporation
prior to their acquisition, as if the injury
were incurred subsequent to their acqui-
sition by the Corporation.

The revision of that, which came in this
week, uses after the word “Corporation” the
words “and other persons”. That is the
change that has been made this week. It does
not seem to affect particularly the principles
set out in the item. The amount is estimated
to be of the order of a liability of about $1
million spread over whatever period of time
may be required for compensation payments.
It relates, of course, to the taking over of
DOSCO, and the principle was the same as in
the time as it came before us last week. It
may be, however, that some further explana-
tion of this item should be required before we
put in this report, because yesterday the
Senate referred the Revised Estimate (B) to
us. Perhaps Mr. Cloutier would wish to add
something on this.

Mr. S. Cloutier, Assistant Secretary, Treas-
ury Board: Subsequent to the preparation
and tabling of Supplementary Estimate (B) it
became evident that the people who were
meant to be covered by this vote were not all
at present employees of DREVO. The number
of persons affected by silicosis was 81, and
there are now only 16, I believe, who are still
employees of DOSCO; the other 65 are no
longer employees of DOSCO, but they did
contract silicosis while employed in the mines
previously owned and operated by DOSCO,
so the authorities required to allow payments
to be made to all these 81 persons under the
Government Employees Compensation Act.

Senator Grosari: I should like to make two
comments. One is on the report. I wonder,
Mr. Chairman, if you would think it wise to
put in the two words “as factual” after “ac-
cepted”, in the statement that we have ac-
cepted the explanation of the $1 items. There
seems to be a contradiction between the
qualifier which you used and the word “ac-
cepted”. I should like to say “accepted as
factual” not “accepted the principle”.

Senate Commitiee

The Chairman: I am in the hands of the
committee. The point in my mind is that it
may well be we do not think it right as a
general practice to have statutory amendments
made through the use of Supplementary
Estimates, but when we have examined into a
particular item and are satisfied it is a proper
thing to do, then we should say that, or else
we should say we do not think it is a proper
thing to do.

That is why I say we still have our reser-
vations about the general principle about put-
ting any statutory amendments through, but
having, for example, in this one we are deal-
ing with at the very moment. If that explana-
tion is not satisfactory we should perhaps do
something more about it, but the bill will be
in ‘this afternoon. We either have to vote for
the bill in continuing that item or we have to
say we are against it. I think as far as the
items are concerned themselves, we should
take a stand, either we accept them or we do
not accept them.

Senator Grosart: Mr. Chairman, as a mem-
ber of the committee I am in a difficult posi-
tion of not having seen the explanations of
the $1 items. It is a little difficult to say that I
accept the explanations when I have not seen
them.

The Chairman: I understood the decision
last week was that we were not going to go
into all the 50-odd items. We were expressing
ourselves that this was something we still did
not like in principle, but if we have to go into
every individual item—the witnesses were
there and they are still here.

Senator Beaubien: Mr. Chairman, if Sena-
tor Grosart could have the little black book
with the explanations it might assist him.

The Chairman: He can have them all. He is
also quite free to speak on the report and
express his own views. I think we should in
some way or another register some opinion on
this.

Senator Grosart: I think you have rendered
an opinion, Mr. Chairman, and I am not
objecting to that, but the reason I suggested
we have these explanations was just to avoid
going through all 50 in committee, seriatim,
one after the other. I selected a group which
we put on our record and I asked to have
explanations.

Now, perhaps we could have the explana-
tions appended to our proceedings.
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The Chairman: I think that is a satisfactory
solution to it. Is it agreeable to have these
explanations attached to the proceedings of
this meeting?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: It simply says that we have
accepted the explanations, and are not pursu-
ing it further.

Senator Grosart: I am prepared to accept
that, Mr. Chairman. The reason I raised the
question is the fact that we have raised it in
this committee over the years. It has at last
got some action in the Commons. They are
discussing the matter and I think this com-
mittee is entitled to credit for the fact that we
have drawn attention to this. In the commit-
tee’s last report and again in this report I
think we have accomplished something if we
have stirred up the Public Service to examine
this device. Perhaps I could comment in the
same. ..

The Chairman: Perhaps. Let me just then
try and finalize this. Would you like, in addi-
tion to our appending the explanations to the
minutes of today’s proceedings, state that in
the order we accepted the explanations which
have been attached to the minutes of our
proceedings? Is that agreeable?

Senator Grosart: Mr. Chairman, I would
like to speak to vote 12b. I agree of course
with the principle and what 12b will do.
However, we have the wording “to authorize
in the current and subsequent fiscal years
payment,” and so on. Here we are, I think,
amending an act for subsequent years. I won-
der how long this supplementary item would
continue to be the authorization for Govern-
ment action. Here is an example. Perhaps I
could call the attention of the committee to
the Canada Gazette, Part II of February 26,
1969. There is a reference to an Appropriation
Act No. 5, 1955. Leaving out the formalities, it
is as follows:

His Excellency the Governor General
in Council, on the recommendation of the
Minister of Fisheries, pursuant to Vote
540 of Appropriation Act No. 5, 1955, is
pleased hereby—

So here is a case where we have exactly the
same kind of appropriation item. In this case,
carrying on for 14 years as the authority. In
the meantime, no amendment to the Act and
no amendment to regularize this other than to
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carry on year after year. Now, this item is
exactly the same. I will ask Mr. Cloutier if he
thinks this is a good principle.

Secondly, should, in a case like this, the
Act not be amended in the regular way to
incorporate what is in effect an amendment in
an appropriation act 14 years ago?

Mr. Cloutier: Mr. Chairman, it is my
understanding that the Revised Statutes of
Canada, when they are revised, would bring
into the main bodies of the statutes these
various amendments that are approved by
Parliament through the $1 votes.

On the other hand, I am not in a position to
assure the committee that this is the case in
every instance. The basis on which these $1
items are put into the Estimates are that they
do not change the substance or the principle
or the objective of the legislation itself. They
merely extend its application to individual
cases or, in other instances, they raise limits
that have been placed in prior legislation.
They are put to Parliament in the form of $1
items for those two reasons, and also because
the only other way would be to have them
come to Parliament in the form of separate
bills, thereby requiring on the both sides of
Parliament three readings and individual
treatment, and so on.

With the rather heavy schedule of legisla-
tion now before Parliament this, in a way, is
a procedure to obtain parliamentary approval
through a more streamlined approach which
makes smaller claims upon parliamentary
time.

Senator Grosart: I agree with that. I am not
objecting to all $1 items. I return to my ques-
tion as to whether, in the period of 14 years,
there was not time to have dealt with this, in
this particular case, Appropriation Act No. 5,
1955. If there was mot time, should not there
have been the will or the effort to have the
amendment made so it does not run on for 14
years on this basis? I am not a lawyer, but I
wonder what the position a lawyer would be
if a client came and asked him, if certain
people were eligible under the act and he
looked up the act and said no.

Mr. Cloutier: I can only agree it is certainly
untidy to leave the situation for 14 years, and
that a preferable approach would be to have
a separate amendment to the Act itself. As I
have indicated, it is a question of time.

The Chairman: Is that particular item in
our 1969-70 Estimates? I wonder if we could
make special reference to it?
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Senator Grosari: My reference was to an
order in council published, as it is required to
be, in Part II of the Canada Gazette.

The Chairman: It is not actually right in
our Estimates?

Senator Grosari: I was using it as an exam-
ple of a parallel case to vote 12b.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, is it
agreed that we have finished with Revised
Supplementary Estimate (B) on the basis that
we have discussed the report and the amend-
ments made to it? Is that agreeable? Are
there any further comments on Revised Sup-
plementary Estimate (B)?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, we
proceed now to the main Estimates of 1969-70.
This is our first examination of those Esti-
mates in this committee. We have with us
Mr. S. Cloutier, Assistant Secretary of the
Treasury Board and Mr. J. G. Glashan ‘is
with us again. I presume you would wish that
we hear Mr. Cloutier’s statement now and
proceed in the usual fashion then.

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

Mr. Cloutier: Mr. Chairman and honourable
senators:

The budgetary Estimates for 1969-70 total
$11,858 million. Normal lapsing would bring
expenditures based on these Estimates down
to something below the $11,670 million figure
projected by the Minister of Finance in his
Budget Speech last October. The 1969-70
budgetary Estimates of $11,858 million com-
pare with total 1968-69 Estimates of $10,823
million. The increase between years is, there-
fore, $1,029 million. Of this increase, approxi-
mately $860 million relate to statutory items
and the balance, about $170 million, to items
requiring annual appropriations.

It should be recalled that the Minister of
Finance has mentioned on several occasions
that expenditures could easily vary from the
projection of $11,670 million by about 1%
either way. In this connection I should point
out that while these Estimates were being
printed, the provincial Governments were
asked to provide us with more up-to-date fore-
casts of their expenditures under the Canada
Assistance Plan, the Hospital Insurance and
Diagnostic Services Act, and for Post-second-
ary Education. These latest forecasts confirm

Senate Commitiee

the wvalidity of the total amount included in
the Estimates tabled today for these pro-
grams. It is not possible for me to be more
definite in this report since not all provincial
treasurers have presented their own 1969-70
Estimates to their legislatures.

There may be a need, as in the past, for
supplementary estimates in the course of the
year to meet urgent and unforeseen require-
ments. As the President of the Treasury
Board stated when he tabled the main Esti-
mates for 1969-70 in the House of Commons,
the Government is determined that such sup-
plementary estimates, if any, will be kept to
a minimum and held to figures consistent
with the declared objective of a balanced
budget.

The Estimates make provision for the
expenditures required under programs for
which statutory authority has already been
granted by specific Acts of Parliament, such
as the large programs mentioned earlier as
well as Medicare and public debt charges, or
resulting from formal agreements with the
provinces such as those relating to occupa-
tional training of adults and regional develop-
ment. It should be noted that in respect of
Medicare, as indicated in the Budget Speech,
provision has been made on the basis of par-
ticipation by all the provinces for the full
year.

Apart from these outlays, which are not
readily manageable in the short term at least,
the Estimates for 1969-70 provide the
required funds for the Government to carry
out its current defence commitments, and re-
flect the decision of the Government to give
priority to a number of specific areas of
activity within an overall framework of
budgetary restraint.

Increased allocations have been made to
programs for the efficient growth of the
economy; to measures that contribute to rais-
ing the level of industrial technology,
research and development and improving
productivity; to programs for the support of
research in the universities, and to water
reesarch programs.

Growth has also been provided in programs
essential to the strengthening of national uni-
ty; to the reduction of regional disparities; to
the improvement of the situation of Indians
and Eskimos; and to the expansion of our
external aid.

Finally, provision has been made to meet
the increasing needs of Parliament and essen-
tial funds have been allowed for the protec-
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tion of persons and property, towards the
acquisition of a communications satellite, and
for postal operations.

A careful scrutiny was carried out of the
manpower requirements of the various depart-
ments and agencies of the Public Service
with the result, shown at page 476 of the
Estimates Blue Book, that the overall man-
power allocation for the year 1969-70 shows a
decrease of 9,332 man-years from the levels
authorized in the current year. The program
of restraint on the overall size of the Public
Service which was announced by the Govern-
ment in March, 1968, will be continued in
1969-70.

The considerations outlined above are re-
flected in the major elements of increase in the
1969-70 Estimates over those of the current
year. About 83% of the overall increase is
made up of the requirements for programs
authorized by existing legislation such as:

Million
ModBcare | ol o v F AR vty $ 335
Superannuation—Civil and RCMP 154
Public Debt Charges. . .o« sasssamsas 130
Fiscal Transfers to the Provinces . 101
Hospital Insurance Payments 65

Post-Secondary Education Payments 53
Superannuation—Defence ........ 51
Canada Assistance Plan .......... 48

In the category of programs for which
annual appropriations of Parliament are
required and which account for $6,185 million
or 52% of the total, the major elements of
increases are:

Million
DETEIINE  SETVICES o ous a'a o sqoais siatc s s $ ol
Regional Economic Expansion Con-
FBUtIONS® 40, e SR i 46
Federal Government Accommoda-
tionE 3tk LB S e A8 ERRINSTA . P 35
Adult Occupational Training ...... 34

Indian, Eskimo and Northern De-

velopment Programs ........... 33
External Aid (excluding Loans) ... 18
Broddedsting . .9 4 F R0 SR 15
Grants for Scientific and Social Re-

Searchiq srs, Parifng Ml s Gl & 14
Postal > 'Sérvieesit . I 15 s 8I0L s L5 13
Industrial Development Assistance . 1
Water Research Programs ........ 5

The foregoing amounts relating to budget-
ary expenditures do not include loans, invest-
ments and advances on non-budgetary
account, for which parliamentary approval is
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also being sought, in the amount of $614 mil-
lion in the 1969-70 Estimates.

The corresponding amount in total esti-
mates for 1968-69 is $755 million. Similarly,
the budgetary expenditures set forth in the
preceding paragraphs do not include the fore-
cast expenditures for old age security pay-
ments. These payments, amounting to an
estimated $1,760 million in 1969-70 as com-
pared to $1,581 million in 1968-69, are car-
ried separately from the budgetary expendi-
tures provided for in the estimates as a statu-
tory charge against the Old Age Security
Fund to which are credited the special taxes
levied for this purpose.

I should also point out a few presentational
changes which have been introduced in the
1969-70 Blue Book of estimates. For the first
time we are providing details of the estimates
requirements of Crown Corporations. Further,
we have simplified the presentation of man-
power detail and introduced a new standard
expenditure coding system.

Finally, honourable senators have by now
received copies of booklets setting forth the
1969-70 estimates for each department or
ministry in the form which was discussed
with you when we last appeared before this
committee. I trust that these booklets will be
of assistance to you in your examination of
the 1969-70 estimates.

Mr. Chairman, I will be pleased to attempt
to answer any questions that honourable
senators have.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Mr.
Cloutier. Now, who would like to lead off?

Senator Pearson: Mr. Cloutier, do you have
a list of the departments that show a decrease
in their estimates this year rather than an
increase?

Mr. Cloutier: This would be available at
page 4 of the Blue Book where you have a
total listing of all departments and agencies
showing the change between the year 1968-69
and 1969-70. The departments and agencies
that show a decrease are the following; the
Department of Agriculture, $4,975,775 which
is practically $5 million. Then the Canadian
Livestock Feed Board decrease is shown as
$18,300. The International Joint Commission
shows a decrease of $2,400. The Department
of Fisheries and Forestry shows a decrease of
$554,300. The amounts required for the offices
of the Governor General and the Lieutenant
Governors decreased by $72,500. Then we
come to Defence Construction (1951) Limited
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where the decrease is $100,000. There is a
decrease of $2,500 for the Public Service Staff
Relations Board; a decrease of $13,884,500 for
the Chief Electoral Officer; and the Represen-
tation Commissioner will require $35,000 less
in the new year. The Department of Supply
and Services have estimates lower than those
of the current year by $4,323,190; and Canadi-
an Arsenals Limited shows a decrease of $200.
The Department of Transport shows a budget-
ary decrease of $7,010,300 and the Canadian
Transportation Commission shows a decrease
of $10,231,746. The National Harbours Board
shows a decrease of $580,000 and the St. Law-
rence Seaway Authority shows a decrease of
$228,000. The Department of Veterans Affairs
shows a decrease of $4,663,900.

Senator Pearson: Can you tell me why
there is a reduction in the Department of
Transport?

Mr. Cloutier: I did make it clear at the
time that the decrease was a budgetary
decrease. The expansion of the airports in
Montreal and Toronto is being financed out of
loans which were approved or which are now
before Parliament in the Supplementary Esti-
mates B for 1968-69.

Senator Grosari: Mr. Cloutier, of the $335
million that is provided for Medicare, can you
give us the total amount that would cover
those provinces who have already indicated
that they will participate?

Mr. Cloutier: Could I ask your leave to
submit this information in writing. I do not
have it in front of me now and I do not have
it in mind. I should point out that the $335
million merely relates to the increase over the
total provision of $35 million for 1968-69, so
that the total provision in the estimates for
1969-70 is $370 million.

Senator Grosari: I would like to have that
because it may be a cushion.

The Chairman: Mr. Cloutier, in addition to
supplying to the committee, would you see
that a copy is made available to Senator
Grosart?

Mr. Cloutier: Certainly.

Senator Grosari: My second question deals
with the estimate of the total last year of
open-end shared-cost programs with the
provinces.

The Chairman: Do you mean 1968-69?

Senate Commitiee

Senator Grosari: Yes, because obviously it
can only be estimated for this year. Let me
put it this way; I would be interested in
knowing what it might amount to in 1969-70,
but the only guide to that is what it was in
1968-69.

Mr. Cloutier: I have the information as to
what it is expected to be for 1969-70 before
me. I am afraid I haven’t got the figures for
1968-69.

Senator Grosari: The “expected” will be
better.

Mr. Cloutier: The total cost to the federal
government for the three open-end shared
cost programs to which you refer amount to
$2.7 billion. It is made up in the following
way, $882 million for hospital insurance, $495
million for Canada Assistance Plan, and $628
million for post secondary education. These
payments are the total cash given to the
provinces made up partly of cash payments
and partly of tax abatements. Would you like
to have further details?

Senator Grosari: Very much.

Mr. Cloutier: In relation to hospital insur-
ance where the total is $882 million, and I
am rounding off the estimate, for the Depart-
ment of National Health and Welfare it con-
tains a provision of $625 million. The cash
payment which is provided for in the esti-
mates of the Department of Finance amounts
to about $65 million and the tax abatement
related to this program amounts to $195 mil-
lion. The cash payment appearing in the
Department of Finance and the tax abatement
relate to the Province of Quebec only under
this program. "

The Estimates indicate that if the Canada
Assistance Plan earns an amount of $300 mil-
lion in the estimates of National Health and
Welfare and an amount of $145 million or
$146 million in the Department of Finance
with respect to Quebec again, the tax abate-
ment relating to Quebec is in the order of $54
million to $55 million.

Under post-secondary  education, the
payments. to all the provinces are on the same
basis and the total, as I indicated earlier, is
in the order of $628 million. The estimates of
the department of the Secretary of State
include an amount of $325 million to $328
million as a cash payment, and the value of
the tax abatement and the equalization pay-
ment is of the order of $299 million or $300
million. There is a part of this $299 million,
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the part relating to the equalization payment,
which appears in the Estimates and my
immediate recollection is that it is in the
order of $21 million ‘or $25 million.

Senator Grosari: Is the $614 million figure
for loans, investments and advances, a total
figure of all loans, investments and advances?

Mr. Cloutier: No, sir. I should like to point
out that this includes only those loans, invest-
ments and advances that require to be
appropriated annually by Parliament. There
are a number of other loans which are made
pursuant to specific legislation. The legislation
will authorize the Minister of Finance to
advance moneys up to a certain maximum to
various agencies.

Senator Grosart: What do they amount to
in relation to the $614 million?

Mr. Cloutier: I am afraid I have not got
that information, sir.

Senator Grosarit: What instrumentalities of
government are involved?

Mr. Cloutier: You would have, for instance,
the Central Mortgage and Housing Corpora-
tion, the Farm Credit Corporation, advances
to the C.N.R.?

Senator Grosari: And Air Canada through
the C.N.R.?

Mr. Cloutier: Air Canada through the
C.N.R., that is right. These are the large ones.
I cannot bring to mind the others at the
moment.

Senator Grosart: So the $614 million is not
a realistic figure as far as the effect on the
cash flow situation of the Government is
concerned?

Mr. Cloutier: It is not, sir.

Senator Grosart: How are they accounted
for? Where do we find them?

Mr. Cloutier: These are found in the Public
Accounts of Canada.

Senator Grosart: are not in the

Estimates?

They

Mr. Cloutier: They are not in the Estimates,
sir.

Senator Grosari: Why? Other statutory
demands are in the Estimates. Why are these
not in the Estimates?

Mr. Cloutier: I think the reason for this
must be historical. I can find no other reason
than this. While the statutory expenditures of
a budgetary nature have to be taken into
account in arriving at the overall deficit or
surplus, these do not affect the surplus and
they simply do not appear. We would hope
over the next few years to so refine our pres-
entation of the Estimates that we would in
one document indicate the best estimates of
those loans as well, in exactly the same way
as we do for statutory budgetary expendi-
tures.

Senator Grosart: But these items would
affect the cash requirements of the Govern-
ment?

Mr. Cloutier: Yes.

Senator Grosari: Which are coming to be
more and more an important factor in public
finance.

Mr. Cloutier: You are entirely right, sir.

Senator Grosart: Are they not added up
anywhere at the moment?

Mr. Cloutier: Yes, they are added up.

Senator Grosart: In the Public Accounts are
they totalled as such, or do we have to look
through the various agencies and institutions?

Mr. Cloutier: I would think these would
appear in the budgetary papers. I would
think so, when the Minister of Finance gives
an indication of his overall cash
requirements.

Senator Grosari: In the papers, but not in
the Public Accounts in one spot?

Mr. Cloutier: I do not know for a fact they
do appear in one spot in the Public Accounts.

Senator Grosart: You have given us the
output figure for the old age security pro-
gram. How does that relate to the receipts,
and what is the status of the fund at the
moment?

Mr. Cloutier: I do not think I could give an
answer on the status of the fund at this
moment, but you will find the detail at page
255 of the Blue Book. Incidentally, in prior
years this information appeared on the sum-
mary sheet. This year, the number of entries
having grown a little longer, we have had to
put this information together with the date of



the Department of Health and Welfare on
page 255. We have not got the revenue here, I
think.

Senator Grosart: That was my question.
How do these figures relate to input. This is
output. It is not a realistic figure in that
sense, although this is kept apart from your
budgetary statement. I would like to know
now or later.

Mr. Cloutier: Could we supply you with
this information?

Senator Grosari: What is the net profit or
loss in the year?

Mr. Cloutier: The revenue indicated in the
budget papers for the old age security was
$1,625 million for 1968-69. The figure for 1968-
69 is shown at page 1693 of the House of
Commons Debates for October 22, 1968 as $1,-
625 million. This would relate to the estimat-
ed expenditures from that fund for the year
1968-69 of $1,581 million, showing an estimat-
ed surplus for that year of some $44 million.

Senator Grosart: When you are providing
us with those other figures, Mr. Cloutier,
could you give us the present standing of that
fund?

Mr. Cloutier: We will endeavour to do so,
sir.

Senator Grosart: Mr. Chairman, the Minis-
ter of Finance in Washington the other night
gave the position of other western industrial
nations in terms of a percentage of GNP that
is required for all governments. In other
words, he suggested that for Canada it was
about 35 per cent at the moment. We also
have a figure of 17.5 in our own report, which
is an estimate of the percentage of GNP
required for all federal purposes. That is
going up or down?

Mr. Cloutier: Actually, sir, if I can speak
from memory, I have not got the precise
figures before me, but it has been rather sta-
tionary over the last 10 years. I think that
early in the sixties, it was around 17. It
dipped around 1964 and 1965 to maybe 15. It
is back up to approximately 17. We could
provide you with this comparison, the actual
facts and the percentage.

Senator Grosart: Could you also provide
the provincial and municipal amounts? There
is a shot taken at it in the budget papers, but
it is not too clear. :
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Mr. Cloutier: This might take a little long-
er. If you do not mind receiving your infor-
mation in two bites. 3

The Chairman: We will be certainly getting
that through our research assistants or in our
studies. In the meantime, we will see what
the Treasury Board can turn out.

Mr. Cloutier: We might have to do it in two
bites, so you do not wait too long for it.

Senator Grosart: That is all, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman: Next question, please.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): Mr. Cloutier,
how does the Government deal with the sub-
ject matter of the loans that are not included
in the estimates that appear on page 4? When
you have such expenditures, say to Canadian
National or Air Canada is the loan offset
immediately by accounts receivables and do
the national accounts so balance out?

Mr. Cloutier: The loans to the CNR are
authorized by an act of Parliament every
year.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): When we speak
of a balanced budget in terms of approxi-
mately $11 billion and leaving out the ques-
tion of Old Age Security Fund for the
moment—assuming that is more or less in
balance—but dealing with the particular
loans of large amounts, having regard to cash
flow, this money must come from Govern-
ment borrowing, does it not?

Mr. Cloutier: That is right.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): It comes from
Government borrowing. We have a national
debt. Do they constitute simply uncollectible
accounts receivable, which have resulted in
increasing our national debt?

Mr. Cloutier: I would not say all loans
authorized by statute are by definition uncol-
lectible, but none of these loans, advances or
investments are taken into account in arriv-
ing at a budgetary figure.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): That I appreci-
ate, but when we are preparing, say, when
the accountant has his assets and liabilities,
as page 1 of a balance sheet and page 2
usually dealing with revenues and expendi-
tures, in effect we are dealing with revenues
and expenditures which are part of the nor-
mal balance sheet in terms of the commercial
operation. Part I constitutes an asset and lia-
bility approach to the balance sheet. How do
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we deal with the subject matter of loans not
dealt with in the Estimates.

Mr. Cloutier: They appear as receivables.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): That is the ques-
tion I asked. In order to balance out our
national accounts.

Mr. Cloutier: Yes, exactly. They appear as
receivables.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): So you have a
gross debt and a net debt.

Mr. Cloutier: Exactly.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): Do we ever write
off these loans?

Mr, Cloutier: When loans have to be writ-
ten off they are usually written off either
directly to the net debt or through Estimates
items.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): I see. When you
write them off you have to bring them into
the accounts by way of a budgetary
appropriation.

Mr. Cloutier: That is right or through
direct write-off to the met debt.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud):
direct write-off.

Or through a

Mr. Cloutier: That is right. If I may refer
to the Supplementary Estimates (B) there is
included in here under the Treasury Board an
item. This is page 24 of this Supplementary
Estimates (B). There is an item here request-
ing Parliament’s authority to write off some
debts due to the Crown. The amounts that
have to be written off are $1,614,000. These
are loans that have become uncollectible and
loans that were carried on the balance sheet.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): While I have you
on that and dealing with supplementary Esti-
mates, I might here put a question briefly,
which has been answered here but in the
form which I do not follow. I am a little
puzzled—in the Supplementary Estimates (B)
when it deals with the subject matter of loans
that are written off in respect of the Customs
Excise Division and again more particularly
under the Income Tax Act. An explanation
was given in respect to the Income Tax Act
that there were amounts assessed against tax-
payers which were not collectible because of
bankruptcies and people leaving the province
and the like. I know under the Income Tax
Act an assessment is automatically a debt of
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the taxpayer, subject to appeal, but I have
always assumed that the assessments in their
totality, which run into billions on occasion,
do not constitute accounts receivable and
offset by a reserve and seeing that these asse-
ts are not taken into the accounts. I could not
figure out in the supplementary Estimates
how you could have a write-off in respect to
such debts. I was told by a previous witness
that he was also puzzled.

Mr. Cloutier: The problem here, sir, is that
the accounts of Canada are kept on what is
called a modified cash basis.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): I know of an
accrual or cash, but I have not heard of a
modified cash basis.

Mr. Cloutier: That is because it is not
strictly cash. There are a few modifications
that make it more of an accrual basis, but not
quite. The main feature is that if on a cash
basis you would record in the given year all
payments up to the end of that year and then
you would stop, whereas the modified cash
basis means that you may make payments
during the month of April relating to opera-
tions of the past year and charge for the old
year so that it is the main explanation of
what modified cash basis means.

Now, in National Revenue the department
of course has to keep a set of books in rela-
tion to what is owning by the taxpayer and
these are the accounts receivable that you are
referring to and which comprise the second
part of the vote that I refer to in the Supple-
mentary Estimates (B). These amounts—when
the assessments are made by the National
Revenue—their tax role people record that
amount as receivable, but it is not taken in as
revenue until the cash is actually received.
When the cash is received, then it becomes
revenue and we are back in business, but as
long as the cash is not received it is merely a
memorandum entry with respect to the ac-
counts of Canada and the Financial Admin-
istration Act. Section 70, I think it is,
authorizes the Governor in Council to write
off uncollected debts under $1,000, and it does
not deal specifically with uncollected debts
over $1,000. This is why every year we have
to have in the Estimates a request for author-
ity to write off, to delete from the memo
books of account, if you wish, those uncol-
lected debts.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): If the assessment
debts of the taxpayers do not get into the
revenue account of the Crown until there is



payment, then how could you possibly have
an account receivable that is subject to write-
off? In fact you say there are journal entries
in the Department of Revenue in respect of
these assessments, and then the act works to
bring them into the national accounts.

But you have not got a debt outstanding at
any particular time in so far as national
accounts are concerned and I still find it hard
to understand how you can write off uncol-
lected debts under the act when the cash only
comes into the national total on receipt.

Mr. Cloutier: The write-off is not from the
national accounts of Canada but it is from the
memo books of account of the department.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): Do the memo
books of account of the department reflect
themselves in our budget Estimates?

Mr. Cloutier: No, sir.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): Then how can
they form part of our supplementary Esti-
mates by virtue of write-off? I am not trying
to be troublesome, I am trying to understand
this.

Mr. Cloutier: I had much the same ques-
tions when I ran across this.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): There you are.
The previous witness had the same trouble.

Mr. Cloutier: I am attempting to give you
an explanation that I sought and obtained. If
you look at the detail on page 24 of this item
you will see that the total amount written off
is $7,267,000 and that is made up of two
groups—one of debts due to Her Majesty to
be written off as a charge to expenditure, in
the amount of $1,614,000. Now, the amount
appropriated is that amount, it is $1,614,000,
but it does not make any budgetary charge
for the balance of $5,653.000. To some back to
a concern which Senator Grosart has had a
number of times, this is a legislative item,
whereas the Financial Administration Act
provides for the write-off of these memo
entries up to $1,000 there is no provision for
any more, and rather than just keep these
notes in the books eternally, you legislate
through the Estimates to write them off.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): I simply want to
say to you what when you are through with
your programs and pressures with the Esti-
mates, some day I would go over to the
Department of Finance for an instruction
course on this. I mean this in all seriousness,
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as one who likes to understand the method of
bookkeeping. To me it is a very difficult and
puzzling item.

Mr. Cloutier: I am sure that we would be
very pleased to provide the information.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): As a matter of
fact, the previous witness before us stated
that when it was first put to him he was
somewhat puzzled.

The Chairman: I should have said earlier
that the list of the items over $100 that have
been written off, showing the individual cir-
cumstances and names, has been supplied to
us, since last week, and they are in the
material on our desk.

I think the way to deal with it is perhaps
not to print that list but simply to say that the
information is in the hands of the committee
and is available to anyone who wants to have
a look at it. This gives all the circumstances
with respect to every case over $100,000.

Senator Grosart: Could Mr. Cloutier sum-
marize them for us, Mr. Chairman? How
many are bankruptcies, and so on?

Mr. Cloutier: I could do that.
Senator Grosart: Without the names.

Mr. Cloutier: I have not got the names,
anyway. The figures are as follows:

(7) DNR (Customs)—

Category Number Amount
Bankruptey 129  $725,180.54
Out of business-

no assets 131 805,082.30
Indigent debtor ir 1,505.52
Debtor outside Canada 1 3,791.48
Deceased debtor 1 2,066.39
Enforcible debt cannot

be readily established 2 10,121.93

(8) DNR (Taxation)

Deceased no estate 37 316,182.41
Untraceable 94 283,957.04
Indigent 51 357,636.04
Not residing in Canada 35 366,523.41
Corporation inoperative

and without assets 151 2,053,038.37
Undischarged Bankrupt

corporation, no assets

and Trustee discharged 82 540,733.14

Senator Grosart: There is a fair number of
ways to defeat the income tax.
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Mr. Cloutier: Yes, you can go bank-
rupt, or get lost, or become indigent, or skip
the country, or you can die. There was one
case of a person who died.

Senator Desruisseaux: In the case of
interest on loans, do you compute the interest
" also, in the bookkeeping.

Mr. Cloutier: Yes. This is revenue receiva-
ble. All loans are subject to the conditions
under the legislation that authorizes them.
Some legislation fixes the rate of interest, in
other cases it is provided that the Governor
in Council shall fixe the rate of interest. I
think there may be some cases where the
Minister of Finance fixes the rate of interest.
This is carried as a receivable.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): None are related
to the prime rate, are they?

Mr. Cloutier: An increasing number are
related to the current rates paid by the Gov-
ernment, plus a per cent or a fraction to take
care of administrative costs. I believe that
there is legislation before Parliament—it may
have gone through, I am not sure—which
seeks to remove the statutory rate set by
previous legislation in order to allow the
Governor in Council to keep a floating rate.

Senator Desruisseaux: What per cent or
proportion approximately would be on this
arrangement?

The Chairman: The going rate?

Senator Desruisseaux: Yes,

percentage.

just the

Mr. Cloutier: I would guess, and it would
be a mere guess, that it would be a major
part of it now.

Senator Desruisseaux: The major part.

Mr. Cloutier: Yes, a good hunk of it was in
the Flarm Credit Corporation and this is a
piece of legislation I was referring to where
the statutory ceiling—which I believe was 5
per cent—has been raised. It may be before
Parliament now. Farm machinery is in the
same case, I would say, practically the
totality.

There are soft loans made to the under-
developed countries which are subsidized
loans, of course.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): In respect of
loans which are not dealt with in the Esti-
mates and are referred to originally by Sena-
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tor Grosart and which we dealt with, is there
a uniform policy in the Department of
Finance to determine when such loans and to
what extent they may be written off, or is it a
matter of Government policy in respect of
any particular loan.

Mr. Cloutier: I am afraid, sir, I do not
know the answer to that.

Senator Grosart: Could I ask this question;
in the report of this committee to the Senate
we estimate the percentage increase of expen-
ditures year by year. For example, the figure
for 1967 was 13.7 and for 1968 it was 14.2. My
figure for 1968-1969, and this is my own arith-
metic, is 10.01 and for 1969-1970 is 9.14.

The Chairman: Perhaps I should interpo-
late at this point that these are actual expen-
ditures and not estimates. They vary there-
fore from the changes in the Estimates, and
they do include, of course, the Old Age
Security Fund.

Senator Grosari: I have worked out these
figures including the Old Age Security Fund.

The Chairman: For 1969?
Senator Grosari: And for 1970.

The Chairman: Assuming the estimates
represent the expenditures.. .

Senator Grosari: We always assume that.

The Chairman: These are actual expendi-
tures, but they do vary.

Mr. Cloutier: My own quick back of the
envelope calculations this morning as I was
reviewing the papers I would bring along
with me suggest that on the basis of the total
Estimates only the increase between 1968-69
and 1969-70 on the budgetary account is 9.5
per cent. It is an increase of something over
$1 billion on $10,823 million. This overall
increase of about $1,030 million is broken up
between the statutory items and the items to
be voted, and again my quick calculations
indicate an increase in the statutory items
such as open-end program and all other statu-
tory programs in the order of 17.8 per cent
whereas the increase in items to be voted,
which are more readily manageable, is in
order of 2.8 per cent only.

Senator Grosari: So my figure of 9.14 per
cent total increase this year is about right
when the Old Age Security Fund is included.
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Mr. Cloutier: I have not done that particu-
lar calculation.

The Chairman: Are there any further
questions?

We can have Treasury Board officers before
us at almost any time because they have been
so very co-operative. Nevertheless we are
grateful to Mr. Cloutier and to Mr. Glashan
for being with us this morning.

You will recall that I said in the Senate
yesterday that at our next meeting we would
have as a witness Dr. Davidson, now head of
the CBC. In his case we will be dealing with
those items in the Estimates for 1969-70 con-
cerned with CBC operations. The following
week is open and then on March 27 we
expect to have Professor Neufeld as our
witness dealing particularly with the effect of
expenditures on the economy of the country.
He will discuss, for example, the effect of
total demand and relevant pressures on prices
and possibly also with the matter of the level
of taxation and its effect on the economy.

Senator Argue asked if it would be possible
to have the Department of Agriculture before
us, and if it is agreeable to you I think it
would be a good idea. Perhaps rather than
going into all the Estimates for that depart-
ment there are some aspects of it, for exam-
ple the dairy and livestock board, to which
we could usefully devote some time. This will
probably be after Easter.

Senator Pearson: Could we make a point of
studying the question of FRED in
agriculture?

The Chairman: If those who are interested
will let us know ahead of time, we will be
sure to get witnesses who are ready and pre-
pared to give the information we want.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): Speaking as a
new member of the committee, is it the prac-
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tice of the committee to have a representative
of each department to deal with particular
matters in the Estimates or is it dealt with in
a general way?

The Chairman: The decision has been in
the past not to go into individual Estimates or
individual departments. That is done in the
House of Commons Committees. Every single
department has its Estimates referred to a
committee where they are studied in detail. If
we were to do that it would result in duplica-
tion. We study them in bulk, but of course
any particular item of any department is still
open to us for consideration. Our considera-
tion of the CBC expenditures is a case in
point. In dealing with questions relating to
agriculture it would be a case of having re-
sponsible officials before us of whom we can
ask questions relating to particular matters.
Our study is conducted on broad general
terms and goes further than simply looking at
the figures here. It can go into the entire
economic background.

The Clerk of the Committee, Mr. Jackson,
has just called my attention to the fact that
next week we shall be meeting at 9.30 instead
of at 11 a.m. The reason for this is that Dr.
Davidson is to be our witness and he has an
engagement later in the morning, and guar-
anteed to him, and I am passing this on to
the Acting Chairman, that he would be out of
here by 11 o’clock. Now, the committee on
Transport and Communications ordinarily
sits at 9.30 on Thursdays, but I have arranged
with Senator Thorvaldson, the Chairman of
that committee, to reverse our times on that
occasion.

Senator Phillips (Rigaud): You are intro-
ducing me to a form of closure!

The committee adjourned.
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APPENDIX "A"

EXPLANATIONS OF ONE-DOLLAR
ITEMS AND LEGISLATIVE ITEMS
IN SUPPLEMENTARY ESTIMATES

(B), 1968-69

Presented at the request of the Senate Stand-
ing Committee on National Finance by the
Secretary of the Treasury Board.

SUMMARY
A. One-dollar Items B. Items exceeding one-dollar
1. Items authorizing transfers within votes 1. Items for which the requirements are
previously approved by Parliament. met in part by transfer from votes previously
2. Items authorizing transfers from votes approved by Parliament.
previously approved by Parliament. 2. Items containing features which are
3. Items which are legislative in nature. legislative in nature.
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DETAILS

ONE DOLLAR ITEMS AUTHORIZING TRANSFERS
WITHIN VOTES PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY
PARLIAMENT.
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ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT

ENERGY, MINES AND RESOURCES
Page 6 Vote 50b

Explanation:

When the 1968-69 Revised Estimates were
prepared the last estimate available of Cana-
da’s 4 share of the costs of this Council
was $80,000. It has now been determined that
Canada’s share of the 1968-69 costs will
amount to $83,916.

Offset:

The additional requirement can be met
from anticipated lapses under this vote in the
category of “Miscellaneous other projects”
under contributions to the Provinces for the
construction of dams.

EXTERNAL AFFAIRS

Page 7 Vote 15b

This Supp. contains three requirements:

(A) Contributions to International Institute
for the Unification of private law—=$5,880

Explanation:

This is Canada’s contribution as a
member of this Institute which has its
headquarters in Rome. Included are two
calendar year contributions due on Janu-
ary 1, 1968 and January 1, 1969.

Offset:

This requirement can be completely
offset by lapsing funds within the provi-
sion of this vote in the Revised Estimates.

(B) Payments to the United States Govern-

ment for Gut Dam Claims—$374,500
Explanation:

By agreement with the United States
through Lake Ontario Claims Tribunal,
this payment will settle all claims by
United States citizens in respect to possi-
ble damage to property resulting from
the change in water levels due to the
building of the Gut Dam in 1903-04, in
the Prescott-Ogdensburg section of the
St. Lawrence River. These claims have
been studied by a Canada-United States
Tribunal for some years.

An amount of $90,000 in External
Affairs Vote 15 of 1968-69 Revised
Main Estimates described as “Payment to

VOTE ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT

VOTE

the Lake Ontario Claims Tribunal, Unit-
ed States and Canada” was the Canadian
portion of the costs of the Tribunal. The
work of the Tribunal having been com-
pleted, this amount will lapse.

Offset:
The total requirement can be made
available from lapsing funds in this vote.

(C) Gifts to Countries attaining Independence

Explanation:

This requirement is for the customary
independence gifts to Guyana and
Barbados.

Offset:

The full requirement can be made
available from lapsing funds within the
vote.

FISHERIES AND FORESTRY

Page 9 Vote 40b

Explanation:

Grant to British Columbia Festival of Forest-
ry Organization

Since 1966 the Festival of Forestry, Van-
couver, B.C. has become a major program
promoting the very important role of Forestry
in British Columbia and in Canada.

One of the major undertakings of the 1967
Festival was the Forestry Graduate Congress
for which 33 graduate forestry students from
26 universities in 16 Pacific Rim countries
were brought to British Columbia for a study
of Canadian Forestry methods, research and
our forestry people. The Graduate Congress
was deemed a great success by the B.C. forest
industry, the students themselves and the
Festival Advisory Committee. Treasury Board
authorized the Department to pay an amount
of $30,000 for the costs of return transporta-
tion of the 1967 Graduates to British
Columbia.

The Festival Advisory Committee is plan-
ning an annual Graduate Congress, as part
of each years’ Festival of Forestry, so that
graduate students from Forestry Faculties of
the world can be brought to Canada on a
rotation basis from a different area each year.

In 1968 the Festival will invite about 35
graduates from Northern Europe including



National Finance

ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT VOTE

FISHERIES AND FORESTRY (Continued)
Page 9 Vote 40b

selected graduates from the Eastern United
States and from the four Canadian universi-
ties. The Festival will pay the costs for the
graduates while in British Columbia.

Because graduates returning to their coun-
tries will pass on to many hundreds of teach-
ers, other students and their people, the
achievements of Canada in the forest industry
and thereby help the cause of Canadian
Forestry, it is proposed to grant financial
assistance to the Festival of Forestry in the
amount of $15,000 to help pay the cost of
return air travel to Vancouver for the 1968
Graduates.

Offset:

This requirement can be completely offset
by anticipated lapses within this vote.

INDIAN AFFAIRS AND NORTHERN

DEVELOPMENT
Page 10 Vote 20b
(A) Contribution towards Community Hall
—$4,100
Explanation:

This amount is required to meet a
claim by the Government of the North-
west Territories for work done in 1967-68.
Under the financial agreement with that
Government the contributions it makes
towards the construction of community
halls are reimbursed by the Federal Gov-
ernment on the basis of ethnic origin of
the local population.

Offset:

This requirement can be offset from
funds that would otherwise lapse in the
vote.

(B) Contribution towards Firefighting Facili-
ties and Equipment—$27,600
Explanation:

These funds are required to pay a
claim by the Northwest Territories Gov-
ernment for reimbursement for the con-
struction of a fire hall at Cambridge Bay.

ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT VOTE

The construction was carried out during
the period ended in 1968 under an agree-
ment which called for the costs of such
facilities to be shared by the Federal
Government on the basis of the amount
of federal property in the settlement con-
cerned in relation to the total property in
need of fire protection.

Offset:

Funds are available from minor lapses
within the vote.

INDIAN AFFAIRS AND NORTHERN
DEVELOPMENT

Page 11 Vote 35b

Explanation:
Grant to the National and Provincial Parks
Association of Canada—$12,450

The Association’s purpose is to promote the
benefits and to ensure the protection of our
National and Provincial Parks so that they
may remain unimpaired for future genera-
tions. The Association, in conjunction with
the University of Calgary, held a conference
on the theme “The National Parks—Today
and Tomorrow”.

The grant represents the contribution of the
National Parks Branch towards the cost of
holding the conference.

Grant to the British Columbia Waterfowl
Society—$16,000

The Society has requested financial assist-
ance in the further development of the Reifel
Refuge for water fowl near Roberts Bank,
B.C. With the development of Roberts Bank
as a deep-water port and the subsequent loss
of adjacent waterfowl areas, it is essential
that the Reifel Refuge be preserved and fur-
ther developed as a stopping-off place for
migratory birds.

The British Columbia Waterfowl Society is
a non-profit organization which is wholly
dependent on public donations and govern-
ment grants in order to carry out its work.

Offset:
Funds are available from general lapses
within the vote.



Senate Commitiee

ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT VOTE
LABOUR

Page 12 Vote 20b

Explanation:

It will be recalled that Parliament author-
ized a program whereby bonuses of $500 per
house were paid in respect of houses con-
structed during the winter months for several
years, the last of which was the winter of
1965-66.

This Supplementary Estimates is required
to cover the payment of $60,000 representing
approved residual claims under this program.

Offset:

The $60,000 can be completely offset from
funds that would otherwise lapse within this
vote.

PUBLIC WORKS
Page 16 Vote 15b
Explanation: '
(A) Newfoundland

Labrador City—Housing for Federal Govern-
ment Employees $80,000

Proposed Work

To construct one (1) four-bedroom house
and one (1) three-bedroom house at Labrador
City, Newfoundland, on sites to be deeded to
the Crown by Iron Ore Company of Canada
for a nominal sum of $1.00 each.

Total Estimated Cost $80,000
Necessity

These houses are required for the Post-
master and Assistant Postmaster, and their
families. The four-bedroom house is estimated
to cost $45,000 and the three-bedroom house
$35,000. Considering location and difficulty of
procuring labour and materials, estimated
prices are fair and reasonable.

From time of taking up appointments both
employees and their families were being
accommodated in trailer homes. As at Decem-
ber 1, 1967, the Iron Ore Company of Canada
leased to the Postmaster at $154.00 monthly
a three-bedroom bungalow on the explicit
understanding that it be vacated By Septem-
ber 1, 1968. The Assistant Postmaster, with a
family of six, has remained in a trailer home
40 feet x 10 feet under trying conditions.

ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT VOTE

In August 1967, the Post Office Department
was advised that all trailer owners in the
Town of Labrador City would not, effective
August 31, 1967, be permitted to sell their
trailers if they move from the town, and after
that date, Iron Ore Company of Canada
would not permit purchase or erection on
their property of any more trailers with a
view of eventual removal of all present
trailers from the City.

Iron Ore Company of Canada will not sell
any of their houses to the Crown, nor would
they enter into a build-to-lease arrangement.
No interested other parties were located who
would undertake a similar or other arrange-
ment. There are no vacant houses to rent.

Treasury Board granted authority to enter
into a contract for the construction of the two
houses. Work is currently under way and is
expected to be completed before March 31,
1969.

(B)

Port Coquitlam—Public Building—Addition
and Improvements $108,000

British Columbia

Proposed Work

To construct an addition of 3,060 square
feet to the existing Public Building at Port
Coquitlam, British Columbia, and air treat-
ment of the whole building.

Total Estimated Cost $108,000

Necessity

As the result of a study on future popula-
tion growth trend, the Post Office Department
requested an extension of some 3,000 square
feet to provide for more efficient operation
and to provide space for expansion during the
next ten years.

The work includes an addition of 45 feet X
68 feet, enlarged loading facilities at the rear
of the building, general renovations to tie in
the existing building to the addition and air
treatment of the whole building.

A contract for this work was awarded
under authority of the Treasury Board.

Offset:

These two items can be completely offset
by anticipated lapses within this vote arising
from normal construction delays in other
projects.



National Finance

ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT VOTE
PUBLIC WORKS

Page 17 Vote 30B

Explanation:

(A) Pinkney’s Point,
Repairs $75,000
This wharf was severely damaged by
fire in December of 1967. Because the
inhabitants of the area were left without
adequate wharfage facilities the repairs
were begun and expenditures charged to
the Fire Losses Replacement Account
provided by Parliament for such
circumstances.
An investigation is underway to deter-
mine whether action can be taken to
obtain restitution for these expenditures?

Offset:

Funds are available from anticipated
lapses within the vote.

Nova Scotia—Wharf

Explanation:

(B) Sillery, Quebec—Harbour Improvements
$72,400
This payment is made in accordance
with the “marina” policy of the Depart-
ment, whereby assistance is given for the
construction of this type of tourist facil-
ity, provided the capital expenditures by
the local entrepreneur match or exceed
the Federal expenditure.

This payment is in respect of the mari-
na at Sillery, Quebec, for the Quebec
Yacht Club. The projects undertaken con-

ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT VOTE
sist of the construction of two breakwa-
ters and the necessary dredging.

Total Federal expenditures amount to
$238,630. The total investment of the Que-
bec Yacht Club is $260,000. In addition
the Club has undertaken to invest an
additional $89,000 over the next three
years.

Similar assistance has been made in
many locations elsewhere in the country.

Offset:

This requirement can be completely
offset from funds that would otherwise
lapse within the vote.

SOLICITOR GENERAL

Page 18 Vote 1b

Explanation:

This item is for a post-graduate university
scholarship program for students in the social
sciences which, in essence, provides for ten
scholarships per year at $2,500 each including
a proviso that a commitment be given by the
recipient to enter employment in the Depart-
ment of the Solicitor General, the Parole
Board, or the Penitentiary Service on the
basis of a year’s employment for each year of
assistance after graduation.

Offset:

This item can be completely offset within
this vote by a reordering of priorities within
the vote.
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National Finance

ONE-DOLLAR ITEMS AUTHORIZING TRANSFERS
FROM VOTES PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY
PARLIAMENT.



Senaie Committee

ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT VOTE
AGRICULTURE

Page 2 10b

Explanation:

To provide for payments of progress claims
on the construction of the combined Office
Laboratory Building at Harrow, Ontario. The
completion date has been considerably ad-
vanced.

Million

Paid in previous year

Required in 1968-69 (including this

SURDD). . o wis ¢ aefinis o sin sibsetslars on = ol s o 3.5
Estimated carryover to 1969-70 ... 0.2
Botall |5 suonn s eies simatintes $ 4.0

Offset:

Funds will be made available to the extent
of $1.0 million by re-phasing some construc-
tion projects, notably those at Laval and
Morden, Manitoba, and to the extent of $1.2
million from funds that are expected to lapse
in Vote 65—Canadian Livestock Feed Board—
Freight Assistance on Western Feed Grains.

AGRICULTURE

Page 2 15b

Explanation:

Widespread unfavourable weather condi-
tions with excessive moisture and extensive
frost damage have resulted in the need for
increased inspection of the 1968 Prairie crop
involving additional travelling expenses and
inspectors.

Offset:
The additional requirement of $191,000 can
be wholly met from potential lapses in—
Vote 20—Animal and Animal Products
Vote 45—Health of Animals—Grants and
Contributions

Vote 65—Freight Assistance on Western
Feed Grains

AGRICULTURE
Page 2 17b
Explanation:
(A) Agricultural Commodities Stabilization

Account—$902,000

This sub-vote provides for the loss on
the purchase and sales program and for
deficiency payments in respect of dairy
products, potatoes, wool, and sugar beets.

ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT VOTE
Provision is made in the Main Estimates
each year for the' estimated amount
required to recoup the account but a pro-
gram of this kind by its nature is very
difficult to estimate accurately in
advance. It is usual, therefore, to include
in Supplementary Estimates a small
amount such as this, which is in fact a
reflection of an underestimate of the car-
ry-over from 1967-68.

(B) Compensation to Sugar Beets Producers
—$1,000,000

The Ontario market for sugar beets
was terminated earlier this year when the
one sugar beet refinery at Chatham
ceased operation. An assistance program
was considered necessary to enable
Ontario farmers to change their produc-
tion patterns. Assistance will be given at
a rate of $60.00 an acre for some 16,600
acres which had been planted in 1967.

Offset:

The additional requirement has been com-
pletely offset from lapsing funds within this
Vote and from Vote 65—Freight Assistance
on Western Feed Grains.

AGRICULTURE

Page 3 20b
Explanation:

This sub-vote provides for the expenses of
supervising race track betting. The total
expenditures are more than covered by the
revenue consisting of one-half of 1% of the
amounts wagered.

This Supp is required to cover expendi-
tures necessary as a result of the authorizing
of additional racing days at the Blue Bonnet,

Rideau Carleton and Connaught Park
race-ways.
Offset:

The net requirement can be met from
funds, which would otherwise lapse, from
Vote 65—Freight Assistance on Western Feed
Grains.
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ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT VOTE
AGRICULTURE

Page 3 25b

Explanation:

By arrangement with the Provinces the
Federal Government contributes under the
first of the two grants listed in the Estimates
50% of the expenditures on four eligible 4-H
Club activities. The increase in this first item
is required as a result of increased participa-
tion by the Clubs in provincial competitions
and in leadership training as well as unan-
ticipated expenditures on special Centennial
projects undertaken in 1967-68 and claimed in
1968-69.

The second item in the Estimates is for the
Federal Government’s 50% share of the con-
tributions to this Council, the other half being
borne by the Provinces. The contribution has
been re-assessed with the result that $23,000
should be provided for this purpose instead of
$21,000.

Offset:

The additional requirement is completely
offset by lapses in this and the other two
votes mentioned in the Vote title; Vote
1—Departmental Administration and Vote
65—Freight Assistance on Western Feed
Grains.

AGRICULTURE

Page 3 30b

Explanation: "

Required as a result of acceleration in the
construction schedule for the decontamination
and inspection station at Port aux Basques in
Newfoundland. The total estimated cost of the
project is $1,021,800. It is expected that
expenditures during 1968-69 will be $572,000.

Offset:

The net additional requirement of $108,000
is available as a result of anticipated lapsing
in Votes 50 and 51—Board of Grain Commis-
sioners and Vote 65—Freight Assistance on
Western Feed Grains.

AGRICULTURE

Page 4 45b

Explanation:

The purposes of this grant are to alleviate
financial loss sufferéd by farmers and to
induce them to report suspected rabies
infection.

ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT VOTE
The increased incidence of infection in the
current year will require federal expenditures
of $56,000, of which $21,000 was provided in
the Revised Estimates, compared to the
previous three year average of $31,000.

Offset:
The additional requirements can be made

available from anticipated lapses within this
Vote.

AGRICULTURE

Page 4 65b

Explanation:

The wording of Vote 65 in the 1968-69
Revised Estimates—“Freight Assistance on
Western Feed Grains”’—restricts payments to
grain shipments originating in Western Cana-
da. The proposed change would extend au-
thority to make payments in respect of feed
grains from other regions.

This policy was inaugurated in 1941 to en-
able Eastern Canada and British Columbia
livestock producers to develop their livestock
operations. This program initially subsidized
transportation costs on feed grains. In 1963 it
was expanded to include the subsidization of
storage costs. The program is administered by
the Canadian Livestock Feed Board estab-
lished in 1966 by the Livestock Feed Assis-
tance Act.

Equalization of feed grain prices is attained
through the payment of a substantial portion
of the transportation costs from the basic
source of supply, predominantly western
Canada, to demand areas in Eastern Canada
and British Columbia.

The Livestock Feed Assistance Act specifies
“feed grains” as wheat, oats and barley and
such other grain and grain products as may
be designated by regulation. Regulations have
been approved to designate rye, grain corn,
wheat bran, wheat shorts, wheat middling
No. 1 feed screenings, and sample Food Grain
as feed grains under the Act.

It is now proposed to authorize freight
assistance for Ontario wheat shipped to East-
ern Canada other than Ontario, and Ontario
corn shipped to Eastern Canada other than
Ontario and Quebec and to authorize payment
of a freight differential equal to the extra
costs of transporting imported grain corn
from the port of unload when it is not possi-
ble to unload the corn at Quebec City.



Senate Commitiee

ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT VOTE

AGRICULTURE (Continued)

Page 4 65b

This item will also ratify payment of $99,-
288 paid in the last fiscal year in respect of
shipping of Ontario wheat and corn during
the previous fiscal year.

Offset:

Funds are available within the vote for the
1968-69 portion of new expenditures. Expen-
ditures are expected to be $18,000,000 rather
than the $21,600,000 voted because feed grain
crops in Ontario have been larger than
expected and the number of animals to be fed
is lower than anticipated.

COMMUNICATIONS

Page 5 10b

Explanation:

The Government has entered into agree-
ments with the Canadian National Railway
Company whereby the Crown will pay to the
Company the difference between revenues
and expenses arising from the operation and
maintenance of certain telecommunications
facilities in the North. Vote 10 of the Revised
1968-69 Estimates provides $263,000 for this
purpose. The latest Company estimates
received by the department show that an
additional payment of $108,000 will be
required because of a shortfall in anticipated
revenues from the systems and an increase in
cost of operation and maintenance.

Offset:

Complete offsets are available from antici-
pated lapses within this vote and within
Vote 1—Administration.

ENERGY, MINES AND RESOURCES

Page 6 75b

Explanation:

Provision for the Coal Board was made in
the 1968-69 Revised Estimates for less than a
full year’s requirement because of the uncer-
tainty at that time concerning the organiza-
tion of the tasks carried out by the Coal
Board. It is, therefore, necessary to provide
for the balance of the Board’s requirements to

ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT VOTE
the end of the current fiscal year. There are,
in addition to salaries, small requirements for
telephones and telegrams and for the printing
of the 1966-67 annual report at a later date
than anticipated.

Offset:

The full additional requirement can be met
from funds expected to lapse in Vote 40 of
Energy, Mines and Resources’ Estimates—
water and co-ordination of renewable
resources programs—administration, opera-
tion and maintenance.

EXTERNAL AFFAIRS

Page 6 1b

Explanation:
Additional requirements in this Vote are as
follows:

(a) Allowances—
Unforeseen costs due to higher rents
abroad and increased cost of educational
allowances.

(b) Removal and Home Leave Expenses—
This requirement results from an unex-
pected increase on freight on shipment of
personal effects and from under estimate.

(¢) Other Travelling Expenses—
The Department’s share of the Ministerial
Mission to Latin America.

(d) Telephone, Telegrams and other Com-
munication Services—
Additional unforseen costs were in-
curred during the year related to political
crises such as the one in Czechoslovakia.

(e) Office Stationery, Supplies and Equip-
ment—
Additional supplies required by the Pass-
port Office owing to a 22% increase in the
rate of passport issue.
This increase, incidentally, will result in
an increase in the Passport Office revenue
of some $240,000.

Offset:

The entire additional requirements can be
covered by funds expected to lapse in Vote
15—assessments, grants, contributions and
other payments to International Organiza-
tions.
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ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT VOTE

EXTERNAL AFFAIRS

Page 7 30b

Explanation:

$34,500 is required for travelling expenses,
representing the department’s share of the
Ministerial Mission to Latin America and a
minor under-estimate of field staff travel.
$50,100 is for Professional Services and is due
to hiring by contract of personnel in place of
recruitment for the service and for policy
review studies. Minor furniture and telephone
amounts totalling $18,000 are due to staff
growth.

Offset:

The requirement is completely offset by an
anticipated lapse in Vote 35—Economic,
Technical, Educational and Other Assistance.

FINANCE
Page 8 2b

Explanation:

This item is required to honour the Gov-
ernment’s commitment to match the monies
donated to the Institute by private industry
and other sources.

Offset:

The requirement is completely offset by
anticipated lapses in Vote 15—Grants to
Provinces—Municipal Services in respect of
real estate taxes imposed or levied on Federal
Property for services ordinarily provided by
municipalities.

FISHERIES AND FORESTRY

Page 8 15b

Explanation:

(A) Educational Work in Fisheries Tech-
niques and Cooperation in Producing and
Selling Among Fishermen.

This item provides for assistance to
Universities for the payment of salaries
and expenses of field office staff engaged
in effective educational programs for the
fishermen of their area.

Although it was expected that a finan-
cial reduction in level of assistance could
be made from $185,000 to $120,000 in this
activity in comparison with the 1967-68

ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT VOTE
and 1966-67 level, the review of desirable
contributions has established that in fact
no retrenchment is possible if extent of
educational programs available to the
fishermen of all areas is to be maintained
at a satisfactory standard. Under the cir-
cumstances there is no alternative but to
restore the amount of total assistance to
the 1967-68 level by an addition of $65,-
000 in Supplementary Estimates.

(B) Payment of Assistance to Producers of
Salted Fish on Products Designated by
the Governor in Council.

This item provides for assistance to
producers of designated salted fish prod-
ucts in the amount of fifty per cent of the
laid down cost of salt used in their
production.

This program has now been cancelled
and this item is for the payment of
claims carried over from prior years.

(C) Assistance in the Construction of Fishing
Vessels.

This Vote provides for the subsidiza-
tion of the construction of fishing vessels
of efficient and modern design. This sub-
sidy was inaugurated during the Second
World War under authority of the War
Measures Act.

As a result of rising prices in ship-
building and of unforeseen requirements,
actual new vessel costs are proving to be
greater than anticipated when the amounts
of subsidies which form the basis of
the Revised Estimates total of $1,700,000
were approved. Consequently the subsidy
requirements have increased proportion-
ately and a further amount of $50,000
will be needed to honour existing
commitments.

(D) The Fishermen’s Indemnity Plan is a
scheme designed to provide insurance
coverage for fishing vessels and gear
including lobster traps. There are three

accounts, viz:

(@ the
account;

fishing vessel indemnity
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ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT VOTE

FISHERIES AND FORESTRY (Continued)
Page 8 15b

(b) the lobster trap indemnity account;

(c) the fixed gear and shore installa-
tions indemnity account.

Only the latter two are deficient this
year. The lobster trap plan is being stud-
ied by the department with a view to
establishing it on an actuarially sound
basis. The fishing gear and shore installa-
tions plan is being phased out because of
cost compared to benefits but existing
policies will continue to be honoured.

Offset:

These items are completely offset by
anticipated lapses within this vote, Vote
5—Fisheries Management and Development—
Operation and Maintenance and Vote 10—
Fisheries Management and Development—
construction.

INDUSTRY AND TRADE AND COMMERCE
Page 11 38b

Explanation:

As implied in the wording of this vote, it is
intended to offer concessional credit terms to
facilitate sales of wheat and flour to develop-
ing countries at interest rates of not less than
2 per cent on terms of up to 10 years maturi-
ty. A Supplementary Estimate in the amount
of $1,000,000 is required to finance costs in
the current fiscal year.

Offset:

This item can be completely offset by
anticipated lapses in Vote 10 entitled “To
advance the technological capability of
Canadian Industry by supporting related civil
(non defence) development projects”.

LABOUR

Page 11 5b

Explanation:

This item is required to meet expenses in
1968-69 of the operations of the Industrial
Inquiry Commission established pursuant to
section 56 of the Industrial Relations and Dis-
putes Investigation Acts, by P.C. 1968-385
dated February 29, 1968, to investigate and

ESTIMATES DEPARTMENT VOTE
report on certain matters and conditions giv-
ing rise to labour unrest at the Ports of Mont-
real, Trois-Riviéres and Quebec.

Offset:

This item can be completely offset by
anticipated lapses in Vote 20—Research and
Development—Grants—payment of Transi-
tional Assistance Benefits to workers in
automotive manufacturing and parts indus-
tries.

MANPOWER AND IMMIGRATION

Page 13 6b

Explanation:
Payments to Provinces for Municipal Winter
Works Incentive Program—$500,000

Provision was made in the 1967-68 Esti-
mates of $25,000,000 for payments under the
1967 Winter Works Program in which the
Federal Government assumed one-half, in
some areas 60 per cent, of the labour costs
involved.

It is evident from the reports from the
Provinces that total requirements for the 1967
Program, together with the claims approved
for earlier winter works programs, will total
$25,500,000.

An additional $500,000 is therefore sought
in this Supplementary Estimate.

Offset:
The requirements for this item can be com-

pletely offset by anticipated lapses in Vote
5—Administration.

MANPOWER AND IMMIGRATION
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Explanation:

(A) Payments under Agreements Entered
into with Provinces—Capital Assistance
in the Provision of Training Facilities—
$19,700,000

A decision to limit expenditures for
capital assistance to $80,000,000 resulted
in considerable controversy with the
Provinces regarding amounts outstanding
and current plans for such work. In an
attempt to partially solve the problem the
Department proposed to adjust its occu-
pational training program and transfer
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$18,840,000 to capital assistance and pro-
vide $2,110,000 from within this vote.

(B) Payments to Provinces—Payment of
Undischarged Commitments for Technical
and Vocational Training—$1,250,000

An item in Supplementary Estimates
(C) 1967-68 authorized payments to Prov-
inces pursuant to Section 22 of the Adult
Occupational Training Act for costs
incurred up to July 31, 1968, for occupa-
tional training related to the phasing-out
of assistance under former Technical and
Vocational Training Agreements. The
item provided for payments to be made
in the 1967-68 and 1968-69 fiscal years.
With the exception of $3,000,000 the item
lapsed at the end of fiscal year 1967-68.

This  Supplementary Estimate is
required for the payment of undischarged
commitments in excess of the $3,000,000
available for spending in the current
fiscal year.

Offset:

These two items can be completely offset
by a lapse of $2,109,999 within this vote and
by a reduction of $18,840,000 in Vote 5—
Grants—Purchase of Training under the Oc-
cupational Training Act.

MANPOWER AND IMMIGRATION

Page 14 25b

Explanation:

Under the former Technical and Vocational
Training Assistance Act provision was made
for payments to Provinces for assistance in
Manpower Training Research projects. Some
portion of the payments was normally held
back until the approved projects were com-
pleted to the satisfaction of the Minister.

The Adult Occupational Training Act makes
similar provision but does not provide for the
payment of undischarged commitments under
former agreements.

Claims are now being held covering most of
the outstanding projects but it is considered
prudent to provide for late claims in fiscal
1968-69 and 1969-70. Funds to cover the need
are available in the Revised Estimates and

29419—3
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the necessary change in vote wording is
therefore covered by a $1 item.

() Miscellaneous requirements, includ-
ing the additional costs due to Medicare
not becoming effective in most provinces
during 1968-69

202,000

$1,880,000

Offset:

This item can be completely offset by
anticipated lapses in Vote 41—Family assis-
tance to children of immigrants and settlers.

NATIONAL HEALTH AND WELFARE
Page 14 20b

Explanation:

An increase of $1,880,000 is required to pro-
vide medical and hospital services to Indians
and Eskimos. The additional need arises
from:

(a) Increases in Hospital per diem rates
for tuberculosis cases and mental cases
$811,000

(b) Hospital co-insurance premiums
(not included in the 1968-69 Estimates)
being implemented in Saskatchewan and

Alberta
$357,000
(c) Increases in professional fees
$352,000

(d) Medicare becoming effective in Sas-
katchewan on January 1, 1969, involved
a prepayment

$123,000

(e) Consultants costs not in original
Estimates

$35,000

NATIONAL HEALTH AND WELFARE

Page 15 40b

Explanation:

The purpose of this grant is to supplement
other grants to the Canadian Welfare Council
for the purpose of assisting the Council in the
construction of necessary enlargements to
their headquarters building in the City of
Ottawa.
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The present headquarters structure was
erected in 1956 and is already over-populated
to the extent of some thirty to thirty-five per
cent. During the months in which study has
been given to the matter of enlargement, it
has developed that the minimum useful addi-
tion will cost anestimated $525,000. A can-
vass of all sources of funds during the past
two years has indicated that if assistance to
the extent of $125,000 could be given now by
the Government of Canada an immediate
start could be made on this urgent program.

Offset:

This item 2 can be completely offset by
anticipated lapses in Vote 10—Health Insur-
ance and Resources—General Health Grants
to the Provinces, the Northwest Territories
and the Yukon Territory.

PUBLIC WORKS
Page 16

Explanation:

20b

(A) Contribution to Cost of Protection on
Courtenay River, B.C.

The City would undertake to do the
work of repairing damage due to erosion
or replacing retaining walls and the
Department to pay 50 per cent of the cost
of the work up to a maximum of $75,000
and also would agree that all the Depart-
ment’s responsibility, including financial,
would cease as each part or all of the
protection is repaired or replaced, or a
total contribution of $75,000 has been

made or after March 31, 1975, whichever
is the earliest.

The protection of these river banks
would not normally be considered a Fed-
eral responsibility now but since it was,
in fact, accepted in the past, there is
some responsibility to contribute to the
replacement conditional upon it being
recognized as the final responsibility of
the Department.

(B) Special Marine Works Program
It became evident early in 1968-69 that
funds available for Harbour and River
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Works were not sufficient to meet re-
quirements. Consequently, the Depart-
ment requested Treasury Board approval
to proceed with an expanded program,
subject to offsetting the expenditure in-
curred elsewhere in the total 1968-69
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